
&

to Xf^tcs

SELAH CITY COUNCIL

6:30pm October 28, 2014



Selah City Council
Regular Meeting
Tuesday, October 28, 2014
6:30pm
City Council Chambers

CITY OF SELAH

115 West Naches Avenue

Selah. Washington 98942

Mayor:
Mayor ProTern:
Council Members;

City Adminislralor:
City Attorney:
Clerk/Treasurer:

John Gawlik

Brooke Finch

Paul Overby
John Tiemey
Dave Smeback

Alien Schmid

Roy Sample
Jane Williams

David Kelly
Bob Noe

Dale NovobielskI

AGENDA

A. Call to Order - Mayor Gawlik

B. Roll Call

C. Pledge of Allegiance

D. Agenda Changes None

E. Public Appearances/Introductions/Presentations

1. Jim Hail, Office of Emergency Management - Emergency Services 2015 Budget
Presentation

F. Getting To Know Our Businesses None

G. Communications

1. Oral

This is a public meeting. If you wish to address the Council concerning any matter that is not on the agenda, you may do so
now. Please come forward to the podium, stating your name for the record. The Mayor reserves the right to place a time limit
on each person asking to be heard.

2. Written

H. Proclamations/Announcements

I. Consent Agenda

None

None

All items listed with an asterisk (*} are considered routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion, without
discussion. Should any Council Member or member of the audience request that any item of the Consent Agenda be
considered separately, that Item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and become a part of the regular Agenda.

Monica Lake * 1.

Dale N. * 2.

Approval of Minutes: October 14, 2014 Study Session & Council Meeting
Approval of Claims & Payroll

J. Public Hearings None
K. New Business

Charlie Brown 1. Youth Center Closure

L. Old Business None

M. Resolutions

Joe Henne * 1. Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to accept the Goodlander Road Zone 4 Water
Main as complete and approve final Progress Estimate number 2 and Project



Joe Henne * 2.

JoeHenne * 3.

Dale N. 4.

N. Ordinances

DaleN. 1.

Acceptance
Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to accept the Bartlett Avenue Intersection
Improvements as complete and approve final Progress Estimate number 2 and
Project Acceptance
Resolution Establishing November 25, 2014 as the Public Hearing date to consider
the adoption of the "Water System Plan Update"
Resolution Adopting Financial Policies for the City of Selah

Ordinance of the City of Selah, Washington, relating to contracting indebtedness;
providing for the issuance, fixing or setting parameters with respect to certain terms
and covenants, and fixing the form of not to exceed $3,500,000 aggregate principal
amount limited tax general obligation refunding bonds to provide money with which
to pay the cost of refunding, paying and redeeming certain outstanding nonvoted
obligations of the City; providing for and authorizing the purchase of certain
obligations out of the proceeds of the sale of the refunding bonds herein authorized
and for the use and application of the money derived from those investments;
authorizing the execution of an agreement with U.S. Bank National Association, as
refunding trustee; providing for the call, payment and redemption of the outstanding
bonds to be refunded; appointing the City's designated representative to approve the
final terms of the sale, issuance and delivery of the bonds; authorizing the sale and
providing for the delivery ofthe bonds to D.A. Davidson & Co.; and providing for
other matters properly related thereto

0. Communications

1. Oral

This is a public meeting. If you wish to address the Council concerning any matter that is not on the agenda, you may do so now.
Please come forward to the podium, stating your name for the record. The Mayor reserves the right to place a time limit on each
person asking to tie heard.

P. Reports/Announcements

1. Mayor
2. Council Members

3. Departmental
4. Boards

Q. Executive Session

R. Adjournment

Each item on the Council Agenda is
covered by an Agenda Item Sheet (AIS)

A yellow AIS indicates an action item.

None

Next Study Session
Next Regular Meeting

November 11. 2014
November 11, 2014



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Informational Item

10/23/2014 E-1

Title: Emergency Management Services 2015 Budget Presentation

Thru: David Kelly, City Administrator

From: Jim Hall, Office of Emergency Management

Action Requested: Informational - No action

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: $8,305.00

Funding Source: Fund 001

Staff Recommendation:

N/A

Background / Findings & Facts:

Due to the City of Yakima's withdrawal from the Emergency Management
Interlocal Agreement, the assessment to each entity has increased to cover
expenses. See attached documents for further details.

Recommended Motion:

N/A



Yakima Valley

Office of Emergency Management
2403 Soirm Stbeet, IMon Gap, Washington 98903

PHONE: (509) 574-1900 FAX: (509) 574-1901

September 19,2014

Mr. David Kely City Administrator
City of Selah
115 West Naches Ave

Selah, WA 98942

Reference Emergency Management's 2015 Preliminary Budget and the City of Selah's 2015
Assessment (theCity of Seiah's2015 assessment can be located onpage 11 of thebudget or in thelastrowofthetablebelow)

The Yakima Valley Office ofEmergency Management's 2015 preliminary budget request has been
reviewed by members of the Emergency Services Executive Board and the Emergency Services
Council. After long and difficult discussions dealing with the City ofYakima pulling out ofthe inter
local agreement for Emergency Management, the board and council agreed Emergency Management
had been reduced to its minimum staffing. With that understanding, the groups approved
recommending the requested 50% increase in the local assessment to their governing bodies. The
increase will replace 84% of the City of Yakima's portion ofthe assessment. The remaining 16% will
come from increases in one or more of our federal grants and, if needed, reserves. The Emergency
Services Council while approving the increase requested a review of Emergency Management in early
2015 to see if there is a better and/or more economical way to accomplish what is needed. The
council, by agreement, is made up ofnow 13 mayors, with Yakima pulling out, and 3 county
commissioners in the valley.

Emergency Management like most government agencies has gone through significant reductions in
staff and resources due to budget restraints. At the beginning of2012 the office had 4.5 PTE's. At
present and into the near future the plan is for 3 PTE's.

The attached preliminary budget is available for review and comment.

Please see the table below for current assessment and some history for the City ofSelah:

Year Population Pop Change Per Capita
Assessment

Assessment Assess Change

2014 7340 50 $.7484 $5493 $383

2015 7395 55 $1,123 $8305 $2811

What Emergency Management does for you?

RCW 38.52 requires each jurisdiction to have an Emergency Plan. Emergency Management
creates and maintains the Comprehensive Emergency Management Program (CEMP) or plan to
meet this requirement, a 390-page document. Each member jurisdiction in the valley has
adopted this plan which addresses your major program elements. It is reviewed every year and
must be updated every four years.

Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan. This plan identifies mitigation projects that
reduce the impact ofhazards. It is a PEMA required and certified plan that necessitates

Merrixr}wis(&cdans
Grandview, Granger, Harrah, Mabton, Moxee, Naches,

Selah, Sunnyside, Tieton, Toppenish, IMon Gap, Wapato, Yakima County, Zillah



constant review and update. It isrequired for eligibility offederal funding for mitigation
projects. Itsignificantly increases our potential for disaster relief funding if one were to occur.
Emergency Management facilitates our Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC). This is
a local jurisdiction required committee under the Federal Emergency Planning and Community
Right-to-know Act (EPCRA) Title III (hazardous materials) RCW 38.63 and WAC 118.40. It
isprimarily for our refngerated storage facilities. There are a lotof them.
Emergency Management maintains a functional Emergency Operations Center to support local
jurisdictions in theevent of a major emergency or disaster.

We have knowledge ofand manage several federal grants. We have requested and received
funding for several multiple jurisdictional projects. The law enforcement Active Shooter
Program training and equipment was funded through a Homeland Secunty grant firom
emergency management. This project touched each of the valley's jurisdictions.

Wefacilitate exercises and training. Emergency Management facilitates a mimmum ofone
ICS 300 and ICS 400 courseeach year. This is required trainingfor responders. We
participate inregional exercises as they are offered. We present six to eight exercises to local
jurisdictions each year.

We provide situational awareness to local jurisdiction for local and state events/emergencies
that would affect the valley. This is the MyStateUSA System.

Community outreach Emergency Management, when requested, provides preparedness
presentations tocivic groups and organizations. We have available preparedness brochures and
information for citizen preparedness.

Wereview and update ouravailable resources in ourResource Inventory Management System
(RIMS) database. This is a database system ofresources, trucks, generators, pumps, etc. We
also maintain contact information for jurisdiction officials, fire officials, law enforcement
officials, school officials, etc.

There aremany other smaller tasks thatareperformed regularly forourjurisdictions.

The items listed above aregeared towards a costeffective collaborative wayof consolidating tasks
keeping the City ofSelah current with the state and federal law and other requirements. Many ofthe
tasks arenot always visible to those that must support the office. Ifyou would like to see more please
contact us. Wework hard at maintaining thesystems thatwillassist the City of Selah if it were to
becomeoverwhelmed by unforeseen events,either natural or manmade.

I have also enclosed copies ofour last5 Insider Newsletters to provide you with anoverview ofoiir
activities.

We, Emergency Management, and staffare available topresent the OEM budget orany other
preparedness issue orproject atyour request. If you have questions or require additional information
pleasecontact me at 574-1904 or e-mail iim.hall@.co.vakima.wa.us

V Sihcerely

James W. Hall Director

Your 2014 Emergency Services Executive Board:

Commissioner Rand Elliott Chair Yakima County

Councilperson Bill Lover CityofYakima
Mayor JesseFarias CityofWapato
Councilperson LorenBelton CityofToppenish
Mayor JohnGawlik City of Selah

Mmherjms(&caars
Grandview, Granger, Harrah, Mabton, Moxee, Naches,

Selah, Sunnyside,Tieton, Toppenish,LMon Gap,Wapato, YakimaCounty, Zillah



VaUlima Valtay

Yakima Valley

Office of

Emergency Management

2015 Preliminary
Budget Overview

Member Jurisdictions

Grandv!f.w, Granger, Harrah, Mahton, Moxee, Naciies, Page i of i9

SELAH, SUNNYSIDi-;. TiETON, TOPPENISII. UNION GAP, WaPATO, YaKIMA COUNTY, ZlLLAH



PageLeft BlankIntentionally

MemberJurisdictions

Grandview, Granger, Harrah, Mabton, Moxee,Naches, Page 2of19
SELAH, SUNNYSIDE, TETON, TOPPENISH, UNION GAP, WAPATO, YAKIMA COUNTY, ZlULAH



Yakima Valley

Office of Emergency Management
2403 JSOUTH Itf"' STREETUNIONGAP WASHINGTON 9U903

Phone: (509) 574-1900 fax: (509) 574-1901

2015 Budget Overview;
2015 will bring changes to the Emergency Management Office. The Yakima City Council has voted to
pullout of the YakimaValley Office of Emergency Management Agreement. We have yet to be officially
notified but through a visit by the City Manager Tony O'Rourke and several staff members at an
Emergency Services Executive Board Meeting we learned the city staff was requesting fi:om the City
Council to pullout. The Council voted on August 5,2014.

The Emergency Services Executive Boardmet and discnissed the issue. The board agreed the office should
continue to provide the required and prudent Emergency Management Services for the remaining
jurisdictions. The board's discussion surrounding the financial deficit was discussed. It was agreed the
Office of EmergencyManagement (OEM) budget should be developedwith a 50% increase. This increase
would provide approximately 84% of the funding lost. The increase would maintain the OEMat its current
staffing level. These positions include an Achninistrative Assistant, Senior Program Analyst, and a
Director. The Yakima Valley OEM runs at a minimum staff level to accomplish its mission. This is by
design to provide the required deliverables at an affordable cost. With each new disaster the planning,
preparedness, and public expectations continue to rise.

One bright spot for the office is we have received notice of an increase in one of our federal grants. This
will make up the remaining 16% of the lost revenue and the normal annual increases in personnel and
operations lessening the impact of this issue.

We have operated for a long time doing mostly the minimums or just what needed to be done. There has
been a strong push not to raise the local assessment given the past budget crisis. We have worked hard to
maintain the levels of service and a functioning emergency management office.

The Yakima Valley OEM represents, now without the City of Yakima, and serves the 13 cities, towns, and
Yakima County providing consolidated and coordinated emergency management services through the
Agreement for Emergency Management. The agreement was first signed in 1984 and updated in 2000.
YVOEM works with over 70 different jurisdictions, agencies, organizations, and private businesses to
provide this service. The Emergency Services Executive Board is the day to day governing body and
oversight for the organization. Your 2014 elected Executive Board Members are:

Rand Elliott Chair Yakima County Commissioner
Bill Lover CouncUman City ofYakima (Will need tobe replace January2015)
Jesse Farias Mayor City ofWapato
Loren Belton Mayor City ofToppenish
John Gawlik Mayor City ofSelah

The Executive Board is elected by the Emergency Services Council made up of the 13 mayors and 3
commissioners, in the valley. The election takes place at their annual meeting.

If there are any concerns or questions about this budget or any other issue please contact an Executive
Board Member or Jim Hall by e-mail iim.hall@co.vakima.wa.us or call Jim at 574-1904 office, 969-9905
cell, or 697-8724 home

Member Jurisdictions

Grandview, Granger, Harrah, Mabton, Moxee, Naches, Page 3 of 19
Selah, Sunnyside, Tieton, Toppenish, Union Gap, Wapato, Yakima County, Zillah



Fund

612

Act.#

Yakima Valley Office of Emergency Management

2015 Revenue Budget

Beginning Fund Balance
Reserves $25,000

Projected 2014 Ending Fund Balance $15,000
$40,000suD-totai Beginning Balance

Local Government (100)
110 Local Percapita Assessments $174,874

suD-totai Local Bovernment $174,874

State Funding (200)

210
EFSEC-

CGS

WashingtonState Energyfaciiity Site Evaiuation Councii (EFSEC)
Columbia Generating Station Pass through from State EMD $31,625

$31,625Sub-total state Funding

Federal Funding (300)

310
EMPG

Department of Homeiand Security Emergency Management
Program Grant Pass through from State $75,000

311
SHSP

Planning
Departmentof Homeiand Securityfunding Preparedness Pianning
Training and Exercise Pass through from Region #8 $41,500

312
SHSP

Equip
Department of Homeiand Security funding for Preparedness
equipment Pass through from State EMD $40,000

313 Biank for future use

314 Biank for future use

315
Health

Planning US DOH to State DOH to Yakima Health District Agreement $10,000

316 Biank Saved for Future Use
$166,500sub-total Federal Funding

Other Funding (400)

410
investment

Revenue

Investment Revenue from funds held by the Yakima County
Treasure $250

Sub-total utner i-unaing $250

Total 2015 Revenue Yakima Valley Office of Emergency

Total 2015 Expenditure Yakima Valley Office of Emergency

Ending Fund Balance

$413,249

$373,344

$39,905

Page 4 of 19



Fund

612

Act#

Yakima Valley Office of Emergency Management

2015 Expenditure Summary By Funding Source

Local Government (100)
110 Local Percapita Assessments

Employees $96,421

Benefits $27,253

Operations $54,046

Sub-total $177,720

Sub-total Local Funding Expenditures $177,720

state Funding (200)
210 EFSEC - CGS

Employees $19,568

Benefits $5,242

Operations $6,816

Sub-totai $31,625

Sub-total State Funding Expenditures $31,625

Federal Funding (300)
310 EMPG

Employees $40,431

Benefits $11,102

Operations $23,467
Sub-totai $75,000

311 SHSP 13 and 14 Planning

Employees $32,484

Benefits $7,136

Operations $1,880
Sub-total $41,500

312 SHSP 13 and 14 Equip

Employees $0

Benefits $0

Operations $40,000
Sub-totai $40,000

315 2014 Health District Planning

Employees $7,273

Benefits $1,920

Operations $807

Sub-total $10,000

Sub-total Federal Funding Expenditures $166,500

other Funding (400)
4** Interest $250

Sub-total

Sub-total Other Expenditures $250 $250

Employees Page 5 of 19



Fund

612

Act#

Position

Manager

Yakima Valley Office of Emergency Management

2015 Expenditure Summary By Funding Source

Salary

Benefits Retirement

Medical

Workers Comp

Statutory

Total Benefits

Total Cost of Employee

Benefits Salary Total Cost
$82,419

$0

$8,910

$384

$6,983

$16,277

$98,696
sr.

Program
$68,575Analyst Salary

Benefits Retirement $5,315

Medical $8,910

Workers Comp $384

Statutory $5,842

Total Benefils $20,451

Total Cost of Employee $89,026
Financial

Technlcia

n Salary $40,181

Beneflts Retirement $3,131

Medical $8,910

Workers Comp $384

Statutory $3,500

Total Benefits $15,925

Total Cost of Employee $56,106

Total Cost of Employee $243,828

Part Time On Call Help Employee Grant Funded $2,500

Total Part Time Help $2,500

Total Employees $246,328

Operations
Fund 612 Acct. # Operations Budgeted
3101 Office/Operating Supplies $9,328

3104 Printing $1,421

3201 Fuel $100

3501 Small Tools/Minor Equipment $2,400

3502 Software $900

3590 Small Attractive Tracked Inventory $500

4101 Professional Services $50,400

4125 Yakima County Indirect Costs $5,306

4191 Purchasing Services $821

4192 Information Services $13,235

4198 GIS $1,418

4199 Dept of Security $0

4201 Communications Telephone $0

4202 Communications Postage $600

4219 Phone Line Charges



Fund

612

Act#

Yakima Valley Office of Emergency Management

2015 Expenditure Summary By Funding Source

4301 Travel $1,619
4401 Advertising $100
4501 Operating Rental/Lease $3,087
4590 Facility Maintenance $32,022
4690 Liability Insurance $2,475

^ 4801 Repairs and Maintenance $250
4901 Miscellaneous $200

6401 Capital Expense $0

Total Funding from Revenue Summary $413,249

Total Operations Exp By GL Code $127,016
Total Employee Costs $246,328
Total OEM Expenditures $373,344
Expenditure difference between Funding Source and
Expenditure (Ending Fund Balance) $39,905
Total Operations By Acct Number $413,249

Page 7 of 19



Yakima Valley Office of Emergency Management
2015 Budget

Expenditure Budget Summary

Employees
Line Item

# Name Justification 2013

6121001 Manager Salary Projectedcost provided byYakima CountyHuman
Resources

$82,419

6122002 Benefits Projectedcost provided byYakima CountyHuman
Resources

$16,277

6121001 Sr. Program Analyst Projected cost provided by Yakima County Human
Resources

$68,575

6122002 Benefits Projected cost provided by Yakima County Human
Resources

$20,451

6121001 Financial Technician Projected cost provided byYakima CountyHuman
Resources

$40,181

6122002 Benefits Projected cost provided by Yakima CountyHuman
Resources

$15,925

6121003 Part Time / On Call Help This funding comes from the DHS Planning Grant. $2,500

Benefits There are no benefits paid for this position. $0

Total Salaries/Benefits Expenditures $246,328

Operations

6123101 Office & Operating
Supplies

This line Item fluctuates as we do exercises and other

activities.

$9,328

6123201 Fuel A small amount remains in this line item to support
operations of our generators

$100

6123104 Printing We find ourseives printing more public material than in
the past. Most of the funding comes from grant dollars
and is specific to an issue.

$1,421

6123501 Small Tools and Minor

Equipment
Funding is intended to purchase a computer and other
items

$2,400

6123502 Software Funding is used for software upgrades etc. $900

6123590 Small Attractive Tracked

Inventory
This item fluctuates significantlyas grant funding is
used to complete projects within the office

$500

6124101 Professional Services This iine item Is used to hire contractors etc. for training
and studies. This years large number Is from grant
funding and Is intended for a county wide notification

$50,400

6124191 Purchasing Services Dictated by Yakima County and fluctuates each year
depending on use.

$821

6124192 Information Services Funds provideour phone and data systems. Computer
and system maintenance

$13,235

6124198 GIS This line Item is required to access the GIS data from
the county. It provides incidentai maps etc withoutcost.

$1,418

6124201 Communications

Teiephone
Office staff continues to use their personai cell phones
for office use.

$0

6124202 Communications Postage This line item is largely driven by the grant deliverables $600

Page 8 of 19



6124219 Phone Line Charges 31 Phone lines @$5.25 per month plus any direct
charges per month The budgeted dollars are to pay for
the office phone lines. County Financial Services has
agreed to charge us $6.00 for 7 phones and $1.00 for
each additional 28 phone liines in the OAEOC that are
not often used.

$834

6124301 Travel This line item is used for out of town training and
meetings. It Is also used for reimbursement of mileage
and travel for office staff. We make every effort to
seek reimbursement from the DHS grants to recoup

$1,619

6124401 Advertising Remain the same as 2014 $100

6124501 Operating Rentals/Lease This funding is for the OEM vehicle. 53 cents per mile
it includes fuel, car washes, and maintenance. A
portion of the cost is recoverable from grant funds.

$3,087

6124590 Facility Space rental at the Yakima County Resource Center $32,022

6124690 Liability insurance Liabllitv Insurance for YVOEM through Yakima County $2,475

6124801 Repairs & Maintenance These funds are used to repair office equipment etc. $250
6124125 Yakima County indirect

Costs.

These funds provide financial services and HR from
Yakima County

$5,306

6124901 Miscellaneous No change to this line item $200

6126401 Capital Expense There are no Capital Expenditures planned for 2015 $0

Total Operating Budgeted Expenditures $127,016

Page 9 of 19



Yakima Valley Office of Emergency Management
Five -Year Expenditure Comparison

Account Revenue
612

77648 Director Salary

2011 2012 2013 2014 2014

$75,735 $75,735 $78,429 $77,648 $82,419

Benefits $14,691 $14,691 $15,753 $15,597 $16,277

Senior Program Analyst
$68,575Salary $63,136 $63,136 $65,848 $65,185

Benefits $18,114 $18,114 $20,084 $19,884 $20,451

Financial Technician Salary $37,018 $37,018 $43,249 $38,396 $40,181

Benefits $14,209 $14,209 $16,377 $15,488 $15,925

Part Time and On Call Help
Grant Funded $23,250 $23,250 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500

Benefits $0 $0

Total

Salary/Benefits/Gvertlme $246,153 $246,153 $242,240 $234,698 $246,328

612Operating 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

3101 Office &Operating Supplies 11138 9938 13977 11362 9328

3104 Printing 3750 2000 3750 1022 1421

3201 Fuel 100 100 ICQ 100 100

3501 Small Tools 127250 67703 31759 31000 2400

3502 Software 10943 750 1000 1200 900

3590 Small Att Tracked Inventory 3000 2000 2000 900 500

4101 Professional Services 25849 1S585 6377 400 50400

4125 Yakima Co Indirect Costs 3150 4832 4612 5461 5306

4191 Purchasing Services 102 1455 751 650 821

4192 Information Services 19706 23592 13,725 14,275 13,235

4198 GIS 1,271 1271 1,321 1,629 1,418

4199 Dept of Security 0 3683 0 0 0

4201 Communications Telephone 2901 2901 2,901 250 0

4202 Communications Postage 1750 1750 1,500 1,500 600

4219 Phone Line Charges 0 1953 729 850 834

4301 Travel 4600 4100 3,801 1,332 1,619

4401 Advertisement 500 500 500 100 100

4501 Operab'ng/Rentals/Leases 5000 5000 5,000 3,250 3,087

4590 Facility Maintenance 27921 26565 41,748 31,368 32,022

4690 Liability Insurance 5714 3731 3,209 2,079 2,475

4801 Repairs/Maintenance 1000 1000 750 500 250

4901 Miscellaneous 500 500 500 250 200

6401 Capital Expense 98000 20000 0 0 0

I otai uperating $354,145 $201,909 $140,010 $109,478 $127,016

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Total Expenditures YVOEM $600,298 $448,062 $382,250 $344,176 $373,344

10 of 19



This Is our local Jurisdiction assessment funding. Itfunds the largest portions of three positions InOEM. They are the FinancialTech, Senior
Program Analyst, and the Manager. At the present time we us EMPG, CGS, and Health District funding to pay a portion of cost for these
positions

Account #110 Local Jurisdiction Assessments

Account# 110 Revenue

2012 2013 2015

City/
Town 2011 Pop

Reduction &

Return to Per

Capita 2012 Pop

Option #2
6.5% Increase

to maintain

Helga Staffan
Part Time 2013 Pop

Jurisdiction

Assessment

2.5 %

increase 2014 Pop

Jurisdiction

Assessment

50 % increase

Assessment 0.6855 0.7301 0.7484 1.123

Grandview 10,920 $7,486 11,000 $8,031 11,010 $8,240 11,170 $12,544

Granger 3,270 $2,242 3,285 $2,398 3,315 $2,481 3,495 $3,925

Harrah 630 $432 650 $475 645 $483 645 $724

Mabton 2,290 $1,570 2,290 $1,672 2,305 $1,725 2,310 $2,594

Moxee 3,415 $2,341 3,505 $2,559 3,655 $2,735 3,720 $4,178

Naches 805 $552 805 $588 805 $602 815 $915

Selah 7,205 $4,939 7,290 $5,322 7,340 $5,493 7,395 $8,305

Sunnyslde 16,010 $10,975 16,130 $11,777 16,200 $12,124 16,230 $18,226

Tieton 1,195 $819 1,195 $872 1,235 $924 1,255 $1,409

Toppenlsh 8,950 $6,135 8,950 $6,534 8,950 $6,698 8,955 $10,056

Union Gap 6,055 $4,151 6,105 $4,457 6,110 $4,573 6,140 $6,895

Wapato 5,025 $3,445 5,030 $3,672 5,035 $3,768 5,040 $5,660

Yaklma 91,630 $62,812 91,930 $67,118 92,620 $69,317 xxxx xxxx

Yakima

County 84,300 $57,788 84,800 $61,912 84,910 $63,547 85,410 $95,915

Zlllah 3,000 $2,057 3,035 $2,216 3,115 $2,331 3,140 $3,526

Pop/Revenue 244,700 $167,742 246,000 $179,605 247,250 $185,042 155,720 $174,874

Pop Change 1,300 1,250 -91,530
$ Change $0 $11,863 $5,437 -$10,168

Page 11 of 19



Account# 110 Expenditures (Local Assessments)

Contract Funds Budgeted for 2015
Salaries $96,421
Benefits $27,253
Good & Ser $54,046

Employees

diff

$177,720 -$2,846
Budget
$ 174,674

Remainder after EMPG & CGS

Position Salaries

48%

Benefits

Manager Salary
Benefits

$82,419
$16,277

$39,561
$7,813

46%

Sr. Prog
Analyst Salary

Benefits

$68,575
$20,451

$31,545
$9,407

63%

Financial

Technician Salary
Benefits

$40,181
$15,925

$25,314
$10,033

Total Cost of Employee
Total Budgeted

Operations
Fund 612 _

AcctZIO OPA"*'""'
3101 Office/Operating Supplies
3104 Printing
3201 Fuei

3501 Smail Tools/Minor Equipment
3502 Software

3590 Smali Attractive Tracked
4101 Professional Services
4125 Yaklma County Indirect Cost
4191 Purchasing Services
4192 Information Services

4198 GIS

4199 Dept of Security
4201 Communications Telephone
4202 Communications Postage
4219 Phone Lines

4301 Travel

4401 Advertising
4501 Operating Rental/Lease
4590 Facility Maintenance
4690 LiabilityInsurance
4801 Repairs and Maintenance
4901 Miscellaneous
6401 Capital Expense

Total Operations

Budgeted

$2,524

$500
$100

$2,400
$400
$500
$400

$5,306
$821

$9,735
$1,218

$0
$0

$500
$834
$500
$100

$2,500
$22,783

$2,475
$250
$200

$0

$54,U4ti

Page 12 of 19



Account #210 EFSEC - CGS Funding

Thisis funding provided bythe nuclearpowerplanton the Hanford Reservation. Itis pass through money from the
Washington State Military Department through the Emergency Management Division. Their cyclestarts July 1 and ends
June 30 of each year.

Revenue

Contract Funds Budgeted for 2014
Salaries $19,568
Benefits $5,242
Good & Services $8,816

$31,625
diff

$0
Budget
$31,625.00

Exoenditures

Employees Salaries Benefits

Position 10% 10%

Manager Salary $82,419 $8,242 $1,628
Benefits $16,277

m:
Sr.

Program
Analyst Salary

Benefits

Financial

Technician Salary

Benefits

Total Cost of Employee

$68,575
$20,451

$40,181

$15,925

$8,915

6%

$2,411

$2,659

6%

$956

Total Budgeted $19,568 $5,242 $24,809

Operations
Fund 612

Acct210 Operations Budgeted
3101 Office/Operating Supplies $500
3104 Printing $221
3201 Fuel $0
3501 Small Tools/Minor Equipment $0
3502 Software $500
3590 Small Attractive Tracked Inventory $0
4101 Professional Services $0
4191 Purchasing Services $0
4192 Information Services $0
4198 GIS $200
4201 Communications Telephone $0
4202 Communications Postage $0
4301 Travel $769
4401 Advertising $0
4501 Operating Rental/Lease $587

4590 Facility Maintenance $4,039
4690 Liability Insurance $0
4801 Repairs and Maintenance $0
4901 Miscellaneous $0
6401 Capital Expense $0

Total Operations $6,816

Page 13 of 19



Account #310 Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG)

The Emergency Management Performance Grant is provided from Homeiand Security passed through the Washington
State Miiitary Department. The funding is intended to support our operating budget in aneffort to enhance our
Emergency Management Program. It comes with a significant iist of deiiverabies that support our operation.

Revenue

Contract Funds Budgeted for 201S
Saiaries

Benefits

Good & Ser

$40,431
$11,102
$23,467

$75,000
•iff

$0 Grant $'s $75,000

Employees

Position

Manager Salary
Benefits

$82,419
$16,277

21%

% Salaries V

$17,308

21%

BBenefits

$3,418

22% 22%

% Salaries % Benefits

Sr.

Program
Analyst Salary

Benefits

$68,575
$20,451

$15,087 $4,499

20% 20%

Financial

Technician Salary

Benefits

Total Cost of Employee

$40,181

$15,925

% Salaries 1

$8,036

fa Benefits

$3,185

Total Budgeted $40,431 $11,102

Operations
Fund 612

Acct310

3101

Operations

Office/Operating Supplies
3104 Printing
3201 Fuei

3501 Smail Toois/Minor Equipment
3502 Software

3590 Smali Attractive Tracked Inventory
4101 Professional Services

4191 Purchasing Services
4192 Information Services

4198 GIS

4201 Communications Telephone
4202 Communications Postage
4301 Travel

4401 Advertising
4501 Operating Rental/Lease
4590 Facility Maintenance
4690 Liability Insurance
4801 Repairs and Maintenance
4901 Miscellaneous
6401 CapitalExpense

Total Operations

Budgeted
$4,167

$600

$0

$0
$0
$0

$10,000
$0

$3,500
$0

$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$5,200
$0

$0
$0
$D

$23,467

Page 14 of 19



Revenue

Account #311 State Homeland Security Program

Regional Planning. Exercise, and Training

funding from Homeland Security Region #8

Contract Funds Budgeted for 2015
Salaries $32,484
Benefits $7,136
Good&Ser $1,880

$41,500
Difference
$0

Grant Doilars

$41,500

Exoenditures

Employees Salaries Benefits

Position 18% 18%

Manager Salary
Benefts

$82,419
$16,277

$14,835 $2,930

12% ^2Vo
Sr. Prgm
Analyst Salary

Benefits

$68,575
$20,451

$8,229 $2,454

Financial

Technician Saiary $40,181 11% 11%

Benefits $15,925 $4,420 $1,752

Part Time On Call Help Employee Grant Funded $2,500 $ 2,500

Total

Salaries $32,484
Total

Benefits $7,136

Operations
Fund 612

Acct311 Operations Budgeted

3101 Offlce/Operating Supplies $1,480
3104 Printing $100

3201 Fuel $0

3501 Small Tools/Minor Equipment $0

3502 Software $0

3590 Small Attractive Tracked $0

4101 Professional Services $0

4191 Purchasing Services $0

4192 information Services $0

4198 GIS $0

4201 Communications Telephone $0

4202 Communications Postage $100

4301 Travel $200

4401 Advertising $0
4501 Operating Rental/Lease $0

4590 Facility Maintenance $0

4690 Liability Insurance $0

4801 Repairs and Maintenance $0

4901 Miscellaneous $0
6401 Capital Expense $0

Total Operations $i,8d0

Page 15 of 19



Account# 312 SHSP Equipment State EMD Federal

Homeland Security provides this funding to prevent, deter, respond toand recover from acts ofterrorism. The funding
comes to usthrough the State Homeiand Security Program (SHSP) It isprovided to provide unique needs for our
community. Thisfunding has deminished significantiy overthe iast few years.

Revenue

Contract Funds Budgeted for 2015
Saiaries $0
Benefits $0
Operations $40,000

Expenditures

Operations
Fund 612

Acct312 Operations

3101 Office/Operating Supplies
3104 Printing
3201 Fuel

3501 Small Tools/Minor Equipment
3502 Software

3590 Small Attractive Tracked Inventory
4101 Professional Services

4191 Purchasing Services
4192 Information Services

4198 CIS

4201 Communications Telephone
4202 Communications Postage
4301 Travel

4401 Advertising
4501 Operating Rental/Lease
4590 Facility Maintenance
4690 Liability Insurance
4801 Repairs and Maintenance
4901 Miscellaneous

6401 Capital Expense

FFY13

$0
FFY14

$40,000

Estimated 2015 employee cost

Total Operations

Totai Bgt
$40,000

$0

Budgeted
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0

$40,000
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$40,000

Page 16 of 19



Account# 315 Yakima Health District Planning

This is an interiocai agreement between the YakimaValley Office of Emergency Management and the Yakima Health
District. The agreement specifiesan hourly rate which includes office space, phone, computer, supervision and support
from OEM. This years deliverables will Include a reviewof the districts response plan a Table Top Exercise and the
continued review of the Stratigic National Stockpile plan (SNS).
Revenue

•Iff

Contract Funds Budgeted for 2015 $10,000 $10,000 $0
Salaries $7,273
Benefits $1.920
Operating Costs $807
Management and Admin $0

Expenditures

Employees

3%

Manager Salary $82,419 $2,473
Benefits $16,277 $488

7%

Sr. Prgm
Analyst Salary

Benefits

$68,575 $4,800
$20,451 $1,432

Total Salaries $7,273
Total Benefits $1,920

Operations
f-und 612

Acct315 Operations Budgeted

3101 Office/Operating Supplies $657
3104 Printing $0

3201 Fuel $0

3501 Small Tools/Minor Equipment $0

3502 Software $0
3590 Small Attractive Tracked Inventory $0

4101 Professional Services $0

4191 Purchasing Services $0
4192 Information Services $0
4198 GIS $0
4201 Communications Telephone $0
4202 Communications Postage $0

4301 Travel $150
4401 Advertising $0

4501 Operating Rental/Lease $0
4590 Facility Maintenance $0

4690 Liability Insurance $0

4801 Repairs and Maintenance $0
4901 Miscellaneous $0
6401 Capital Expense $0

Total Operations $807

Page 17 of 19



Totals By Account

Salaries
Benefits
Operations

Totals from

Expentiture Sheet

Percent of

Employee
Salaries

Jim
Charles

Lisa

Benefits

Jim
Charles

Lisa

FedSHSP FedSHSP

Local State Fed EMPG Planning Equip Fed Health
110 210 310 311 312 315

$96,420.74 $19,567.51 $40,430.69 $32,484.33 SQ.OO $7.272.82
$27,253.17 $5,241.83 $11,102.39 $7,135.73 $0.00 $1,919.88
$54,046.00 $6,816.00 $23,467.00 $1,880.00 $40,000.00 $807.00

$196,176.09
$52,653.00

$127,016.00

$375,845.09

$248,829.09

$248,829.09

Page 19 of 19



Valnkna VatNiy

The Insider
Yakima Valley Office ofEmergency Management

December through August

Insider Newsletters



Y»ktrM V«ll*y

The Insider
Yakima Valley Office ofEmergency Management

December 2013 Newsletter Issue #21

The Valley Preparing
for Catastrophic Flood Event

OAEOC - Activation for a catastrophic flood
response. Forty-one ofTiciais responded to the
Operational Area Emergency Operations Center
(OAEOC) January 10,2013 to manage the effects
of a simulated flood event. We seldom see a major
flood here but we have potential every season.

The exercise provided a great opportunity for
OAEOC staff to update and familiarize themselves
with the new facility, checklists, and equipment
available. The Flood Control Zone District

provided an update on their monitoring and
response thresholds

The primary objective of the brief exercise was the
orientation of information sharing and
dissemination systems. The After Action Report
pointed out the need to further evaluate and test
these systems more directly. Discussions during the
exercise provided a potential solution: develop and
present a Full Scale Exercise where people are sent
to known flood problem areas to gather information
and report the information back to a central
location. Once received, the infonnation would be

assimilated into a report for dissemination to area
officials.

The After Action Report and Improvement Plan is
available at OEM if further details are needed.
(Anicic by Jim Hall OEM Director 574-1904)

Comprehensive Emergency
Management Program (CEMP)

Emergency Management - The process continues
with Charles Erwin making direct contact with
many of the stakeholders gathering input on the
plan. We are on schedule to send our updated plan
to State Emergency Management for approval by
mid-January. Once approved, we anticipate taking
the program/plan to the governing bodies of each of
our member jurisdictions. The program/plan is an

RCW required document for each
jurisdiction in the state. The final
promulgation should start in late
February - early March. Over 170
CEMP packets were mailed to various
stakeholders in the valley requesting
review and comment. Some very
good changes have been broughta forward so far. If you have comments
get them to Charles Erwin 509-574-

Charles.erwin@co.yakima, wa.us.

Cities and Towns receive

Direct Support on EM

Yakima Valley - Charles Erwin,
Senior Program Analyst for Yakima OEM, is
spending a great deal of time assisting local cities
and towns with their Emergency Management
Program. He has been focusing on the development
of their Emergency Coordination Center and the
Comprehensive Emergency Management Program

Charles has visited the Cities of Grandview,
Yakima, Selah, Tieton, Toppenish, and Wapato.
All are working at improving their capabilities to
manage the affects of a major emergency or



disaster. This activity is seen as a very positive
thing. As Snoopy says "Five minutes before the
party is not the time to leam to dance" Kudos to
those working on this. (Jim HaJi 574-1904)

ESD 105 School Superintendents
get Exercise Demonstration

ESD 105 Service Area - Working from the
successes of the Selah School District, a couple of
years ago, and Zillah School District, this year:
Table Top Exercises. Approximately 30 people
from the ESD 105 service area assembled for the

demonstration on the effectiveness of a Table Top
Exercise in preparing school officials and staff for a
major emergency or disaster in their facilities.

The presentation was well received with a number
of officials contacting Randy Town ESD's School
Safety Officer about the possibility of presenting an
exercise in their district. A meeting is scheduled to
determine how many exercises could be done with
the available resources.

Additionally the same presentation was provided to
the School Administrators Conference November

23,2013 in Belleview. It was well received there as
well.

Will Your People BE THERE when
the Balloon Goes Up?

Yakima Valley - We practice emergencies and
disasters and we look at what impacts they will
have on our communities. In our own mind inside

our sphere of control, we have a plan to attack tlie
problem and in no time we will be back to normal.
We have done it before we call out our crews and

they solve the problem. "What If we called and
the crews couldn't come? Their house is damaged,
the lights are out, its cold, their family is in need. If
you look at other overwhelming events that have
occurred in the nation this is a common occurrence.

We in government are asked/should have a
Continuity of Operations Plan (COOP). For the
most part 1think jurisdictions, agencies, etc. have at
least thought about it. What will we do to maintain
our mission in a catastrophic overwhelming event?
An element of a continuity plan is how our people
will be able to come and or get to work.

A catastrophic unthinkable event is overwhelming
by its nature. Not having a reasonable plan or
system to deal with the affects will make the event
even more overwhelming and increase the impact to

yourjurisdiction,your sphere of control, and your
mission

This article is food for thought. If you have not
thought about, talked about, or taken any action to
prepare yourpeople to "BE THEREwhen the
balloon goes up then it is time you did. The goal of
any emergency management program is to return to
normal as soon as possible. Without people it is
hard to respond yet alone recover from an
overwhelming event.

There are many publications and other information
that could help your jurisdiction, business, etc. If
you would like to developa Continuity of
Operations Plan please contact Yakima OEM 574-
1900. We can help
(article by Jim Hall 574-1904)

Special Event Planning Course
to be Offered By OEM

Yakima Valley - There is still time to register for the
January courses. Answers to questions and registration
are available by contacting Lisa Truhlicka at 574-1903
or e-mail lisa.truhlicka@co.vakima.wa.us.

Exercises and Training Completed

ESD 105 Superintendents Exercise Design Overview
and Demonstration - October 17,2013

Washington State School Administrators Conference
Table Top Exercise Overview November 23,2013

Future Exercises and Training:

Flood Response Information Gathering and
Dissemination Exercise: Early January

Special Event Planning Seminar -January 22, 2014
from 0930 to 1530 hrs work hours -January 22-23, 2014
in the evening from 1800 to 2030 evenings, Contact
Lisa Truhlicka at 509-574-1903 or

lisa.truhlicka(gco.yakima.wa.us

Operational Area Emci^cncy Operations Center
Staff Training. January 2013 thru March 2014

The Emergency Management Staff

OE.M Starr

- Charles Erwin Senior

Program Analyst
- Jim Hall Director

• Helga StaJTan Homeland
Security Planner
- Lisa Truhlicka

Administrative Assistant



The Insider
Yakima Valley Office ofEmergency Management

February 2014 Newsletter Issue #22

Advantages of Our Consolidated
Emergency Management System

We have a great environment here in the Valley.
Our history tells us that we don't have major
emergencies or disasters very often. Our response
systems do an outstanding job in dealing with the
emergencies we see
on a "normar'basis.

What we do not see

event^either alarge

spill, amajor earth .4<r'r
quake on the western side of the state occurs the
systems behind the scene need to be in place and
functioning if we as government are to do what is
expected of us. One expectation is largely those we
in government work together to solve the issues
regardless of how monumental they are.

The Yakima Valley Office of Emergency
Management is a consolidated system. Each ofour
fifteen political jurisdictions in the valley
participates. What this means is we have one
comprehensive emergency management plan. It is
coordinated and standardized for each jurisdiction.
When we train or exercise we do it together with
multiplejurisdictions, agencies, and departments
participating. People get to know each other and
work together to solve problems. Some say that
emergency management is about relationships and
knowing the people involved before you need them
in a disaster. We believe this to be true in every
sense.

The leadership of each of our jurisdictions in the
valley needs to be commended for their vision and
willingness to be part of a system that works. Our
system is looked at as a model ofa cost effective
best practice for an emergency management system
in the state. (jimHaii 574-1904)

County Wide Alert and Warning
System Planning Resumes

About a year ago we began research on a
notification system that would be capable of
notifying each household with a phone line ofan
occurring or pending emergency. The system will
need the capability for each jurisdiction to have
their own portion to manage and use to notify their
citizen's, responders, elected officials, and other
individuals. The system would also allow citizens
to sign up for alerts and warning on their cell phone,
e-mail, pager, etc.

While doing this research we leamed there are a
bunch of vendors claiming theirs is the best. We
looked at a couple of system and have talked to
people who are using them. There seems to be a
large window on capabilities and pricing so further
research is needed.

We have had several other pressing issues on the
table so this project has been in donnant for a few
months. We now will be moving it forward in
hopes of identifying who could use a system and
how can we pay for it. By the first of March our
jurisdictions, cities, towns, county, schools, fire
districts, and others will receive a letter identifying
a potential system's capabilities and a short survey
asking some basic questions about need, use, and
funding. If there is consensus the valley would
benefit from a system we will move forward to
identifying how we might pay for it. A
consolidated system is much less expensive than
purchasing separate systems for each.

We believe a notification system in our
technological age is an emergency management best
practice as well as its day to day uses. We are one
of the few larger populated counties that has not
acquired a system More information as we move
forward. (Jim uaii574-1904)

City of Selah & The Selah School
District Full Scale Exercise

Planning is underway for a Full Scale Exercise at
one of the Selah School Districts facilities in the



City of Selah. ThePlanning team has been selected
and will meet this week to develop the scope of
activity, a scenario, and whoneeds to play in the
exercise. The exercise date is tentatively scheduled
for early Junejust after school lets out to include
more school district players.

We will attemptget the most from this exercise by
inviting other school district personnel and
responders from otherjurisdictions to assistwith or
observe exercise activity.

Flood Control Zone District

Mitigating the Hazards
The Yakima County Water Resource Division
Flood Control Zone District has been working on
multiple mitigation projects to lessen the impact of
high water and flooding events in the valley. Some

^ of the major

environmental

issues as well. The levee set back on the Yakima

River at Hwy 24.

We spent some time with Terry Keenhan the
Surface Water Manager who was very upbeat about
the projects and the mitigation they bring to areas
that have seen significant problems in years past.
Kudos to the Surface Water folks for their hard
work and dedication in making it better for all of us.
Thank You!

If you would like to see more information on their
projects and activities visit their website at
http://www.vakimacountv.us/SurfaceWater/Flood

Control Proiects/Map.pdf

Local Emergency Planning
Committee (LEPC)

OAEOC - February 11,2014, 52 attendees
representing 29 anhydrous ammonia-user facilities;
emergency responders and other community groups
participated in the annual meeting and training
exercise.

Charles Erwin the LEPC Chair said the focus of the

meeting was on emergency planning for a major

release of ammonia which would impact a
community. Three fundamental questionswere
addressed: How prepared do we need to be, How

The information was well received by those in
attendance.

Community Wildland Fire
Protection Plan (CWPP)

Workshop
Yakima - January 30, 2014, Yakima Fire
Marshal's Office along with its state, federal, and
community partnershosted a workshop to discuss
the potential of updating the County Wideand Hwy
12 -410 CWPP's. The plans written a few years
back with involvement for citizens, responders and
other government officials are in need of review and
update. Presenters from otherareas of the state
from private, local, stateand federal agencies talked
about their successes and challenges with plan
development and community involvement. Future
planning meetings are scheduled.

Exercises and Training Completed
Flood Response Information Gathering and
Dissemination Exercise: Early January

Special Event Planning Seminar -January 22, 2014
from 0930 to 1530 hrs work hours - The evening classes
were canceled due to lack of students.

Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC)
Annual meeting and training

Future Exercises and Training
Operational Area Emergency Operations Center
Staff Training. January2013 thru March2014
Selah School District Full Scale Exercise June 2014

The Emergency Management Staff

OEM Stuff
- Charles Erwin Senior

' TlK3 Program Analyst
^ -JimHall Director

-ne'^Slaffan Homeland
Security Planner

.1 - Lisa Truhlicka
HRAdm(nistxative Assistant

fm



Yitklma V»>k«y /

The Insider
Yakima Valley Office ofEmergency Management

April 2014 Newsletter Issue #23

Comprehensive Emergency
Management Program (CEMP)

Yakima County - After a yearlong review, our
CEMP has received its final approval by the State
Military Department Emergency Management
Division. The CEMP is our strategic plan of action
in a major emergency or disaster. It is the parent
document for every subsequent emergency response
plan.

RCW 38.52 requires each local jurisdiction to have
an emergency response plan with WAC 118.30
identifying the plan requirements. As a consortium
in Yakima County , —.
we make this ^

hWtt-kvb^ntOAtf

process cost '
effective by having
one strategic plan
and providing
implementation -Klfl TTBBjCT
guidance through
our Community
Emergency
Response System or
CEMS. CEMS provides individual checklists for
local city/county elected officials, department
heads, and other officials.

The final step in completing the review and update
of the CEMP is the promulgation or adoption of the
plan by each of the member jurisdictions and other
governing bodies in the valley. This process will
begin soon with a request for adoption going to
each of the cities, towns, and the county.
Additionally we will be asking each fire district,
school district, the Sheriff, and other elected
officials to adopt the plan.

We have also created an interactive CD containing
the plans many parts. In addition to the adoption
the plan will be distributed to other community
leaders and responders. If you a need and would
like a copy contact Lisa Tmhlicka at 509-574-1903

Emergency Management takes on
Heavy Exercise Schedule

OEM ~ Emergency Management has taken on a

hours to facilitate,
plan for, develop, and present a good Table Top
exercise. Full Scale Exercises can take much longer
depending on how involved they are. See Future
Exercises and Training on the next page for a list of
our schedule.

The schedule has two full scale and two table top
exercises that we will facilite. We will also be

participating in one functional exercise facilitated
by Region #8 Health. There will also be several
smaller exercise including two or three notification
drills, one or two Joint Information System Drills,
and Columbia Generating Station (COS) Food
Control Drills.

These exercises are in addition to the planning
needs of the cities, towns, and county. The
schedule will certainly keep the office busy and
make the summer move by quickly.

Homeland Security Funding to go
to SWAT Team Communications

Yakima - The Yakima Police •

Department Special Weapons I
and Tactics (SWAT) Team
received approval from the jHmv
local Stakeholders Grant

Review Group for aportion of Hg|
their Communications

Enhancement Project. The ^pPfl
total grant funding just over



$31,000 is about half the cost of the project. The City
ofYakimahas agreedto fund the other half. The
team's currentportable radios, purchased with
Homeland Security dollars a few years back are
outdated and unserviceable.

The SWAT Team has become a county wide team
with two members coming from the Sheriffs Office,
two members from Union Gap PD, and one member
from Grandview FD. The team responds county wide
and is a mutual aid partner with other teams in Central
Washington.

There were three other projects submitted. They
included; City of Toppenish a repeater enhancement
project. City of Selah Emergency Coordination Center
communications tower project, and City of Yakima
Fire Department Tri County Hazmat Team Biohazard
Monitoring equipment. Bachproject very worthwhile
but not enough funding.

The funding request now goes to the Emergency
Services Executive Board for final local approval and
then on to the state and Homeland Security for final
approval and funding the project.

EMS and 911 Dispatch
Union Gap - There seems to be a steady stream of
people lookingat the unused portionof the Yakima
County Resource Center. The center is located at
2403 South 18^ Street in Union Gap. Potential
tenants, engineers, architects, etc. have made the tour
developing the plans for the Yakima County
Department of Emergency Medical Services and
SunComm 911 Dispatch to move to the new location.
Plans are reaching their final version as the project
should go to bid later this year.

School Safety Advisory Workgroup
Continues to Meet

Started in response to the SandyHook school shooting
back east school officials, local police, fire, and otiiers
continue to meet on a regular basis. The School
Safety Advisory Workgroup agenda items include
facility safety, grants available to promote safety,
lessons learned. Planning, technology, safety
strategies, exercises, etc. The goal of the group is to
promote safety for the kids in our local schools,
identifycapabilities and share information aboutwhat
works well and what may need improvement. Randy
Town Educational Service District (BSD) 105
facilitates the meetings tliat have brought significantly
greater understanding between school officials and
emergency responders. The work completed by this
group is clearly providing a safer environment for our
children in the valley.

Yakima County CWPP Plan
Review Begins

Local, State, and Federalpartners in the Yakima
County Community Wildfire Protection Plan(CWPP)a have joined forces

and are meeting on a
regular basis. The
groups plan is to
review and update the
2005 and 2008 CWPP

for Yakima County.

CWPP's are

developed to identify
and mitigate the
hazards presented by

a wildland fire. As our population grows more people
live in the urban interface where development meets
wildland vegetation. This vegetation can often bum
out ofcontrol creating a risk to homes and structures.
The CWPP encourages homeowners and others to
work at fuel reduction and buffer zones around their
homes and structures. In some cases there is grant
funds available for these mitigation projects.

Exercises and Training Completed
• Notification Drill 2-25-2014 AAR-IP Available

• Columbia Generating Station (COS) Food Control
Area Drill 3-11-2014

Future Exercises and Training
Region #8 Health Functional Exercise May 14,
2014. Facilitated by Region US Health.

Selah School District Full Scale Active Shooter
Exercise June 9,2014 Facilitate by YVOEM

ValleyMall SimpleTableTop Active Shooter
Exercise (TTX) July 10, 2014 Facilitated by
YVOEM

Yakima Air Terminal Table Top Exercise Early
September 2014

ValleyMall Full ScaleActiveShooterExercise Mid
October. Facilitated by YVOEM

The Emergency Management Staff

OEM Staff

- Charles Erwin Senior

Program Analyst
-Jim Hall Director

• Hel^Staffan Homeland
Security Planner-
Temporally laid off
- LisaTruhlicka
Administrative Assistant



Y»kuna V*>k»y

The Insider
Yakima Valley Office ofEmergency Management

June 2014 Newsletter Issue §24

Selah Armed Intruder

Full Scale Exercise

Sclah - The scenario we chose is being played out much
too often these days. An armed person enters the school
and shoots anyone in the area. Adult, child it seems to
make no difference. Obviously preventing these events
is the preferred concept, but living in a free society this
is not always possible. Knowing this we must prepare
our school systems for an event such as this hoping we
never need to use what we have learned.

•..•r ~

June9,2014, the City of Selah and Selah School District
took a giant step in preparing their city and school
system for such an event. The scenario played out with
a man who had lost custody of his daughter and went to
the school to take her by force with the intentions of
leaving the area. He went with a gun and simulated
using it on the several school staffand students. Many
of the individuals simulated being shot were moulaged
with simulated injuries with appropriate body damage
and blood to provide a realistic scene for responders to
react to. The scenario used approximately 80 actors to
play various roles. The actors in addition to the bad guy,
school staffand students, actors played worried parents,
media reporters, and simulated numerous phone calls to
the various agencies and departments that participated in
the exercise.

The exercise can be looked at as a huge success.
Although there were minor glitches with some of the
simulations things went very well. Local police and
their mutual aid partners responded and within five
minutes of receiving the call the suspect was neutralized.
Local Fire and EMS responders aided the injured.

Students were transported to the Selah High School for
reunification with their parents.

The different agencies playing or helping with this
exercise included:

• Selah School District

• Selah Intennediate School

• Selah Police Department
• Selah Fire Department
• Selah City Emergency Coordination Center
• Selah Public Works

• Yakima Sheriffs OlTice Dispatch Center
• SunComm9)l

• Yakima Regional Hospital and Cardiac Center
• Toppenish Community Hospital
• Zillah Police Department
• Toppenish Police Department
• Advanced Life Systems
• American Medical Response
• Yakima County EMS OfTice
• Wa-shington State Patrol
• Citizen Volunteers (Actors)

• Yakima Valley Office ofEmergency Management

group of observers from

the scenario unfolded and i

After the experience

School shooting and other \
events law enforcement \ - - -
changed the way they respond to these events. To
implement this new protocol the Yakima County Sheriff
and Police Chiefs Association implemented a training
and equipment program for officers here in the valley.
The goal is to train and equip each officer in the county
in this new protocol and needed equipment. Available
funding through Homeland Security Grants and local
budgets was used. The Sheriff and Police Chiefs
Association, Chief Dave Simmons Zillah PD, Lt Brian
Winters Yakima Sheriffs Office, and many others were
the driving force behind the implementation of this
program.

Thanks to all of the actors and other that made this

exercise possible. Your time and effort is greatly
appreciated.



Communications

A Tool To Help Make it Better
Radio Cache Available for Use

YVOEM - When a major event occurs the one thing we
always see in the After Action Reports is a problem with
communications. Someone did not get the information
they needed when they needed it and a poor or no
decision was made on a problem, usually having
compounding effects on the response to the event.

To help with this issue the Yakima Valley Office of
Emergency Management has acquired through several
Homeland Security Grants two nineteen radio each radio
caches. These radios are available for use on major
emergencies,

community events
the valley. The

radios; Motorola
XTS 2500s are

analog and digital
They are

the

common

frequencies used by law enforcement and the fire
service.

We are working on a plan to move one of the caches to
the Fire District #5 Dispatch in the lower valley making
it more accessible when and where it may be needed.
The other cache will remain with Emergency
Management in the upper valley.

If you have a need for the radio cache, contact the
Emergency Management Office 574-1900.

How do we stay prepared when
budgets have so many priorities?

Disaster management (or emergency management) is
the effort ofcommunities or businesses to plan for and
coordinate personal and materials required to either
mitigate the effects of, or recover from, natural or man-
made disasters, or acts of terrorism

in a Utopian world where everything is perfect we would
have mitigated a large percentage of the risks we have.
We would be ready with personnel, equipment, facilities,
etc. for anything and everything that could possibly
happen to the Yakima Valley. Unfortunately this level
of preparedness would be cost prohibitive. So, we work
at being prepared and having the systems in place to
mitigate, prepare for, respond to, and recover from our
identified hazards. We have taken an all hazard

approach, meaning there is a single strategic plan to
respond to any overwhelming event we might have.

In the last few years the government budget crisis has
affected our ability to reach a level ofpreparedness
needed to be ready for that overwhelming event. Yes we

have the plan. Yes the checklists are in place, The thing
that is missing is the people who will need to have the
experience to understand what is happening and what
will need to happen to reduce the suffering of citizen and
return our community back to normal as soon as
possible.

We must have a mindset that the overwhelming
emergency or disasterwill happen. Maybe not
tomorrow but sooner or later we will see an event in the

valley that will be unthinkable and overwhelming.
Officials who have the responsibility to make decisions
need to participate in trainingand exercisesnot send
their underlings. The Yakima Valley Is blessed in many
ways. We do not have major emergencies or disasters
veryoften. This is a great thing. Howeverwhen we do
we will be a little inexperienced in how to deal with it.
We will sec peoplemake comments in the aftermath, "1
sure didn't think that could happen" or "That's never
happened before". Then the finger pointingbeginsand
so on. To give this a little perspective think back a
month or two to the SR 530 Landslide in Snohomish
County and some of the first official comments tliat were
made to the media. They felt the area was safe and
nothing like what happened could happen. Food for
thought. B)'JiiT<HallS74.|9»l

Exercises and Training Completed
May 14, 2014 Region #8 Health Functional
Exercise. Facilitated by Region #8 Health.
May 28, 2014 Yakima Health District Table Top
Exercise

June 9, 2014 City of Seiah, Selah School District
Full Scale Exercise

Future Exercises and Training;

Valley Mall Simple Table Top Active Shooter
Exercise (TTX) July 9, 2014 Facilitated by
YVOEM

Central Washington State Fair Advanced Table Top
Exercise Facilitated by YVOEM
Yakima Air Tenninal Table Top Exercise Early
September 2014
ValleyMall Full Scale ActiveShooterExercise Mid
October. Facilitated by YVOEM

The Emergency Management Staff

OEM

- Charles Erwin Senior

Program Analysi
- Jim Hall Director
-HelgaSlatran Homeland
Security Planner-
• Lisa Tnihlicka
Administrative Assistant



The Insider
Yakima Valley Office ofEmergency Management

August 2014 Newsletter Issue #25

Central Washington State Fair
Ferris Wheel Collapses

State Fair Park - The simulated collapse of one of the
carnivals Ferris Wheels during an unsuspected
windstorm, presenting 90+ mph winds, created a
challenging exercise for those playing in the Table Top
August 13, 2014 at the SunDome. The fair board, fair
management and staff, and vendors all work hard atS making the Central Washington

place to enjoy the entertainment,

needs to pick up the morning

unthinkable events that happened
somewhere USA. We know

unthinkable events can happen.
Understanding this, the fair and

its emergency rcsponders exercise annually an
unthiiikable scenario

understand their

protocols and build
institutional

knowledge ofa HMgaKPv V
fairgrounds \ •g
emergency response

within the ' -Al
community.

The scenario presented

and the carnival would

have large waiting lines. There was 30 or so victims
hurt, worried parents, media, and other aspects were
injected for exercise players to respond to.

It was an Advanced Table Top Exercise presenting
responders with patient information where they needed
to treat and transport simulated people. The
Emergency Medical System organized to send the
patients to the right hospital for care. The ambulance
companies would move these patients, on paper, from

the crash site to the designated hospitals. Yakima Police
assisted by CMS Security maintained crash site security

Derby? Fair Management brought their management
team together and worked through the issues. In the end
a decision to close the fair, evacuate the grounds, and
evaluate the situation was made. This decision created

the question of how to evacuate the grounds and not
interrupted emergency responders trying to get there.
The Yakima Police came up with the traffic plan and
assisted by neighboring jurisdictions established the
system to accomplish this mission.

During the Hotwash, or review ofexercise play,
following the exercise a number of very good things
were pointed out
as working well. • A
There were also a H
number of issues

that require
improvement.

issues far ~
exceeded the issues needing improvement. A written
After Action Report and Improvement Plan will be
developed in the next few weeks.

The different agencies playing or helping with this
exercise included:

• Slate Fair ParkyCcnlral Washington State Fair and its many
departments or divisions

• Yakima Police Depanmeni
• Yakima Fire Department
• Yakima Public Works

• Yakima SherilT s Office

• SuiiComm91l

• Yakima Regional Mospilal and Cardiac Center
• YakimaMemorial Hospital
• Advanced Life Sy.siems
• American Medical Response
• Yakima Health District

• CMS Security (Fair Contractor)
• Back Stage Electric



• Yakima County EMS Office
• Yakima Valley Office of Emergency Management
• Yakima OEM Volunteers

Thanks to all the players and others that made this
exercise possible. Your time and effort is ^eatly
appreciated.

City of Union Gap & the Valley
Mall Prepares for Armed Intruder

Managers and Staff
^ came together to

work a simulated

armed intruder

scenario taking place inside the mall. This is part one of
a two part exercise program to prepare the city and the
mall for a catastrophic mass casualty event. City of
Union Gap and Mall managers were seeking to review
their plans, prepare their community and build
institutional knowledge within the community

The exercise i|^. >J. i w —
a Discussion —

Table Top W
Exercise j.; ^
presented a ^

about an

armed intruder entering the mall and began hurting
people. Each of the different areas or departments were
asked to explain their roles and actions as new
information on the intruder was presented.

Exercise players while listening to other areas and
departments gained a better understanding of the
different roles each would play in an event. There were
many good or positive issues identified. There were
several planning issues identified as needing review.
The learning process was greatly enhanced by the
cooperative attitude amongst the players. Several good
relationships were established and others enhanced from
this exercise. The city and Valley Mali will host a Full
Scale Exercise with actors and simulated munitions

October 16, 2014, If you are interested in participating
contact Jim Hall at the Emergency Management Office
574-1900.

The City of Union Gap and the Yakima Valley Mall
must be recognized for the foresight and willingness to
take on sensitive issues and prepare their systems for
whatever they may face. Kudosl!

Jurisdictions and Businesses playing in the exercise;

• Union Gap Police Department
• Union Gap Fire Department
• SunComm-9M

Valley Mall Security
Valley Mall Business Office
Zillah Police Department
Selali Police Department
Sunnyside Police Department
Washington State Patrol
Yakima Sheriffs Office

Yakama Nation Emergency Management
Yakima School District

American Medical Response
Yakima Memorial Hospital
Yakima Regional Hospital and Cardiac Center
Washington State Sheriffs and Police Chiefs
Yakima Valley Office ofEmergency
Management Volunteers

• Yakima Valley Office of Emergency
Management

Yakima County Multi-Jurisdictional
Hazard Mitigation Plan

Yakima County - Emergency Management has begun
the process of updating the 2010 Yakima County Multi-
Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan. The five year
update will meet our FEMA requirement. We have a
number of meetings and planning processes to get
through. Each of the Cities and Towns, the county, and
other governmental jurisdictions need to be part ofa
Hazard Mitigation Plan to be eligible for certain disaster
and other grant funding. The plan beyond identifying
mitigation projects will lessen the impacts of our liazards
and goes a long way in making us eligible for disaster
funds when there is an event. It is our intentions to

submit our updated plan to State EMD and /FEMA by
the end of this year to meet the March, 2015, adoption
deadline.

Mitigation efforts include activities that will prevent or
reduce the impact ofemergency/ disaster results on
people, property and the environment. Efforts include
instituting building codes, land use planning, zoning
ordinances, training and education, structural and non-
structural safety measures. Federal policies require a
formal mitigation program implementation plan any time
an area is subject ofa Presidential Disaster Declaration
and federal disaster monies are received.

Exercises and Training: Completed
Valley Mall Simple Table Top Active Shooter Exercise (TTX)
July 9, 2014 Facilitated by YVOEM
Central Washington State Fair Advanced Table Top Exercise
Facililaled by YVOEM

Future Exercises and Training
Yakima Air Terminal Table Top Exercise Early Seplember 4,
2014

Pacific Power and Light Briefing September 11,2014. 1030 to
1130 at OEM

Valley Mall Full Scale Active Shooter Exercise Mid October 16,
2014. Facilitated by YVOEM



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

10/28/2014 I-l

Title: Approval of Minutes: October 14, 2014 Study Session & Council
Meeting

Thru: David Kelly, City Administrator

From: Monica Lake, Executive Assistant

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: N/A

Funding Source: N/A

Staff Recommendation:

Approval of the Minutes from the last Council Meeting.

Background / Findings & Facts:

See Minutes for details.

Recommended Motion:

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as read. (This item is part of the
Consent Agenda)



Regular Meeting
Selah Council Chambers

115 West Naches Avenue

Selah, WA 98942

City of Selah
Council Minutes

October 14,2014

A. Call to Order Mayor Gawlik called the meeting to order at 4:00pm.

B. Roll Call

Members Present: Paul Overby; John Tiemey; Dave Smeback; Allen Schmid ; Brooke Finch;
Roy Sample

Members Excused: Jane Williams

StaffPresent: David Kelly, City Administrator; Bob Noe, City Attorney; Gary Hanna,
Fire Chief; Joe Henne, Public Works Director; Eric Steen, Deputy Police
Chief; Dale Novobielski, Clerk/Treasurer; Dennis Davison, Community
Planner; Charlie Brown, Recreation Manager; Monica Lake, Executive
Assistant

C. Pledge ofAllegiance

Council Member Schmid led the Pledge ofAllegiance. Pastor Mark Griesse led the opening prayer.

D. Agenda Changes

1. Relocate M - 6, N - 2, and N - 3 to immediately follow the Consent Agenda

E. Public Appearances/Introductions/Presentations None

F. Getting To Know Our Businesses None

G. Communications

1. Oral

Mayor Gawlik opened the meeting.

Page 1 Selah Clly Council Minutes 10/14/2014



Rick Betsch approached the podium and addressed the Council. He said that he is promoting the annual
fitness challenge; he would like to partner with the City Council and have them become more involved
with the health and fitness of the community. He expressed his frustration with Yakima businesses that
attempting to get information out, saying that the choices people make today will affect their senior
years.

Seeing no one else rise to speak, Mayor Gawlik closed the meeting.

2. Written

a. September 2014 Monthly Report for Building Permit, Animal Control and Code
Enforcement

H. Proclamations/Announcements None

I. Consent Agenda

Executive Assistant Lake read the Consent Agenda.

All items listed with an asterisk (*) were considered as part of the Consent Agenda.

* 1. Approval ofMinutes: September 23,2014 Council Meeting

* 2. Approval ofClaims & Payroll:

Payroll Checks Nos. 77902 - 77932 for a total of $208,446.95
Claim Checks Nos. 64594 - 64595 for a total of $ 149.00
Claim Checks Nos. 94596 - 94705 for a total of $527,121.06

* 3. Resolution M - 2: Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to sign Task Order 2014-3 between
the City of Selah and Huibregtse, Louman Associates, Inc. for Engineering and
Surveying Services for the East Goodlander Road Transportation Improvement Board
(TIB) Improvements Project

* 4. Resolution M - 3: Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to sign Task Order 2014-4 between
the City ofSelah and Huibregtse, Louman, Associates Inc. for Construction services for
the East Goodlander Road Water Improvements Project

* 5. Resolution M - 4: Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to sign Task Order 2014-5 between
the City of Selah and Huibregtse, Louman, Associates Inc. for Construction services for
sewer system improvements on the Transportation Improvement Board (TIB) East
Goodlander Road Improvements Project

Council Member Tierney moved, and Council Member Scbmid seconded, to approve the Consent
Agenda as read. By voice vote, approval of the Consent Agenda was unanimous.

Page 2 Selah City Council Minutes 10/14/2014



RELOCATED

Resolution M - 6: Resolution of the City Council adopting the Findings and Recommendation of the
Planning Commission and Approving Preliminary Plat No. 912-42.14-05,
"Somerset 11"

Ordinance N - 2: Ordinance Adopting the Selah Urban Growth Area Comprehensive Plan
Amendment 2014-01 (Zuker-Sample L.L.C.) as Recommended by the City of
Selah Planning Commission

Ordinance N - 3: Ordinance Amending Ordinance No. 1634 Zoning Map Amendment No.
914.42.14-04 Rezone to Planned Development (PD)

City Administrator Kelly advised that it would be appropriate at this time for Council Member Sample
to recuse himself.

Council Member Sample recused himself and left Council Chambers.

Mayor Gawlik said that, when the application came to our attention, it was determined time that a
number of things were lacking in the application that was submitted, and that after consideration it was
decided to recommend to Council that it be remanded back to the Planning Commission for completion.
He noted that the recommendation comes from himself and City Administrator Kelly.

Council Member Schmid moved, and Council Member Smeback seconded, to Remand the
proposal back to the Planning Commission for further consideration of the major rezone request
including the Comprehensive Plan, Zoning change, and Preliminary Plat.

Coimcil Member Tiemey asked if the motion applied to all three items or if they would have to be done
separately.

Council Member Schmid replied that his motion was all-inclusive.

Council Member Finch remarked that they have a large group in attendance, and she would be interested
to hear their comments either for or against Somerset II.

City Attorney Noe responded that the matter has to go back to the Planning Commission; the City
Council item is a closed record hearing.

Council Member Finch inquired if there would be an opportunity for the public to address the Coimcil
rather than the Planning Commission.

City Attomey Noe replied in the negative, saying that the law provides for an open hearing in fi-ont of
the Planning Commission and a closed hearing at the Council meeting.

Mayor Gawlik asked at what point in the process would Council be able to hear comments from
audience on the recommendation to remand it back to the Planning Conunission.

Page 3 Selah City Council Minutes 10/14/2014



CityAttorneyNoe responded that Council could hear comments on the issue of remanding it back to the
Planning Commission.

Mayor Gawlik inquired if they should act on motionnow or wait until the conclusion ofcomments from
those in attendance.

City Attorney Noe said that it is up to him whether to have comments before or after the vote.

Mayor Gawlik opened the meeting, reminding those in attendance that all comments must pertain to the
issue ofremanding the proposal back to the Planning Commission.

City Administrator Kelly commented that all testimony provided at the Planning Commission hearing is
provided to Council in the form ofminutes, and that any new comments on the matter need to be
brought up at the next Planning Commission meeting.

Mayor Gawlik asked when next scheduled meeting would be.

Community Planner Davison stated that the Planning Commission meets on the first and third Tuesdays
ofeach month, on an as-needed basis, and since November 4th is holiday the next meeting would be
November 18*''. He noted that a special hearing council be scheduled, and that he will advise if they opt
to do so.

Mayor Gawlik reiterated that the next scheduled hearing date isNovember 1S"*.

City Administrator Kelly said that they will identify on website when the next meeting will be.

Council Member Tiemey wondered if they had addresses for the folks in attendance today.

Mayor Gawlik assumed that those in the audience had signed in, and recommended that they do so if
they had not.

Community Planner Davison remarked that he sent out notices to every property owner within six
hundred feet of the proposal.

Council Member Tiemey suggested mailing notice to all in attendance tonight along with those within
six hundred feet.

Wayne Worby approached the podium and addressed the Council. He asked if Council couldn't go back
to the open portion of the meeting to allow those who want to speak the opportunity to do so.

City Attorney Noe replied that it is a quasi-judicial meeting, and as such, the Council is required to
follow the judicial process in this matter.

Page 4 Selah City Council Minutes 10/14/2014



Mr. Worby felt that the Council Members needed to see and hear those who hadconcerns. He addedthat
meetings shouldnever be held before7pm at night to alloweveryone the opportunity to attend and
express their wishes on the matter.

Mayor Gawlik informed him that one Council Meeting per month is scheduled at 6:30pm, with the other
being at 4pm per the City's Municipal Code, and that they try to schedulethe hot button topics for the
later meeting to allow those who wish to speak the opportimity to attend.

Mr. Worby inquired if the Planning Commission is under the same restraints regardingmeeting times.

Mayor Gawlik responded that their meetings are held in the evening.

Community Planner Davison stated that the Planning Commission meets at 5:30pm.

Brian Richards approached the podium and addressed the Council. He wanted to know where in the
Comprehensive Plan or Rules of Order it stated that that asking for a remand ofproposal meant that one
did not have to schedule a public hearing as they did today.

City Attorney Noe noted that the Planning Commission conducts the open hearing.

Mr. Richards remarked that he was not talking about them, he was talking about the Council, and
wondered why they wouldn't do another mailing to discuss the matter with the public.

City Attorney Noe replied that there will be another Planning Commission meeting to discuss the matter
further, which will create a record to come back to the Council at a later meeting. He noted that it will
not be another hearing.

Mr. Richards wondered where that information came from.

City Attorney Noe responded that it is mandated by State law.

Mr. Richards inquired if they could discuss the missing pieces of the application, and why it was
incomplete.

Mayor Gawlik observed that there are a number ofquestions on the application that need to be answered
by the proponent, and that he and City Administrator Kelly opted to recommend that Council remand the
matter back to the Planning Commission. He noted that they also had concerns regarding a Planning
Commissioner who should have recused himself from the matter.

City Administrator Kelly gave an example of something that should have been included with the
application, adding that the proponent had these items available but hadn't included them with the
application.

Brian Richards wondered why tonight's meeting was an open hearing on the matter.

Mayor Gawlik replied that, by law, it isn't intended to be.

Page 5 Selah City Council Minutes 10/14/2014



Mr. Richards responded that the Council is making the decision.

MayorGawlik acknowledged his comment, but notedthat, by law, that is the onlyplace it can be done.

Mr. Richards stated that the City Council still has to have a hearing on the issue.

City Attorney Noe remarked that the Council reviews the closed record, receives a transcript of the
Planning Commissionmeeting and reviews the documents pertaining to the matter.

Mr. Richards felt that doing it that way didn't make sense.

Mayor Gawlik reiterated that the only place that testimony can be received and recorded is at the
Planning Commission hearing per State law; the transcript is then sent to the for them to decide whether
to accept or deny it.

Mr. Richards asked why they were notified of the meeting if they aren't allowed to speak.

Community Planner Davison said that statute provides that rezone applications and subdivision
applications come to the Council at a public meeting to consider the Planning Commission's
recommendation; a Comprehensive Plan amendment is different, the Planning Commission considers
the amendment and makes a recommendation, then Council holds a hearing on the Comprehensive Plan
amendment only.

Mr. Richards wondered why, if the application is sent back, the process isn't repeated when it's received
again.

Council Member Tiemey stated that Council will only hear the Comprehensive Plan amendment.

Mr. Richards felt that all three items should be discussed at a public hearing.

City Attorney Noe replied that the zoning request and ComprehensivePlan amendment are consolidated
together; when the Planning Commission does their hearing it is for both items, which are then
presented to Council at a closed record meeting.

Mr. Richards asked why they were brought here in the first place.

City Attorney Noe responded that perhaps the notice wasn't clear, but this is a but closed record review.

Mayor Gawlik inquired why the letter sent out stated that they could give testimony tonight.

Community Planner Davison replied that Council holds hearing on Comprehensive Plan amendments,
and that if they vote to remand the matter back to the Planning Commission then no hearing will be held
on the Comprehensive Plan amendment.

City Attorney Noe stated that all items would come back as closed record, not open record.

Page 6 Selah City Council Minutes 10/14/2014



CityAdministrator Kelly informed the audience that there wall be no publicrecord hearing today, adding
that the next letter sent out will be very clear on that; testimony from citizens will be given at the
Planning Commission meeting, then the itemswill be consolidated andcome backbeforeCoimcil,

Mr. Richards inquired if the process for this was in the Comprehensive Plan or State RCW

City Attorney Noe replied that the process is in City's Municipal Code, with an overlay of State law, that
only one open record hearing can be held, and that it also provides for consolidation ofpermits of items
such as a major rezone with a ComprehensivePlan amendment. He noted that the City's Code provides
for consistency with State law.

Tisha Busey approached the podium and addressed the Council. She said that she owns property in the
same location. She stated that she attended the Planning Commission meeting and that she felt it was a
very unprofessional one, saying that the Commissioners acted more like consultants to the developer
rather than Commissioners concerned with Selah's long-term growth goals. She noted that the
Comprehensive Plan outlines the goals of the community for long-range growth; it's designed to reflect
the community as a whole, not the needs of one developer, nor should it be amended for one developer.
She wondered how the Planning Commissioners could properly implement the Comprehensive Plan, or
work within its guidelines, if they don't understand it.

City Attorney Noe observed that the proposal would be denied if the applicant was unable to satisfy all
the requirements.

Ms. Busey stated that the Commissioners didn't seem educated; they would look at Mr. Durante or
Community Planner Davison for answers. She added that she took the time to read through the City's
Comprehensive Plan and read aloud from the section dealing with goals in housing.

Mayor Gawlik responded that he understands what she has said, that Council is interested in what she
has to say, and that they will educate the Commissioners about their responsibilities and what is
necessary for them to make an informed decision. He noted that they are also discussing the possibility
ofchanging the process to have most, if not all, of these matters go before the Hearing Examiner in lieu
of the Planning Commission.

Ms. Busey said that she has been involved in the development ofsubdivisions, and has attended Hearing
Examiner meetings in Yakima County. She felt that it would have appeased people ifCouncil had
explained that they can have a say in the process, as it feels like the City is dealing with their property
without any say-so from the property owners.

City Attorney Noe replied that she can speak on the closed record.

Ms. Busey remarked that she imderstands that but others here do not. She asked if there would be an
opportunity to speak at a future Council meeting.

Mayor Gawlik wanted her to understand that they respect her property rights and what she wishes to do
with her property, adding that the Council is challenged by what law allows them to do or not to do. He

Page 7 Sclah City Council Minutes 10/14/2014



felt that what has happened is simply a miscommunication, and that the Council will do everything they
can to make things right.

Attorney Mike Shen, Halverson NW, approached the podium and addressed the Council. He expressed
his appreciation for the processand felt that it was a showof good faith on the City's part that staff is
arguing for a remand ofthe application back to the Planning Commission. He thanked City Attorney
Noe for clarifying the process for those in attendance and explaining what happens before the Council
when a recommendation is made. He noted that, in his previous experience, those who testified at a
Planning Commission meeting were allowed to argue, provided they presented no new testimony on the
subject. He suggested that Council limit people to three or five minutes, which would require them to
organize their thoughts beforehand and be concise when speaking.

Dr. Richard Wellerapproached the podium and addressed the Council. He indicated that his confusion
resulted from a misunderstanding ofan open meeting, as his previous experience came from the
annexation proposal heard before the Council.

City Attorney Noe clarified that an annexation isn't quasi-judicial, and therefore different laws apply.

Dr. Weller asked if they would be allowed to present testimony again if the matter was remanded to the
Planning Commission.

Mayor Gawlik responded in the affirmative.

Dr. Weller said that he sent emails to each Council Member asking for clarification on who chairs the
Planning Commission and who sits on the Commission.

Council Member Overby remarked that Council Members cannot have any communication outside of
formal channels on a quasi-judicial matter; the only evidence they can consider is what takes place in the
public hearing held by the Planning Commission.

Dr. Weller said he looked for information on the Planning Commission on the City's website.

Mr. Worby approached the podium once again to address the Council. He expressed confiision over the
order of the three items according to the agenda, noting that zoning should be done before the
development itself.

City Attorney Noe remarked that regulatory reform required consolidation of these items so that a
developer doesn't have to wait years for the process; it allows for an expeditious review of land
applications.

Mr. Worby stated that Yakima County doesn't do it that way.

City Attorney Noe replied that the City is required to consolidate where it can in these matters.

Mr. Worby wondered how a development that is inconsistent with underlying code can be brought in.

Page 8 Selah City Council Minutes 10/14/2014



CityAttorneyNoe responded that the City's code anticipates that the application will be consistentwith
zoning and development.

City Administrator Kelly noted that, during a regular Council Meeting, Resolutions are heard prior to
Ordinances.

David Spicer approached the podium and addressed the Council. He said that he really doesn't
understand a lot of this stuff, and wanted to know why they have closed meetings and open meetings
rather than having everything open and transparent. He asked how he was supposed to attend a Planning
Commission meeting when he normally works until 6 or 7pm. He thought that this was similar to the
games played as children where the rules changed halfway through the game. He wondered about the
need for parks and green space as opposed to cramming duplexes on every nice piece of dirt in Selah.
He thanked Council for the opportunity to speak.

Council Member Tiemey called for the question.

Roll was called: Council Member Overby - yes; Council Member Tierney - yes; Council Member
Smeback - yes; Council Member Schmid - yes; Council Member Finch - yes. By voice vote,
approval was unanimous.

Council Member Tiemey thanked those in attendance for coming and apologized for any
misunderstandings. He expressed his appreciation of their comments, adding that it was nice to have
people attend who are concerned about their City.

Council Member Schmid moved, and Council Member Overby seconded, to take a ten minute
recess.

Council took a ten minute recess.

J. Public Hearing None

K. New Business

1. Bond Refinancing

City Administrator Kelly addressed K - 1. He said that, as discussed during the Council Retreat, there is
an opportunity to save some additional money on the Marudo debt. He introduced the bond counsel.

Jim Nelson, D.A. Davison, approached the podium and addressed the Council. He gave a brief
description ofhis firm and qualifications, then referred Council to the handout provided in the packet.
He discussed that revenue sources available to them, and the interest rates in the current market.

Mayor Gawlik expressed some concern that interest rates are liable to increase in the near future.

Mr. Nelson responded that the economy is starting to recover, which will likely result in higher rates. He
stated that they have an interest rate expert on their staff, and outlined her prediction for the coming

Page 9 Selah City Council Minutes 10/14/2014



quarters, which brings a little more urgency to the decision at hand. He talked about bond rating rates
and gave some recent examples of smaller cities receiving higher rates than anticipated. He suggested
that the Council consider adopting a formal financial management policy.

City Administrator Kelly remarked that one will be presented at the next Council meeting.

Council Member Finch requested confirmation that the City had no rating at present.

Mr. Nelson replied in the affirmative, adding that he anticipates the City's initial rating will be A+ or
possible AA-. He outlined the items that are reviewed before a rating is assigned.

City Administrator Kelly noted that some of the numbers had changed since the last meeting.

Council Member Finch inquired about the coupon rate.

Mr. Nelson explained the variance ofthe coupon rate, then reviewed the remainder of the packet
information.

City Administrator Kelly commented that this is also part of the necessary process for construction of
new municipal buildings and where the City is financially in their debt management.

Council Member Tiemey wondered if they had enough time to proceed with the refinance.

Mr. Nelson responded in the affirmative, saying that they can meet that schedule. He noted that the City
will need to enter into an imderwriting engagement letter with his firm per the new Security Exchange
Commission rules.

Council Member Smeback moved, and Council Member Schmid seconded, to authorize the Mayor
to sign the Underwriting Engagement Letter with D. A. Davidson. Roll was called: Council
Member Overby - yes; Council Member Tiemey - yes; Council Member Smeback - yes; Council
Member Schmid - yes; Council Member Finch - yes; Council Member Sample - yes. By voice
vote, approval was unanimous.

L. Old Business None

M. Resolutions

1. Resolution authorizing the Mayor to sign a Professional Services Contract with Margita
A. Domay for prosecution services

City Administrator Kelly addressed M - 1. He said that this puts in writing the change that they are
making in moving away fi^om City Attorney Noe's firm to someone else. He commented that Ms.
Domay has been doing the prosecution under the City Attorney's firm, and that the $2500 he negotiated
with her is within the current budget.

Page 10 Selah City CouRcil Minutes 10/14/2014



Council Member Hemey asked for confirmation that the compensation would be $2500 a month plus an
additional amount for jury trials.

City Administrator Kelly responded in the affirmative, saying that he wanted to have the same language
as they have in the public defender's contract.

Council Member Tiemey wondered how many trials are held on an annual basis.

City Attorney Noe answered that there are maybe four per year.

Council Member Schmid moved, and Council Member Smeback seconded, to Approve the
Resolution authorizing the Mayor to sign a Professional Services Contract with Margita A.
Dornay for prosecution services. Roll was called: Council Member Overby - yes; Council Member
Tierney - yes; Council Member Smeback - yes; Council Member Schmid - yes; Council Member
Finch - yes; Council Member Sample - yes. By voice vote, approval was unanimous.

•" 2. Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to sign Task Order 2014-3 between the City of Selah
and Huibregtse, Louman Associates, Inc. for Engineering and Surveying Services for the
East Goodlander Road Transportation Improvement Board (TIB) Improvements Project

3. Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to sign Task Order 2014-4 between the City of Selah
and Huibregtse, Louman, Associates Inc. for Construction services for the East
Goodlander Road Water Improvements Project

*' 4. Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to sign Task Order 2014-5 between the City of Selah
and Huibregtse, Louman, Associates Inc. for Construction services for sewer system
improvements on the Transportation Improvement Board (TIB) East Goodlander Road
Improvements Project

5. Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to sign a Transportation Improvement Board (TIB)
Consultant Agreement for Professional Construction Services for the East Goodlander
Roadway Improvements between North First Street and Wenas Road

Public Works Director Henne addressed M - 5. He said that this is a formal contract between the City of
Selah and the transportation Improvement Board (TIB) to proceed with the grind and overlay project,
and that it allows them to create plan specs and construction documents. He noted that the totd amount
for it is $29,419.

Council Member Smeback asked if they would be doing an early start in the spring in order to be done
by June.

Public Works Director Henne responded in the affirmative, saying that they have to be done by the end
ofJune.

Council Member Schmid commented that the consultant agreement has a dollar figure of$29,400 and
wondered if it should be $29,419.

Page 11 Selah City Council Minutes 10/14/2014



City Administrator Kelly suggested making it $29,419 to cover it.

Public Works Director Henne remarked that the dollar amount isn't specified in the Resolution.

Coiincn Member Tiemey moved, and Council Member Schmid seconded, to Approve the
Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to sign a Transportation Improvement Board (TIB) Consultant
Agreement for Professional Construction Services for the East Goodlander Roadway
Improvements between North First Street and Wenas Road. Roll was called: Council Member
Overby - yes; Council Member Tiemey - yes; Council Member Smeback - yes; Council Member
Schmid - yes; Council Member Finch - yes; Council Member Sample - yes. By voice vote,
approval was unanimous.

6. Resolution of the City Council adopting the Findings and Recommendationofthe
Planning Commission and Approving Preliminary Plat No. 912-42.14-05, "Somerset 11"

RELOCATED

7. Resolution authorizing the Mayor to sign a contract with Marshall Architecture, P.C for
professional services related to the conceptual design ofa proposed municipal multi
purpose facility

City Administrator Kelly addressed M - 7. He said that they received four responses to the request for
qualifications, and that the selected architect works with the particular company they've been discussing.
He talked briefly about the qualificationsof the selected firm, noting that the agreement for $13,800
would get them a preliminary zoning and code review, conceptual drawings, and renderings for both
projects over a period of time. He noted that it's generally a four to six week process to come up with
drawings and a preliminary conceptual floor plan, at which point they will give the City a cost estimate.
He expressed his excitement to have real numbers on a real building, adding that he recommends the
creation of a committee to go through the process.

Mayor Gawlik suggested that the committee also include any department heads that will be effected.

City Administrator Kelly agreed.

Council Member Tiemey wondered how the other bid estimates came in.

City Administrator Kelly responded that most architectural firms start out at $250-300 per foot when
talking about a new building, which is normal, but he's interested to see if an aesthetically pleasing
building can be done for a lot less. He outlined the process that will be done, noting that they will put it
out to bid once the drawings are done, at which time local people can bid on it.

Council Member Finch moved, and Council Member Overby seconded, to Approve the Resolution
authorizing the Mayor to sign a contract with Marshall Architecture, P.C. for professional services
related to the conceptual design of a proposed municipal multi-purpose facility. Roll was called:
Council Member Overby - yes; Council Member Tiemey - yes; Council Member Smeback - yes;

Page 12 Selah City Council Minutes 10/14/2014



Council Member Schmid - yes; Council Member Finch - yes; Council Member Sample - yes. By
voice vote, approval was unanimous.

City Administrator Kelly said that he was hoping to get a committee together, and that he would like to
have three Council Members, along with the Mayor, to help with design of the two buildings.

Council Members Tiemey, Sample, and Smeback volunteered to serve on the committee.

N. Ordinances

1. Ordinance Amending Section ofTitle 10, Chapter 10.28, Table 5 - A, and Chapter
10.28.040, Regulatory Notes, of the Selah Municipal Code

Community Planner Davison addressed N - 1. He said that the proposed code amendment came about
after the Hearing Examinerconsidered a preliminary plat that followed a provision from 2006 that
allows duplexes within an R-1 zone. He explained the history of the provision, noting that it was put in
place to allow for a diversity ofhousing types in residential areas without requiring a rezone to an R-2
designation. He referred Council to the information included in the packet, stating that the Planning
Commission considered the matter and voted to recommend an amendment to the Municipal Code.

Council Member Finch remarked that Planning Commission minutes state that no one was in the
audience, yet they have testimony in favor of the amendment.

Community Planner Davison responded that there was no one in attendance aside from Council Member
Sample.

Council Member Finch expressed her frustration over receiving minutes dating back to May and June,
but no the minutes pertaining to the matter at hand.

Community Planner Davison replied that they are in draft form a present, as they haven't been adopted
by the Planning Commission.

Council Member Finch moved that Ordinances only be brought before the Council after the minutes
relating to the matter have been approved by the Planning Commission.

Council Member Tiemey seconded the motion.

Community Planner Davison asked if they wanted to kill the amendment or wait until next meeting for
the Planning Commission minutes.

Council Member Finch stated that she already knows how she will vote on this issue, and that she is
interested in acting more professional going forward.

City Administrator Kelly said that he would work with Community Planner Davison on protocol and
having the minutes provided to Council in an approved form.

Page 13 Selah City Council Minutes 10/14/2014



Community Planner Davisonnoted that the first meetingsince June was in September, at which time
they adopted the minutes provided in the packet.

CouncilMemberTiemey didn't want to act on any Ordinances based on insufficient information,
addingthat they should have the final minutesto accurately act on an Ordinance.

CityAdministrator Kelly remarked that the PlanningCommission doesn't meet again until next Tuesday,
which means that they won't have adopted minutes until the followingTuesday.

Council Member Sample stated that he spoke about this subject with the Planning Commission at the
last meeting, and he remembered discussing things such as lot size. He opined that there are several
good looking subdivisions around town with seven thousand square foot lots, adding that he doesn't
agree with having a duplex in middle ofnine or ten single-family homes; they should be grouped
together as much as possible.

Council Member Schmid said that one of the State mandates for the Growth Management Act dealt with
providing a diversity ofhousing types in new subdivisions, which is why the City ended up with this in
the Municipal Code.

Council Member Sample agreed.

Council Member Smeback noted that adding the sub-category to R-1 gives a formula allowing a
developer with undesirable lots to finish the development with duplexes.

Community Planner Davison commented that the individual has to decide if they want to build a duplex,
and that if it damages the marketing abilities the builder won't opt to do it.

Council Member Sample thought that there was a better way to fix it than the Ordinance presented.

Council Member Smeback suggested that they provide some direction to the Planning Commission.

Council Member Finch stated that the Coimcil should review the Code as a whole before adding or
amending it; they've identified several issues with planning codes that need to be dealt with. She added
that she also wants to have up-to-date approved minutes at that time.

Community Planner Davison inquired if she would like the minutes for this ifdenied.

Council Member Finch responded in the negative.

Council Member Smeback expressed his appreciation for what the Planning Commission was trying to
do, noting that these matter are sometimes viewed as housekeeping items.

Community Planner Davison said that he will come back at a later time with an Ordinance to repeal that
section of the R-2 zoning that allows duplexes to be built there.

Page 14 Selah City Council Minutes 10/14/2014



Council Member Finch moved, and Council Member Overby seconded, to Deny the Ordinance
Amending Section ofTitle 10, Chapter 10.28, Table 5 - A, and Chapter 10.28.040, Regulatory
Notes, of the Selah Municipal Code. Roll was called: Council Member Overby - Yes; Council
Member Tierney - yes; Council Member Smeback - yes; Council Member Schmid - no; Council
Member Fincb - yes; Council Member Sample - yes. Motion passed with five yes votes and one no
vote.

City Administrator Kelly asked Council if they all concurred with Council Member Finch about looking
at the Code as a whole.

Council Member Smeback said that, while he appreciates what Community Plaimer Davison is trying to
do, it's sometimes important to have the minutes, and that those people doing developments need to
realize that it may take a little longer than necessary.

City Administrator Kelly remarked that this is in the Code two different ways at present, and that a
denial of the Ordinance will have an Ordinance brought to them to remove the other.

Council Member Schmid wondered where that would leave them in regards to the Growth Management
Act.

Council Member Smeback suggested that the matter be brought back to Coimcil with approved minutes.

Council Member Schmid noted that they have conflicting items in the Code at present.

City Attorney Noe commented that any Council Member who voted in favor of denial can bring it back
at a later date.

Coimcil Member Overby wanted to have the full information in front of them for consideration, and that
he is open to revisiting the matter at a later date.

Council Member Smeback moved to remand the issue back to the Planning Commission for
consideration.

City Attorney Noe asked that he clarify what the Planning Commission should consider to be brought
back to the Council.

Council Member Smeback withdrew his motion.

2. Ordinance Adopting the Selah Urban Growth Area Comprehensive Plan Amendment
2014-01 (Zuker-Sample L.L.C.) as Recommended by the City of Selah Planning
Commission

RELOCATED

3. Ordinance Amending Ordinance No. 1634 Zoning Map Amendment No. 914.42.14-04
Rezone to Planned Development (PD)

Page 15 Selah City Council Minutes 10/14/2014



RELOCATED

0. Communications

1. Oral

Mayor Gawlik opened the meeting.

Chris Dykstra approached the podium and addressed the Council. He presented pictures to Council of
the large hole in the access road in Iront of his house and asked why it takes so long to get something
like that fixed. He said that he has three children aged six and under, and that the hole is a danger to
them.

Council Member Smeback asked ifhe resided in the City or the County.

Mr. Dykstra replied that he was in the County but was recently annexed into the City. He went on to say
that, if someone fell into the hole, Selah doesn't have capabilities ofgetting them out of it; it would
require a technical rescue team out ofYakima. He expressed his frustration that it has been three years
since the hole was dug and he has yet to get anyone to deal with it.

Council Member Smeback wondered if it was a County road.

Mr. Dykstra stated that the County told him it was private property, an access easement, and they
couldn't do anything to remedy the situation.

Council Member Smeback inquired if it was on his parcel of land.

Mr. Dykstra responded in the negative, saying that the property belongs to the developer, who started it
and then left it like this. He said that it is directly in front ofhis house, and that there are at least two
more holes similar to this down further. He asked why it takes so long to get something like this fixed.

Council Member Tiemey inquired who he talked with about the matter.

City Administrator Kelly remarked that he spoke with Mr. Dykstra's wife earlier that day.

Public Works Director Henne said that he received a call and turned the matter over to the City's Code
Enforcement Officer, who talked to property owner about the matter. He noted that the property owner
indicated that the matter would be taken care of, which didn't happen, and that he has spoken with City
Administrator Kelly about the item as it involves a Council Member.

City Administrator Kelly commented that the weeds have been mowed down, and that he has spoken
with developer about covering the holes. He asked what would be considered sufficient to cover it.

Mr. Dykstra replied that he would prefer it to be as close as possible to a completed state, suggesting that
the developer put in manhole covers and fill dirt around them, as plywood with bricks is not sufficient.

Page 16 Selah City Council Minutes 10/14/2014



Council Member Smeback commented that a manhole cover couldn't be moved by a child.

Mr. Dykstra thanked Council for their time.

Seeing no one else rise to speak, Mayor Gawlik then closed the meeting.

P. Reports/Announcements

1. Mayor

Mayor Gawlik had no report.

2. Council Members

Council Member Finch had no report.

Council Member Overby had no report.

Council Member Sample had no report.

Council Member Tiemey had no report.

Council Member Smeback had no report.

Council Member Schmid had no report.

3. Departmental

Public Works Director Henne said that there is information in the packet on building permits and code
enforcement. He commented that Matson Fruit held an open house at their new facility last Friday, and
that his department is moving ahead on projects.

ClerkA'reasurer Novobielski said that he has provided City Administrator Kelly and his fellow
Department Heads with the September financial statements, noting that everything on par for the year.

Commimity Planner Davison had no report.

Recreation Manager Brown said that the Volunteer Park project has been started; the Parks crew has
been tearing out trees and putting in a water line.

Deputy Police Chief Steen had no report.

City Administrator Kelly had no report.

City Attorney Noe had no report.

Page 17 Selah Ci(y Council Minutes 10/14/2014



4, Boards

a. Planning Commission Minutes - May 20,21, and 28,2014; May 20,21, and 28,
2014 (corrected); and June 17,2014

Q. Executive Session

R. Adjournment

None

Council Member Smeback moved, and Council Member Tierney seconded, that the meeting be
adjourned. By voice vote, approval was unanimous.

The meeting adjourned at 6:39pm.

Paul Overby, Council Member

Dave Smeback, Council Member

Brooke Finch, Council Member

EXCUSED

Jane Williams, Council Member

ATTEST:

Dale E. Novobielski, Clerk/Treasurer

John Gawlik, Mayor

John Tierney, Council Member

Allen Schmid, Council Member

Roy Sample, Council Member

Page 18 Selah City Council Minutes 10/14/2014



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

10/28/2014 1-2

Title: Claims & Payroll

Thru: David Kelly, City Administrator

From: Dale Novobielski, Clerk/Treasurer

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: See Check Registers

Funding Source: Various. See Check Registers.

Staff Recommendation:

Approval of Claims & Payroll as listed on Check Registers.

Background / Findings & Facts:

See Check Registers.

Recommended Motion:

Motion to Approve the Consent Agenda as read. (This item is part of the
Consent Agenda)



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

10/28/2014 K-1

Title: Youth Center Closure

Thru: David Kelly, City Administrator

From: Charles Brown, Recreation Manager

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: $30,000

Funding Source: Fund 001

Staff Recommendation:

I recommend that when the Youth Center closes for winter break that it remain

closed.

Background / Findings & Facts:

Over the years the number of kids has dwindled from approximately 35 daily
users to the current 6 kids daily. Funding from Central Washington University
that was helping pay for employees has continually been cut by the University.
Because they have less money to spend, we have fewer employees than in past
years. Selah Community Action Network for a long time was helping to pay the
cost of some of the bills, but that too has diminished over time. Efforts have

been made to fundraise for the youth center, but not enough has been brought
in for them to continue to pay. For these reasons I recommend that when we
close the youth center for Christmas Break, it remain closed.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Recommended Motion:

Move to approve the closing of the Selah Youth Center.

Record of all prior actions taken by the City Council and/or a City Board, City

Committee, Planning Commission, or the Hearing Examiner (where applicable)

Date: Action Taken:

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

10/28/2014 M-1

Title: Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to accept the Goodlander Road Zone
4 Water Main as complete and approve final Progress Estimate number 2 and
Project Acceptance.

Thru: David Kelly, City Administrator

From: Joe Henne, Public Works Director

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: $3,377.43

Funding Source: Street Fund 111

Staff Recommendation:

Acceptance and approval.

Background / Findings & Facts:

The Goodlander Road Zone 4 Water Main has been completed and Progress

Estimate number 2 has been designated as the Final for work performed by

Paragon Northwest, LLC, through August 31, 2014. Progress Estimate number
2 shows a payment of $320.54 due to the contractor and a retainage fee of
$3,377.43 to be released after the conditions listed in the attached letter from

Huibregtse, Louman Associates, Inc. have been met.

Recommended Motion:

Accept and approve resolution for final payment.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Record of all prior actions taken by the City Council and/or a City Board, City

Committee, Planning Commission, or the Hearing Examiner (where applicable)

Date: Action Taken:

2/26/2013 Council awards construction contract to Paragon

Northwest LLC.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.



RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ACCEPT THE

GOODLANDER ROAD ZONE 4 WATER MAIN AS COMPLETE

AND APPROVE FINAL PROGRESS ESTIMATE NUMBER 2

WHEREAS, the City of Selah contracted with Paragon Northwest, LLC to perform work for the
Goodlander Zone 4 Water Main, and

WHEREAS, Selah Public Works has reviewed the work performed by Paragon Northwest, LLC
on this project and believes it has been completed satisfactorily; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH,
WASHINGTON, the Mayor accept the Goodlander Zone 4 Water Main as complete.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH,
WASHINGTON, this 28th day of October, 2014.

ATTEST:

Dale E. Novobielski, Clerk/Treasurer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Robert F. Noe, City Attorney

RESOLUTION NO.

John Gawlik, Mayor



H LA
HuibregLie,LouraanAssoaales,lnc

Civil Engineering <• Land Surveying* Planning

October 20, 2014

JcffrcyT. Uniinaii, PE
Tlicodiirc W. Pooler, PE
Michael P. B.iiilc. I'F.
ErIcT. Hcr/iig, PLS

Terry D. Alapeteri. PE
GcneW. Soule!!, PE
Timothy D. Pries. PLS
Justin L. Bellamy, PE

ScephanieJ. Ray, PE
Dustiii L. Posten, PE
Stephen S. Hazzard. PE
Michael R. Heit, PE

City of Selah
222 So. Rushmore Road

Selah, WA 98942

Attn: Mr, Joe Henne

Public Works Director

Re: City of Selah
GOODLANDER ROAD ZONE 4 WATER MAIN
HLA Project No.: 12035C
Final Progress Estimate and Project Acceptance

Dear Joe:

Enclosed is Progress Estimate No. 2 designated as the Final for work performed by Paragon
Northwest, LLC, through August 31, 2014, in connection with their contract on the above
referenced project. The amount due the Contractor of $320.54 is net after retainage, as per the
contract documents. We recommend this Final Progress Estimate be considered and accepted
by the Selah City Council.

This letter also serves as our recommendation for acceptance of this project by the City of
Selah. We have reviewed the work performed by Paragon Northwest, LLC on this project and
believe it has been completed satisfactorily. Please provide us a copy of the Council resolution
authorizing project acceptance.

Enclosed for your action is the "Notice of Completion of PublicWorks Contract" to be completed
and sent to the Department of Revenue, Department of Labor and Industries, and Employment
Security Department in Oiympia. Forward one (1) copy each of the Notice of Completion to the
Department of Revenue, Department of Labor and Industries, and the Employment Security
Department as soon as the Selah City Council has accepted the project.

The retainage on this project in the amount of $3,377,43 should be released to Paragon
Northwest, LLC, after acceptance of the project and when the following conditions have been
satisfied;

1. There are no liens or claims for labor and materials furnished on this project filed
against the retainage.

2. A full sixty (60) days have elapsed since the official acceptance of this project by
the City of Selah.

3. The City has received Notice of Completion clearance from the Department of
Revenue, Department of Labor and Industries, and the Employment Security
Department relative to this contract. Please provide a copy of each to our office,

G*PROJECTS«CI12\12036C 8E GOODLANDER RD ZONE 4 WATER MAIN • PARAGON NW LLC\PROGRESS ESTIMATESLFINAL PROG EST NO 2\2O14-1D-20 PROG
eST NO 2 FINAL LTR.Ptf

C/TYOF

2803 River Road <• Yakima, WA 98902 <• (509)966-7000 <• EAX(509) 965-3800 <• vAvw.hlaciviJ.ixim



City of Selah
October 20, 2014
Page 2,

4. The City has received the follovi/ing from Huibregtse, Louman Associates, Inc.
(HLA):

a. HLA has confirmedthat all punch list items identified during the final walk
through inspection have been completed.

b. HLA has delivered two (2) 11"x17" neatly marked sets of record drawings to
the City of Selah on August 13, 2014.

c. A notarized certificate from the Contractor which states that all labor and
materials furnished on this project have been paid for is attached.

d. The required project labor and equal employment opportunitydocuments
were mailed to the City of Selah on October 15, 2014.

We would appreciate receiving a copy of your Council Resolution authorizing release of
retainage.

Please contact this office if you have questions or if we may furnish additional information.

Very truly yours,

Terry D. Alapeteri, RE

TDA/crf

Enclosures

Copy; Paragon Northwest, LLC
Steven Sziebert, HLA
Correspondence File

G\PROJECTS\2017\12035C 5E QOOOUWDER RD ZONE a WATER MAIN • PARAGON NW LI.CVPROGRESS ESTIMATESVFINAL PROG EST NO 2*2014-10-20 PROG
EST NOZFINALLTRftf



I hereby certify that

NOTARIZED STATEMENT

TO THE

City of Selah

a) all materials and labor used and performed in the construction of the
GOODI-ANDER ROAD ZONE 4 WATER MAIN - Project Number 12035C, for the
City of Selah. have been paid in full and there are no liens or other legal actions
pending;

b) Paragon Northwest, LLC, has complied with the provisions of Section 1-07.19
(Gratuities) of the Standard Specifications; and

c) All industrial insurance premiums, as required under RCW 51.12.050 (Public
Works) and RCW 51.12,070 (work done by contract) have been paid.

Name and Title (Reasepnnforfype;

Paragon Northwest. LLC
Contractor

STATE OF

COUNTY OF

) ss
Notary Public

State ofWashington
EfllKA R WIL8URN

My Appointment Eiplret Dec 6.2016

SIGNED AND SWORN TO (OR AFFIRMED) BEFORE ME ON 20 NM:

BY .
(Signature)

Notary Public Printed Name:

My Appointment Expires:

(Please return completed CERTIFICATION form to HLA)

G.\PROJECT8\2012\12035CSE GOOOLWJDER RDZONE4 WATER MAIN - PARAGON NWLLC\PROGRESSESTIMATES\FINAL PROG EST HOV20t4.O9 PROG EST NO
ZFINALLTRW



City of Selah
222 So. Rushmore Road
Selah, WA 98942

TO: Paragon Northwest, LLC
651 N. Keys Road
Yaklma,WA 98901

Descriotion

Mobilization

2 Project Temporary Traffic Control

3 Unclassified Excavation Incl. Haul

Removal of Structure and Obstruction

5 Icrushed Surface Base Course

6 Crushed Surfacing Top Course

HMACI. 1/2-Inch PG 64-28

8 D.l. Pipe for Water Main, 8 In. Oiam.

9 D.l. Pipe for Water Main, 12 In. Diam.

10 12-Inch Butterfly Valve and Valve Box

11 8-Inch Gate Valve and Valve Box

12 Shoring or Extra Excavation

13 Service Connection 1 In. Diam.

14 Select Backfill, As Directed

15 MinorChange

G ^OJeCTSl£«aU-C«ftOGRESS E8T11

GOODLANDER ROAD ZONE 4 WATER MAIN

HLAProject No.: 12035C

Progress Estimate No.: 2 ANDFINAL

Date: August 31, 2014

Unit

UnH

Price

Quantity
to Date Amount

LS S7,000.00 0% 100% $7,000.00 100%

LS 1 S3.000.00 0% 100% $3,000.00 100%

CY 85 S25.00 0 85 52,125.00 100%

LS 1 52,900.00 0% 100% $2,900.00 100%

TON 160 S19.00 0.00 188.15 $3,574.85 118%

TON 100 SI 7.00 0.00 98-87 $1,680.79 99%

TON 110 $105.00 0.00 113.79 $11,947.95 103%

LF 70 $65.00 0 68 $4,420.00 97%

LF 345 S76.00 0 290 $22,040.00 84%

EA 1 51,776.77 0 1 51,776.77 100%

EA 1 51,322.75 0 1 $1,322.75 100%

LF 416 50.50 0 358 $179.00 86%

EA 2 $1,050.00 0 3 $3,150.00 150%

CY 100 $14.00 0 60 $840.00 60%

FA EST. 55,000.00 310.60 1,591.54 51,591.54 32%

SUBTOTAL $67,548.65



Item

No. Description

Progress Estimate No. 1 S.

Progress EstimateNo.2 AND FINAL S.

Unit

Contract

Quantity

69,389.67

320.54

Unit

Price

Estimate 2

Quantity

Quantity
to Date

SUBTOTAL, WORK TO DATE

PLUS MATERIALS ON HAND

SUBTOTAL AMOUNTS

8.2% STATE SALES TAX

TOTAL

LESS TOTAL RETAINAGE

LESS AMOUNTS PREVIOUSLY PAID

AMOUNT NOW DUE

Retalnage S,

Retainage S

3.361.90

15.53

Amount

$67,543.65

SO.OO

$67,548.65

$5,538.99

$73,087.64

$3,377.43

$69,389.67

$320.54

Ihereby certify that the foregoing Isa trueand correct statement ofthe work performed under thisContract.

Terry D. A]

ACCEPTED;

Contract

Quantity

Ihereby acceptthe Final ProgressEstimate and Final Contract Voucher Certification, in accordance with Section 1-09.9 ofthe

WSDOT Standard Specifications.

Paragon Northwest. LLC Date:

G PRGJCCT8«e03»<M*ROGRSS» tST *1



Sf Original
Q Revised #

NOTICE OF COMPLETION OF PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT

Contractor's UBI Number:Date: 10/17/14

Name & Mailing Address of Public Agency Department Use Only
City of Selah

222 So. Rushmore Road

Selah. WA 98942

UBI Number: 392 000 174

Assigned to:

Date Assigned:

Notice is hereby given relative to the completion ofcontract orproject described below
Job Order Contracting

• Yes BT No
Contract NumberProject Name

GOODLANDER ROAD ZONE 4 WATER MAIN
Description of Work Done/Include Jobsite Address(es)

Construction of 345 LF of new 12-inch water main and 70 LF of new 8-inch water main including trench excavation
and backfill, valves, fittings, water service connections, testing, disinfection, and surface repair. 222 So. Rushmore
Selah, WA 98942

Bf No

120350

n YesFederally funded transportation project? (if yes, provide Contract Bond Statement below)
Contractor's Name

Paragon Northwest, LLC
E-mail Address

joe@paragonnorthwest.com
Affidavit ID*

533926

Contractor Address

651 N. Keys Road Yakima, WA 98901
Te

(5C
ephone #

)9}452-6465
If Retainage is not witliheld, please select one of the following and List Surety's Name & G

• Retainage Bond Q Contract/Payment bond(valid ft
lond Number.

>r federally funded transportation projects)

Name: |BondNumber:
Date Contract Awarded

02/25/14

Date Work Commenced

04/07/14

Date Work Completed
04/29/14

Date Work Accepted

Were Subcontracters used onthis project? Ifso, please complete Addendum A. SlYes Q No
Affidavit ID* - No L&I release will be granted until all affidavits are listed.

Contract Amount

Additions ( + )

Reductions (-)
Sub-Total

Amount of Sales Tax
(irvariousrates apply,pleasesenda breakdown)

TOTAL

Comments:

8.2

$

$"
%

s"

$

s]
NOTE: These two totals must be equal

73.892.02

6.343.37

67.548.65

5538.99

73.087.64

Liquidated Damages $
Amount Disbursed $

Amount Retained $

69.710.21

3.377.43

TOTAL $ 73,087.64

Note: The Disbursing Oflicer must submit this completed notice immediately after acceptance ofthe work done under this contract.
NO PAYMENT SHALL BE MADE FROM RETAINED FUNDS until receipt ofall release certincaies.
Submitting Form; Please submit the completed form by email to all three agencies below.

Contact Name: Mr. Dale Novobieiski

Email Address: dnovobieiski@ci.seiah.wa.us

Oopattment of Revenue
Public Works Section

(360)704-5650
PWC@<lor.wa.gov

o
Wjtthictf|tonState DefMutnttntof

Labor & Industries
Contract Rolease
(655) 5454163, option #4
CcntractRelease@LM.WA.60V

REV 31 0020e (4/28/14) F215-038-000 04-2014

Title: Clerk-Treasurer

Phone Number: (509)698-7328
Employment Security
[lopartment
Registration, Inquliy,
Standards & Coordination
Unit
(360)802-9450
publicworks^sd.wa.gov



Addendum A: Please List all Subcontractors and Sub-tiers Below

This addendum can be submined in other rormats.

Provide known afTidavits at this time. No L&l relea.se will be eranted until all aflidavits are listed.

Subcontractor's Name: UBI Number: (Required) Affidavid ID*

Columbia Asphalt &Gravel, Inc. 600 291 418 517320

Interstate Sawing & Drilling, LLC 602 901 191 524145

Stripe Rite, Inc. 601 048 084 517355

For tax assistance or to request this document in an alternate format, please call 1-800-647-7706.Teletype (TTY) users may use the
Washington Relay Service by calling 711.

REV 31 0020e Addendum (04/28/14) F2I5-038-0G0 04-2014



City ofSelah
GOODLANDER ROAD ZONE 4 WA TER fl/lAIN

12035C

Paragon Northwest, LLC
Contractor's Phone No.: (509)452'6465

PROJECT CLOSING CHECK LIST

"Mr. Dale Novobielski:

• The City has received the following from Hulbregtse,
Louman Associates, inc.:

o Final Progress Estimate:

o Notice of Completion of Public Works Contract OOR/L&I/ESD:

o Notarized Statement;

o Confirmation that all Punch List items complete:

o Record Drawings:

Labor and equal employment opportunity documents:

o Statement of Intent I Affidavit of Wages paid approved

by the State Department of Labor and Industries:

o Certified payrolls for the Contractor and Sub-contractor:

• Council resolution authorizing project acceptance:

o Copy sent to HLA (cfitzsimmons@hlacivil.com):

• Sent 1 copy of Notice of Completion of Public Works Contract to

Department of Revenue:

o Received WS Department of Revenue Cert of Payment
Of State Excise Taxes by PW Contractor release:
{Example Copy Attached)

' Sent 1 copy of Notice of Completion of Public Works Contract to

Employment Security Department:

o Received WS Employment Security Dept
Cert of Payment of Contribution.... PW Contract relea^:
(Example Copy Attached - Form EMS 8449 760 R3-98) ^

• Sent 1 copy of Notice of Completion of Public Works Contract

to Department of Labor and Industries:

o Received Dept. of Labor & Industries Cert of Payment
Of Industrial Insurance I

(Example Copy Attached)
Of Industrial Insurance Pi^iums by PW Contractor release:

• There are no liens or claims for labor and materials

filed against retainage:
• A full sixty (60) days have elapsed since the official acceptance

of this project by the City Council:

• Released Retainage ($3,377.43)!^
o Copy sent to HLA (cfitzsimmons@hlacivii.com):

Date Received/Sent:

/ITT/iCA/eO

o's/y?//V

To Ory

G.\PR0JECTS\2012\1203SC SE GOODLANDER RO ZONE 4 WATER MAIN - PARAGON NW UCVPROGRESS ESTIMATESIFINAL PROG EST NO 212014.10.17 PROG EST NO 2
FINAL LTR ftt



Wiisliinglon Sialc
Dcpaninent of Revenue
PO Box 47474
Olympio, WA 9B504.7474

601 672 468

Certificate of Payment of State Excise
Taxes by Public Works Contractor

MRM CONSTRUCTION INC

PO BOX 838

ELDEaaSBURG WA 98926 0838

CITY OF CBE ELUM

TONI FIELDS, CITY CLERK
119 W FIRST ST

CLE ELUM WA 98903 0008

We hereby certi^ tliat taxes, increases andpenalties dueor to become due Irom the above-named
contractor under Chapter180,Laws of 1935, as amended, with respect to the following publicworks
contract;

CITY OF CLE ELUM

05038-.C STAFFORD AVE & SECOND ST TIB SIDEWALK IMPROVES

^gether with all odier taxes, increases and penalties duefrom such contractor, have been paid in full or that
iiiey are, in the Department's opinion, readily collectible without recourse to the stale's lien on the retained
percentage.

Thiscertificate is issued pursuant to the provision of Chapter 60.28 Revised Code of Washington for the
solepurposeof informing tlie slate, county, or municipal officer charged with the duty of disbursing or
authorizing the payment of publicfunds to saidcontractor that theDepartment of Revenue hereby releases
the state's lien on the retained percentage provided by this Chapter for excise taxes due from said contractor.

This certificate does not release said contractor from liability for additional tax that may be later
determined tob»due with respect to the above-mentioned contract orother activities.

Dated. _at Olympia, Washington,

State of Washington
Deparjfeent ofRevenue

Certifying Officer

To inquireaboutilic availability of ihii; document Inan alieniatcformat for tlic visually impstircd orin n Isnguiigc othertitanEnglish,please call(360)486-2342.
y iisess may cull I-800-451 -7985.

REV 31 0028 (10-01-02) ROIITING: Disbursing Ofjlcer, Conuacior, File, Special File



0
Washington Slate Department of

Labor &Industries Olympia, WA 98504-4274

Certificate of Release of the State's Lien on Public Works Contracts

Awarding agency name

Attn: Disbursing officer name

Awarding agency address
9

With this letter, the Washington State Department of Labor & InMstries (L&I) approves of your
release or payment of thecontract amount retained from thefolli%(iM contractor •

GC dba and address

GC LNI account number ,/

—related to the following public works contract: 4, ::

Public works contract name and number

In our opinion, dl workers' compensatioD®n|ui^ce premiums, increases, and penalties due to
L&I from this'contractor have been paid imfull bf-^are readily collectible without recourse tothe
state's lien on the retained perceril^Si'sj:^

This letter'! sole purpose is to (x>tpriiii^cate our release ofthe state's lien to the public official
responsiblei^.j^jdrig or authorizihp the payment ofpublic funds to the contractor named above.

If we later determine that the contractor owes additional premiums related to the above-
... -

mentioned contract or other activlfies, the contractor is still liable for payment.

Dated at Olympia, Washington.

State of Washington
Departmentof Labor & Industries

Contract Release Specialist

360-902-xxxx or XXX@Lni.wa.gov

Title51 RCW authorizes L&I to collectworkers' compensation insurance premiums, increases, and penalties.
Chapter 60.28 RCW establishes L&I'spriority regarding the lien.



Employment Security Department
WASHINGTON STATE

P.O. Box 9046 Olympia, WA 98507-90461 Fax 360-902-9287

CITY OF GRANDVIEW
Attn: ANITA PALACIOS
207 W 2ND ST
GRANDVIEW, WA 98930

) CERTIFICATEOF
) PAYMENT OFCONTRIBUTIONS
) PENALTIES AND INTEREST ON
) PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT

ES Reference #: 41888600 6
UBI No: 600192346

CONTRACTOR:

A & B ASPHALT INC
PO BOX 5280
BENTON CITY, WA 99320-5280

APR 16 2012

pfTY OF grandvifw

interest

in full or
The Employment Security Department hereby cft^s th^contributions, penalties and i
due from the above named contractor under the &r^uymerii Security Act have been paid
provided for with respect to the following||||̂ ic ^orks extract:

Description: BAST WINE COUNTflY ROAD IMPROVEMENTS.

Contractnumber 11016C/

:i V .The Employment Security Departmen^ereby certifies that it has no claim pursuant to RCW
50,24.130 against the pul^icji»pdy nSmOT-above for tax attributable to service performed for said
public body by the above h^ed contractor on the above described contract. The Employment
Security Department releases its lieniOn the retained percentage which is provided by RCW
60.28.040 for contributions, peiwhi^s and interest due from said contractor.

This certificate does not release said contractor from liability for additional contributions, penalties
and interest which may be later determined to be due with respect to the above mentioned contract

Dated atOlympia, Washington onApril 12,2012.
EMPLOYMENT SECURITY DEPARTMENT

By

Robyn R. Wells

Authorized Representative

Original - DisbursingOfficer
Duplicate - Employer
Triplicate - Central Office Files



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

10/28/2014 M-2

Title: Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to accept the Bartlett Avenue
Intersection Improvements as complete and approve final Progress Estimate
number 2 and Project Acceptance.

Thru: David Kelly, City Administrator

From: Joe Henne, Public Works Director

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: $2,989.96

Funding Source: Street Fund 111

Staff Recommendation:

Acceptance and approval.

Background / Findings & Facts:

The Bartlett Avenue Intersection Improvements have been completed and
Progress Estimate number 2 has been designated as the Final for work
performed by AGR Contracting Inc., through August 31, 2014. Progress

Estimate number 2 shows no payment due to the contractor; however the

retainage of $2,989.96 is to be released after the conditions listed in the

attached letter from Huibregtse, Louman Associates, Inc. have been met.

Recommended Motion:

Accept and approve resolution for final payment.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Record of all prior actions taken by the City Council and/or a City Board, City
Committee, Planning Commission, or the Hearing Examiner (where applicable)

Date: Action Taken:

10/22/2013 Council approves design contract

2/25/2014 Council awards construction contract to AGR

Contracting. Inc.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.



RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ACCEPT THE

BARTLETT AVENUE INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS AS

COMPLETE AND APPROVE FINAL PROGRESS ESTIMATE

NUMBER 2

WHEREAS, the City of Selah contracted with AGR Contracting, Inc. to perform work for the
Bartlett Avenue Intersection Improvements, and

WHEREAS, Selah Public Works has reviewed the work performed by AGR Contracting, Inc. on
this project and believes it has been completed satisfactorily; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH,
WASHINGTON, the Mayor accept the Bartlett Avenue Intersection Improvements as complete.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH,
WASHINGTON, this 28th day ofOctober, 2014.

ATTEST:

Dale E. Novobielski, Clerk/Treasurer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Robert F. Noe, City Attorney

RESOLUTION NO.

John Gawlik, Mayor



♦♦♦HLA
Huibregtse,LoumanAssodates,Inc.

Civil Engineering Land Surveying «• Planning

October 20, 2014

JeffreyT. Louinaii, P£
Hieodorc W. Pooler, PE
Michael T. Batrle. PE
EricT. Herzog, PLS

City of Selah
222 So. Rushmore Road

Selah, WA 98942

Attn: Mr, Joe Henne

Public Works Director

Re: CityofSeiah
BARTLETT AVENUE iNTERSECTlON IMPROVEMENTS

HLA Project No,: 13108C
Final Progress Estimate and Project Acceptance

Dear Joe:

Enclosed is Progress Estimate No. 2 designated as the Final for work performed by AGR
Contracting, Inc., through August 31, 2014, in connection with their contract on the above
referenced project. The amount due the Contractor of $0.00 is net after retainage, as per the
contract documents. We recommend this Final Progress Estimate be considered and accepted
by the Seiah City Council.

This letter also serves as our recommendation for acceptance of this project by the City of
Seiah. We have reviewed the work performed by AGR Contracting, inc. on this project and
believe it has been completed satisfactorily. Please provide us a copy of the Council resolution
authorizing project acceptance.

Enclosed for your action is the "Notice of Completion of Public Works Contract" to be completed
and sent to the Department of Revenue, Department of Labor and Industries, and Employment
Security Department in Olympia. Forward one (1) copy each of the Notice of Completion to the
Department of Revenue, Department of Labor and Industries, and the Employment Security
Department as soon as the Selah City Council has accepted the project.

The retainage on this project in the amount of $2,989.96 should be released to AGR Contract
ing, Inc.. after acceptance of the project and when the following conditions have been satisfied:

1. There are no liens or claims for labor and materials furnished on this project filed
against the retainage.

2. A full sixty (60) days have elapsed since the official acceptance of this project by
the City of Selah.

3. The City has received Notice of Completion clearance from the Department of
Revenue, Department of Labor and Industries, and the Employment Security
Department relative to this contract. Please provide a copy of each to our office.

G.IPROJECTSV2013\13108CSEBABTT.ETTAVE INTERSECTION - AGR CONTRACTING, INCIPROGRESS ESTIMATESIFINAL PROG EST NO 2\2014-10-20 PROG EST
2 FINAL LTR.ftf

TerryD. Alapeteri, PE
Gene W. Sollies, PE
Timothy D. Fries, PLS
Justin L. Bellamy, PE

CITY OF

PUBUOvvoi^S

Stephanie]. Ray, PE
Dustin L. Posten, PE
Stephen S. Hazzard, PE
Michael R. Heit, PE

2803 River Road <• Yakima, WA 98902 •> (509)966-7000 <• FAX (509) 965-3800 «• www.hlacivil.com



City of Selah
October 20, 2014
Page 2.

4 The City has received the following from Huibregtse, Louman Associates, Inc.
(HLA);

a. has confirmed that all punch list items Identified during the final walk
through inspection have been completed.

b. HLA has delivered two (2) H"x17" neatly marked sets of record drawings to
the City of Selah on August 13, 2014.

c. A notarized certificate from the Contractor which states that all labor and
materials furnished on this project have been paid for is attached.

d. The required project labor and equal employment opportunity documents
were mailed to the City of Selah on August 28, 2014.

We would appreciate receiving a copy of your Council Resolution authorizing release of
retainage.

Please contact this office Ifyou have questions or if we may furnish additional Information.

Very truly yours.

Terry D, Alapeterl, PE

TDA/crf

Enclosures

Copy: AGR Contracting, Inc.
Steven Szlebert, HLA
Correspondence File

G\PROJECTS\2013\13108C SE SARTLETT AVE INTERSECTION - AGR CONTRACTING, INC\PROGRESS ESTIMATES\FINAL PROG EST NO 2\2014-10-20 PROG £ST
2 FINAL LTR.rtf



I hereby certify that

NOTARIZED STATEMENT

TO THE

City of Selah

a) all materials and labor used and performed in the construction of the BARTLETT
AVENUE INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS - Project Number 13108C, for the
City of Selah, have been paid in full and there are no liens or other legal actions
pending;

b) AGR Contracting, Inc., has compiled with the provisions of Section 1-07.19
(Gratuities) of the Standard Specifications; and

c) All industrial insurance premiums, as required under RCW 51.12.050 (Public
Works) and RCW51.12.070 (work done by contract) have been paid.

by.

Name and Title (Please print or type)

AGR Contractino. Inc.

Contractor

STATE OF

COUNTY OF

SIGNED AND SWORN TO

BY

) SS

(Signature)

Notary Public Printed Name:

My Appointment Expires: *? - )5" ^

(Please return completed CERTIFICATION form to NLA)

IRMED) BEFORE ME ON 17 . 20

notary

PUBLIC

G\PROJeCTS\2013M3l06C SE BARTLETTAVE INTBRSfiCTfON - AGR CONTRACTING (NCVPROGRESS €ST1MATES\FINAL PROG EST N0\2014-04 PROG EST 2
FJNALLTRrt



City of Selah
222 So. Rushmore Road
Selati.WA 98942

TO: AGR Contracting, Inc.
P.O. Box 56

Monroe, WA 98272

BARTLETT AVENUE INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS

HLA Project No.: 13108C

Progress Estimate No.: 2 ANDFINAL

Date: August 31,2014

Item

No. Description Unit

Contract

Quantity
Unit

Price

Estimate 2

Quantity

Quantity
to Date Amount

Contract

Quantity

1 Mobilization LS 1 $3,400.00 0% 100% $3,400.00 100%

2 Project Temporary TrafficControl LS 1 $2,054.00 0% 100% $2,054.00 100%

3 Unclassified Excavation Incl. IHaul CY 225 $30.84 0 225 $6,939.00 100%

4 Cmshed Surfacing Base Course TON 240 $26.14 0.00 219.87 $5,747.40 92%

5 Crushed Surfacing Top Course TON 55 $28.54 0.00 51.76 $1,477.23 94%

6 HMA Cl. 1/2-Inch PG 64-28 TON 95 $154.10 0.00 90.18 $13,896.74 95%

7 Cement Cone. Traffic Curb and Gutter LF 195 $21.46 0 195 $4,184.70 100%

8 Cement Cone. Sidewalk 6-Inch Thick SY 75 $58.90 0 75 $4,417.50 100%

9 Cement Cone. Sidewalk Ramp EA 3 $984.00 0 3 $2,952.00 100%

10 Storm Sewer Pipe 12 In. Diam. LF 134 $32.84 0 134 $4,400.56 100%

11 Catch Basin Type 1L EA 2 51,195.00 0 2 $2,390.00 100%

12
Trench Excavation (WSDOT Installed
Conduit)

LF 140 $16.40 0 140 $2,296.00 100%

13 Select Backfill, as Directed CY 15 $38.40 0 24 $921.60 160%

14 Adjust Valve Box EA 2 $280.00 0 2 $560.00 100%

15 Pavement Markings LS 1 $2,196.00 0% 100% $2,196.00 100%

16 Permanent Signing LS 1 $1,054.00 0% 100% $1,054.00 100%

17 Minor Change FA EST. 55,000.00 0.00 912.37 $912.37 18%

SUBTOTAL $59,799.10

O PROJECTSIOeOSe-CIPROGRESS Esr *1



Item

No. Description

Contract Unit Estimate 2

Unit Quantity Price Quantity

Quantity
to Date

SUBTOTAL, WORK TO DATE

PLUS MATERIALS ON HAND

SUBTOTAL AMOUNTS

TOTAL

LESS TOTAL RETAINAGE

LESS AMOUNTS PREVIOUSLY PAID

AMOUNT NOW DUE

Progress Estimate No. 1 $ 56,609.14

Progress Estimate No. 2 ANDFINAL $ 0.00

Retainage $ 2,989.96

Retainage $ 0.00

Amount

$59,799.10

$0.00

$59,799.10

$59,799.10

$2,989.96

$56,809.14

$0.00

I herebycertify that the foregoing is a true and correct statement of the work performed under this Contract.

A
Terry D. ^feoeteri, PE

Contract

Quantity

ACCEPTED:

Ihereby accept the Finai Progress Estimate and Final Contract Voucher Certification, in accordance with Section 1-09.9 of the

WSDOT Standard Specifications.

lo /?//y
5R Contracting, Inc. Date:



STATA

Sf Original
Q Revised#

NOTICE OF COMPLETION OF PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT

Contractor's UBI Number: 602 967 226Date; 10/20/14

Name & Mailing Address of Public Agency
City of Selah

222 So. Rushmore Road

Selah, WA 98942

UBI Number: 392 000174

Assigned to:

Date Assigned:

Department Use Only

Notice is hereby given relative to the completion ofcontractor projectdescribed below
JobOrde^ontracting

• Yes SI No
Contract NumberProject Name

BARTLETT AVENUE INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS
Description of Work Done/include Jobsite Address(es)

Reconstaiction of N. Wenas Rd and East Bartlett Ave intersection east leg, including 295 T crushed surfacing, 95 T
HMA pavement, 195 LF curb and gutter, 75 SY sidewalk, and storm drainage improvements. 222 So. Rushmore Rd
Selah, WA 98942

13108C

Contractor's Name

AGR Contracting, Inc.
E-mail Address

agr54(glive.com
Affidavit ID*

519861

Contractor Address

P.O. Box 56 Monroe, WA 98272
Te

(42
ephone #
>5)231-7219

if Retalnage is not withheld, please select one of the following and List Surety's Name & G

[H Retainage Bond 0 Contract/Payment bond(valid ft
ond Number.

>r federally funded transportation projects)

Name: Bond Number:
Date Contract Awarded

02/25/14

Date Work Commenced

03/31/14

Date Work Completed
04/15/14

Date Work Accepted

Were Subcontracters used onthis project? Ifso, please complete Addendum A. Slves [DNo
Affidavit ID* - No L&I release will be granted until all affidavits are listed.

Contract Amount

Additions (+)
Reductions (-)

Sub-Total

Amount ofSales Tax

(Ifvarious rales apply, please send a breakdown)

TOTAL

S

$'
%

$

s*

64.902.56

5,103.46

59.799.10

59.799.10

Liquidated Damages $
Amount Disbursed $

Amount Retained $

56.809.14

2,989.96

TOTAL $ 59,799.10

Comments:

NOTE: These two totals must be equal

Note: The Disbursing Officer must submit this completed notice immediately after acceptance of the work done under this contract.
NO PAYMENT SHALL BE MADE FROM RETAINED FUNDS until receipt ofall release certificates.
Submitting Form; Please submitthe completed form byemailto all threeagencies below.

Contact Name: Mr.Dale Novobielskl

Email Address: dnovobielsld@ci.setah.wa.us

(0
tTepaitment of Revenue
Public Works Section
(360)704-5650
PW(i®dcf.wa.gov

o WdskiRQiDn SlJitp Ocpatvrttni of

Labor & Industries
Contract Release
(855) 545-8163. option » 4
ContractRelease@LNI.WA.GOV

REV 31 0020e (4/28/14) F215-038-000 04-2014

Title: Clerk - Treasurer

Phone Number: (509)698-7326

Employment Security
Itepaitment
Registration, Inquiry,
Standards & Coordination
Unit

(360)902-9450
pubIlcworks@esd.wa.gov



Addendum A: Please List all Subcontractors and Sub-tiers Below

This addendum can be submined in other formats.

Provide known affidavits at this time. No L&l release will be crantcd until all affidavits are listed.

Subcontractor's Name: UBI Number: (Required) Affidavid ID''

Withrow Construction, Inc. 601 081 673 510055

Pro Cut Concrete Cutting Yakima, Inc. 602 212 S64 520110

Constmction Ahead, Inc. (dba Pavement Surface Control) 601 378 957 522040

Columbia Ready Mix, Inc. 600 533 314 519359

C P M Development Corp (dba Oldcastle, Inc.) 601 006 854 511676

For tax assistance or to request this document in an alternate format, please call 1-800-647-7706. Teletype (TTY) users may use the
Washington Relay Service by calling 711.

REV 31 0020e Addendum (04/28/14) F215-038-000 04-2014



City ofSelah
BARTLETT AVENUE INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS

13108C

AGR Contracting, Inc.
Contractor's Phone No.: (425)231'7219

PROJECT CLOSING CHECKLIST

"Mr. Dale Novoblelski:

• The City has received the following from Huibregtse,
Louman Associates, inc.:

o Final Progress Estimate:

o Notice of Completion of Public Works Contract DORyL&i/ESD:

o Notarized Statement:

o Confirmation that all Punch List items complete:

o Record Drawings:

Labor and equal employment opportunity documents:

0 Statement of intent / Affidavit of Wages paid approved

by the State Department of Labor and Industries:

o Certified payrolls for the Contractor and Sub-contractor:

• Council resolution authorizing project acceptance;

o Copv sent to HLA (cfitZ5immons@hiacivii.com):

• Sent 1 copy of Notice of Completion of Public Works Contract to

Department of Revenue:

o Received WS Department of Revenue Cert of Payment
Of State Excise Taxes by PW Contractor release:
{Example Copy Attached) v

• Sent 1 copy of Notice of Completion of Public Works Contract to

Employment Security Department:

o Recejved WS Employment Security Dept
Cert of Payment of Contribution.... PW Contract release:
(Example Copy Attached - Form EMS 6449 760 R3-98} i/

• Sent 1 copy of Notice of Completion of Public Works Contract

to Department of Labor and Industries:

o Received Dept. of Labor & industries Cert of Payment
Of industrial Insurance Premiums by PW Contractor release:
(Example Copy Attached)^

• There are no liens or claims for labor and materials

filed against retainage:
• A full sixty (60) days have elapsed since the official acceptance

of this project by the City Council:

• Released Retainage ($2,989.96):

o Copy sent to HLA (cfitzsimmons@hiacivii.com):

Date Received/Sent:

/^7r/^cA/0-o/sfA/r/o/zo/>

Se/vr o8//?/(Y

S^A/r oe/^tS//^

G:\PROJECTSC013V13108C SE BARTLEn AV6 INTERSECTK3N - AGR CONTRACTING. INCtf ROGRESS ESTIMATESVFINAL PROG EST NO 2*2014.04 PROG EST2 FINAL LTR.flf



Employment Security Department
WASMtNOTON STATE

P.O. Box 9046 Olympia. WA 98507-90461 Fax 360-902-9287

CITY OF GRANDVIEW
Attn: ANITA PALACIOS
207 W 2ND ST
GRANDVIEW, WA 98930

CONTRACTOR:

A & B ASPHALT INC
PO BOX 5280
BENTON CITY, WA 99320-5280

) CERTIFICATE OF
) PAYMENT OFCONTRIBUTIONS
) PENALTIES AND INTEREST ON
) PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT

ES Reference #: 41888600 6
UBI No: 600192346

,DP®iidv1|
APR 162012 U

CITY OF GRANDVIFW

The Employment Security Department hereby edifies thbM contributions, penalties and interest
due from the above named contractor under the EpiiilQynient Security Act have been paid in full or
provided for with respect to the folIowingjjpiAIic Works contract:

Description: EAST WINE COUNTjEIY ROAD IMPROVEMENTS.

Contract number I10I6C
•/ 'J

The Employment Security Departmenlihereby certifies that it has no claim pursuant to RCW
50.24.130 against the pul?lic b^'nlm^above for tax attributable to service performed for said
public body by the above Mmed conisactor on the above described contract The Employment
Security Department releases its iienjibn the retained percentage which is provided by RCW
60.28.040 for contributions, penal|ids and interest due from said contractor.

This certificate does not release said contractor from liability for additional contributions, penalties
and interest which may be later determined to be due with respect to the above mentioned contract.

Dated atOlympia, Washington onApril 12,2012.
EMPLOYMENT SECURITY DEPARTMENT

By

Robyn R. Wells

Authorized Representative

Original - Disbursing Officer
Duplicate - Employer
Triplicate- CentralOffice Files



0
Washington Slate Departmentof

Labor &Industries Olympia, WA 98504-4274

Certificate of Release of the State's Lien on Public Works Contracts

Awarding agency name

Attn: Disbursing officer name

Awarding agency address
.o

With this letter, the Washington State Department ofLabor &Ii^kries (L&I) approves of your
release or payment of the contract amount retained from the folldWi^co^tfactor

GC dba and address
V

s"

GC LNI account number A;
C' ' 's •..<P

— related to the following public works contract: %J

Public works contract name and number

In our opinion, all workers' compensatioi |̂tisui^ce premiums, increases, and penalties due to
L&I from thi/confractor have been paid iri^U drare readily collectible without recourse to the
state's lien |̂ n the retained percen^e^v^^ \
This letter'! sole purppse is to'cqpuii^icate our release of the state's lien to the public official
responsible fgr j^jdhg or authorizi^ the payment ofpublic funds to the contractor named above.

' -'i

Ifwe later determine that the contr^tor owes additional premiums related tothe above-
mentioned contract orother activjties, the contractor is still liable for payment.

Dated at Olympia, Washington.

State of Washington
Department of Labor & Industries

Contract Release Specialist

360-902-xxxx or XXX@Lni.wa.gov

Title51 RCW authorizes L&I to collectworkers'compensation insurance premiums, increases, and penalties.
Chapter 60.28RCW establishes L&I's priority regarding the lien.



WiisUingloii Slalc
Depamncni ofRevenue
PO Bo* 47474
OlympiB, WA 5)8504-7474

601 672 068

Certificate of Payment of State Excise
Taxes by Public Works Contractor

MRM CONSTRUCTION INC

PO BOX 838

BLLBNSBUR6 WA 88926 0838

CITY OF CLE ELUM

TOWI FIELDS, CITY CLERK
119 W FIRST ST

CLE ELUM WA 98903 0008

We hereby certify that taxes, increases and penalties dueor to become due from the above-named
contractor underChapter 180,Laws of 1935, as amended, with respect to the following public works
contract;

CITY OF CLE ELUM

05038hC STAFFORD AVE & SECOND ST TIB SIDEWALK IMPROVES

^gether with all odier taxes, increases and penalties due from such contractor, have been paid in full or that
tiiey are, in the Department's opinion, readily collectible without recourse to the state's lien on the retained
percentage.

This certificate is issued pursuant to the provision of Chapter60.28 Revised Code of Washington for the
sole purpose of informing the slate, county, or municipalofficer charged with the duty of disbursing or
authorizing the paymentof public funds to said contractor that theDeparbnent of Revenue herebyreleases
theState's lien on the retained percentage provided bytills Chapter forexcise taxes due from saidcontractor.

Tliis certificate does not release said contractor from liability for additional tax that may be later
determined to b&due with ryspeot to the above-mentioned contract or other activities.

Dated, _at01ympi a, Washington, ^

State of Wasliingtoii
lent of Revenue

Certifying Officer

To inquire aboutJbcavsilabilily ot this document in an altcntatcformat for the visually intpnlrcd orin a language other tlianEnglish, pleasecall(360)486-2342.
•y useis may call 1-800-451-7985.

REV 31 0028 (JO-01-02) ROIITINC: Disbursing Oj^ct, Contractor, File, Special Ftle



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

10/28/2014 M-3

Title: Resolution Establishing November 25, 2014 as the Public Hearing date
to consider the adoption of the "Water System Plan Update"

Thru: David Kelly, City Administrator

From: Joe Henne, Public Works Director

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: None

Funding Source: N/A

Staff Recommendation:

Set public hearing date of November 25th to consider the "Water System Plan
Update"

Background / Findings & Facts:

The Department of Health requires the City is to update its water plan every six
years.

Recommended Motion:

I move we adopt the Resolution establishing the 2014 Water System Plan

public hearing date.



RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING NOVEMBER 25,2014 AS THE PUBLIC
HEARING DATE TO CONSIDER THE ADOPTION OF THE "WATER

SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE"

WHEREAS, the Department of Health requires the City to update its water system plan every six
years; and,

WHEREAS, the City desires to adopt the updated water system plan; and,

WHEREAS, the City wishes to hold a public hearing to invite comments; and,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
SELAH, WASHINGTON, as follows:

That November 25,2014, at 6:30 p.m., or as soon thereafter as practical, in the Council
Chambers, City Hall Bldg., 115 W. Naches Avenue, Selah, WA. is established as the date,
time and place ofa public hearing to hear and decide said "2014 Water System Plan Update"
and that notice of said public hearing shall be provided as required by law.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH,
WASHINGTON, THIS 28*^ DAY OF OCTOBER, 2014.

ATTEST: John Gawlik, Mayor

Dale Novobielski, Clerk Treasurer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Robert F. Noe, City Attorney

RESOLUTION NO.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

10/28/2014 M-4

Title: Resolution Adopting Financial Policies for the City of Selah

Thru; David Kelly, City Administrator

From: Dale Novobielski, Clerk/Treasurer

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: Potential reduction in future debt interest costs due to an
improved Bond Rating.

Funding Source: Fund 001 General

Staff Recommendation:

Approve Resolution.

Background / Findings & Facts:

The City is currently in the process of refinancing debt on the Marudo property.

As a part of this process the City has requested a review and bond rating from
Standard & Poor's. This rating will be positively affected by the City having
Financial Policies in place.

Recommended Motion:

I move to approve the Resolution adopting Financial Policies for the City.



RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION ADOPTING FINANCIAL POLICIES FOR

THE CITY OF SELAH

WHEREAS,as stewards of the public's resources, the City Council and City Administrator
need to ensure sound financial management of the City; and

WHEREAS, a clear and well-designedset of financialpolicies can provide consistent guidance
regarding financial and budget decisions, and serveto assure citizens, creditors, grantors and
others interested in the City's financial condition, that the City is operated in a fiscally sound
and prudent manner; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to adopt the attached policies in futherance of the above stated
goals;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
SELAH, WASHINGTON, that the City Council hereby adopts the Financial Policies attached
hereto as the Financial Policies of the City of Selah.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH,
WASHINGTON this 28*^ day ofOctober, 2014.

John Gawlik, Mayor
ATTEST:

Dale E. Novobielski, Clerk Treasurer

APPROVED:

Robert Noe, City Attomey

RESOLUTION NO.



FINANCIAL POLICIES

Purpose;

The primary purpose of financial management policies is to provide guidelines
for the City Council and staff in making financial decisions that ensure core
services are maintained and the Council's vision for the community is achieved.

In addition, financial policies provide a level of security for the community by
ensuring resident's tax dollars are being used openly, legally, efficiently and
effectively and in a manner that provides insulation from fiscal crisis and
economic disruption.

Priorities & Practices;

The City will maintain the fiscal integrity of its operating, debt service and
capital improvement funds in order to provide services and maintain certain
public facilities, streets and utilities.

Sound financial management policies enable the City to accomplish the
following:

• Ensure the City maintains a financial base to sustain a consistent
level of municipal services.

• Ensure the City is able to withstand local and regional economic
variations.

• Direct attention to the total financial picture of the City rather than
single-issue areas.

• Adjust to changes in the service requirements of the community.
• Maintain a good credit rating in the financial community, which

assures taxpayers and ratepayers that City government is well
managed financially and is in sound fiscal condition.

Due to Selah's limited revenue base and the limited potential for future revenue
growth, the City must prioritize its services in order to maintain the most
important services should revenues become constrained. The following services
are considered priorities in the following order:

• Public Life, Health and Safety:
o Police, Fire, Emergency Medical Services; Building Inspections;

and Traffic Control,

o Water, Sewer, Garbage service and infrastructure maintenance.
• Legal Mandates: Accounting/auditing/financial reporting; land-use

planning.
• City Facilities and Property: maintenance of park land, buildings, streets

right of way, and equipment.
• Recreational, athletic, aquatic and youth programs.
• Pursue Council and Community goals.



To ensure the communily's dollars are being used efficiently and effectively, the
City will practice the following:

• Include all potential stakeholders in evaluating proposed alternate
services.

• Form partnerships with other local governments for the provision of
services to achieve economies of scale. Examples include contracting for
jail services, supplemental building inspection and issuance of business
licenses.

• Review partnerships with other local governments on an annual basis
during the preparation of the budget to evaluate impact and benefits.

• Explore the privatization of services on an annual basis during the
preparation of the budget.

• Citizen involvement will be encouraged in the budget decision-making
process to receive input from the Selah community on the level of
services desired.

Fund Balances;

General Fund

• The undesignated General Fund Balance (the balance not committed to a
designated purpose) will be maintained at a level to provide the City with
sufficient working capital and a comfortable margin of safety to address
emergencies and unexpected declines in revenue without borrowing.

• The City will not use the undesignated General Fund Balance to finance
recurring operating expenditures. This means annual General Fund
revenues will equal annual regular operating expenditures.

• General Fund revenues will be used for general government, street and
recreation programs only. General Fund revenues will not be used to
subsidize utility operations, which will be self-supporting through user
rates.

• The City will maintain a minimum undesignated General Fund Balance
equal to 10% of General Fund operating expenditures.

• In the event the undesignated General Fund Balance is used to provide
for temporaiy funding of unforeseen emergency need, the City will
restore the undesignated General Fund Balance to the minimum of 10%
within two fiscal years.

Enterprise Funds (Water/Sewer/Garbagel;

• Enterprise funds will be operated in a manner that maintains a
minimum ending fund balance that is not less than 20% of annual
operating expenditures.

• Utilities will be self-supporting through user rates and charges.



Charges and Fees for Service;

Cost Recovery

• Where direct beneficiaries of a city program or services can be identified,
fees will be established to recover the costs of that service or program.

• Some services provide benefit to the greater community. When a greater
community benefit is identified, the Oily may choose to subsidize, either
whole or in part, such service.

• Rental fees will be established to be comparable to commercial rates,
while at the same time recovering full costs of use of the property or
facility.

• As a whole, the Recreation Department will recover 50% of the overall
Department's costs throu^ charges and fees. City residents, who
support programs through general taxes, will pay less for programs than
non-residents.

• Fees for services wiU be reviewed and adjusted (where necessary)
aimually to ensure that rates are equitable and cover the cost of service.

Utility Rates;

• Utility rates will be reviewed annually as a part of the budget process.

• A detailed study of utility rates and other utility charges will conducted
at least eveiy five years to ensure utility revenue is meeting, and not
exceeding, need.

• Utility rates will be established using industry-standard methods,
including revenue requirement analysis, cost of service analysis, and rate
design analysis.

Cash Management and Investments:

At any one time the City may have several million dollars in various funds that
are not needed until some point in the future for operations, capital purchases
or the repayment of debt. By placing these revenues in interest-bearing
investments until the funds are needed, the City is able to earn interest that in
turn serves as a revenue source to reduce costs to the community.

A cash management / investment policy helps to balance the day-to-day need
for revenues while achieving the highest rate of interest that is reasonable and
within the City's acceptable level of investment risk.

Funds will be invested in only those investments permitted by Federal and
State law as it relates to public funds. All of the City's funds will be invested
with the following objectives (listed in the order of priority):



• Safety: Investments will be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure
the preservation of capital in the portfolio. Specifically, the City will (a)
seek to avoid realizing any loss through the sale or disposal of an
investment; and (b) seek to mitigate the risk of unrealized losses due to a
decline in value of investments held in the portfolio.

• Liquidity: The investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to meet
all cash requirements that may be reasonably anticipated. This wUl be
accomplished by structuring the portfolio in the following manner: (a)
The City will purchase investments scheduled to mature in accordance
with its anticipated cash needs, in order to minimize the need to sell
investments prior to maturity; (b) A portion of City funds will be
maintained in cash equivalents, including money market funds,
investment pools and overnight securities, which may be easily
liquidated without a loss of principsil should an unexpected need for cash
arise; and (c) The portfolio will consist largely of investments with active
secondary markets.

• Yield: The City's investments will be designed with the objective of
maximizing a fair rate of return consistent with the safety and liquidity
noted above.

Debt:

Borrowing funds may be necessaiy when an emergency arises, and debt can
also be used as a tool to pay for a project and spread the payments out over
time to future users.

• In considering whether to borrow, a reliable funding source to repay the
debt will be identified and designated.

• As General Fund debt is paid off, the dollars dedicated to that debt will
be reserved for other General Fund capital needs, including debt,
replacement and repair. The purpose of this practice is to reduce the
need to ask voters for a bond levy to pay for regular maintenance and
repair items.

• Long-term debt will not be used to finance ongoing current operations
and maintenance.

• TTie maturity date for any debt will not exceed the reasonable expected
useful life of the project or projects financed.

• The City will encourage and maintedn good relations with financial and
bond rating agencies, and will follow a policy of full and open disclosure
on every financial report and bond prospectus.

Reserve Policies:

Reserves provide important protections against the regular fluctuations of local
economic conditions, month-to-month variability of revenue collections and
emergencies. Reasonable reserves provide the working capital needed to
support City operations throu^ these cycles and should be set at a level that
can sustain city operations for the most adverse conditions that can reasonably
be expected.



• The City will strive to build the balance of the Contingency Fund to
equal a minimum of 10% of General Fund operating expenditures. The
City Council will determine how the Contingency Fund is spent.

• For each utility, an operating reserve will be maintained in an amount
equivalent to a minimum of 25% of annual operation and maintenance
expenses.

Budgeting;

• The City Council will adopt a balanced budget as required under State
law. Further, ongoing operating program costs will not exceed the
amount of ongoing revenue to finance those costs.

• The budget process will be coordinated in a way that major policy issues
are identified for City Council review and discussion several months prior
to budget approval. This will allow adequate time for public input and
analysis of options.

• One-time revenues will be used for one-time expenditures only.
• Each month the City website will be updated with current financial

information of the City's cash, investment, revenue and expenditures.

Accounting. Auditing and Financial Reporting Policies:

The City will establish and maintain a high standard of internal controls and
accounting practices. The City accounts for revenues and expenditures on a
cash basis.

The accoimting system will maintain records consistent with accepted
standards for local government accounting which is based on another
comprehensive basis of accounting (OCBOA) as prescribed by the State
Auditor's Office and contained in the State of Washington Budgeting,
Accounting and Reporting Systems (BARS) Manual.

The City wUl ensure that City records are audited bi-annually and which will
result in the issuance of a financial opinion. The results of such audit will be
available to the public via the State Auditor's website.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

A GENDA ITEM SUMMAR Y

Council Meeting Action Item

10/28/2014 N-1

Title: Ordinance Providing for the Issuance of Bonds to Refinance Marudo
Property Debt

Thru: David Kelly, City Administrator

From: Dale Novobielski, Clerk/Treasurer

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: Approximately $ 221,000 in interest savings over the next 8
years.

Funding Source: Fund 001 General

Staff Recommendation:

Approve Resolution.

Background / Findings <& Facts:

Current lending market rates make it favorable for the City to refinance its
2012 LTGO debt.

Recommended Motion:

I move to approve the Ordinance providing for the issuance of bonds to

refinance the existing Marudo Property debt.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Record of all prior actions taken by the City Council and/or a City Board, City
Committee, Planning Commission, or the Hearing Examiner (where applicable)

Date: Action Taken:

10/14/2014 Council approved an underwriting engagement letter with
D.A. Davidson for the refinancing of the Marudo debt.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enters date. Click here to enter text.



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE of the City of Selah, Washington, relating to
contracting indebtedness; providing for the issuance, fixing or setting parameters
with respect to certain terms and covenants, and fixing the form of not to exceed
$3,500,000 aggregate principal amount limited tax general obligation refimding
bonds to provide money with which to pay the cost of refunding, paying and
redeeming certain outstanding nonvoted obligations of the City; providing for and
authorizing the purchase of certain obligations out of the proceeds of the sale of
the refunding bonds herein authorized and for the use and application of the
money derived from those investments; authorizing the execution of an agreement
with U.S. Bank National Association, as refunding trustee; providing for the call,
payment and redemption of the outstanding bonds to be refunded; appointing the
City's designated representative to approve the final terms of the sale, issuance
and delivery of the bonds; authorizing the sale and providing for the delivery of
the bonds to D.A. Davidson & Co.; and providing for other matters properly
related thereto.

ADOPTED: OCTOBER 28,2014

SU9S3M3

This document prepared by:

Foster Pepper PLLC
West 422 Riverside Avenue, Suite 1310

Spokane, Washington 99201
(509) 777-1600



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

Section 1 . Definitions 1

Section 2 . Findings and Determinations 5

Section 3 . Debt Capacity 7

Section 4. Authorization and Description of Bonds 7

Section 5. Appointment of Designated Representative; Setting Parameters with
Respect to the Final Terms; Approval of Bond Purchase Agreement;
Expiration ofAuthority 8

Section 6 . Bond Registrar; Registration and Transfer ofBonds 8

Section 7. Form and Execution of Bonds 9

Section 8 . Payment of Bonds 9

Section 9 . Redemption Provisions; Purchase of Bonds 10

Section 10. Failure to Pay Bonds 11

Section 11 , Pledge ofTaxes 11

Section 12. Tax Covenants 11

Section 13 . Reftmding or Defeasance of the Bonds 12

Section 14. Bond Fund; Deposit ofBond Proceeds 12

Section 15 . Refunding 13

Section 16 . Call for Redemption of the Refunded Bonds 15

Section 17 . Official Statement; Continuing Disclosure 15

Section 18 . Supplemental and Amendatory Ordinances 16

Section 19 . General Authorization and Ratification 16

Section 20. Severability 16

Section 21 . Effective Date of Ordinance 17

Exhibit A Parameters for Final Terms

Exhibit B Form of Undertaking to Provide Continuing Disclosure



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE of the City of Selah, Washington, relating to
contracting indebtedness; providing for the issuance, fixing or setting parameters
with respect to certain terms and covenants, and fixing the form of not to exceed
$3,500,000 aggregate principal amount limited tax general obligation refunding
bonds to provide money with which to pay the cost of refunding, paying and
redeeming certain outstanding nonvoted obligations of the City; providing for and
authorizing the purchase of certain obligations out of the proceeds of the sale of
the refunding bonds herein authorized and for the use and application of the
money derived from those investments; authorizing the execution of an agreement
with U.S. Bank National Association, as refunding trustee; providing for the call,
payment and redemption of the outstanding bonds to be refunded; appointing the
City's designated representative to approve the final terms of the sale, issuance
and delivery of the bonds; authorizing the sale and providing for the delivery of
the bonds to D.A. Davidson & Co.; and providing for other matters properly
related thereto.

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH DO ORDAIN as follows:

Section 1. Definitions. As used in this ordinance, the following words and terms
shall have the following meanings, unless the context or use indicates another or different
meaning or intent. Unless the context indicates, words importing the singular number shall
include the plural number and vice versa.

(a) "2012 Bond" means the City's Limited Tax General Obligation Refimding Bond,
2012 (Tax-Exempt), issued in the original principal amount of $425,066.81 pursuant to the 2012
Ordinance.

(b) "2012B Bond" means the City's Limited Tax General Obligation Refimding
Bond, 2012B (Taxable), issued in the original principal amount of $3,330,000 pursuant to the
2012B Ordinance.

(c) "2012 Ordinance" means Ordinance No. 1882 passed by the Council and
approved by the Mayor and the Council on May 22, 2012, as amended by Ordinance No. 1885
passed by the Council and approved by the Mayor and the Council on June 12,2012, collectively
authorizing the sale, issuance and delivery of the 2012 Bond.

(d) "2012B Ordinance" means Ordinance No. 1886 passed by the Council and
approved by the Mayor and the Council on June 12, 2012, authorizing the sale, issuance and
delivery of the 2012B Bond.

(e) "Administrator" means the City Administrator or such other officer of the City
who may in the future perform the duties ofthat office, if any.



(f) "Acquired Obligations" means noncallable, nonprepayable Government
Obligations purchased to accomplish the Refunding.

(g) "Aggregate Purchase Price" means the price to be paid by the Purchaser for the
Bonds, calculated as the stated principal amount of the Bonds, plus original issue premium, if
any, net oforiginal issue discount, if any, and less underwriter's discount.

(h) "Authorized Denomination" means $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof within
a maturity.

(i) "Beneficial Owner" means, with respect to a Bond, the owner of any beneficial
interest in that Bond.

(j) "Bond Counsel" means the firm of Foster Pepper PLLC, its successor, or any
other attorney or firm of attorneys selected by the City with a nationally recognized standing as
bond counsel in the field ofmunicipal finance.

(k) "Bond Fimd" means the City's existing Limited Tax General Obligation Bond
Fund.

(1) "Bond Purchase Agreement" means an offer to purchase the Bonds, setting forth
certain terms and conditions of the issuance, sale and delivery of the Bonds, which offer is
authorized to be accepted by the Designated Representative on behalf of the City, if consistent
with this ordinance.

(m) "Bond Register" means the books or records maintained by the Bond Registrar for
the purpose of identifying ownership ofeach Tax-Exempt and Taxable Bond.

(n) "Bond Registrar" means the fiscal agent of the State, as the same may be
designated by the State fi-om time to time, or any successor bond registrar selected by the
Treasurer.

(o) "Bonds" means collectively, the Tax-Exempt Bonds and the Taxable Bonds.

(p) "City" means the City of Selah, Washington, a code city and municipal
corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State.

(q) "City Contribution" means legally available money of the City, in addition to
Tax-Exempt and/or Taxable Bond proceeds, necessary or advisable to accomplish the
Refunding, as determined by the Designated Representative.

(r) "Clerk" means the de facto or de jure Clerk of the City, or other officer of the City
who is die custodian of the seal of the City and of the records of the proceedings of the Council,
and her successors in functions, if any.

(s) "Code" means the United States Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and
applicable rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

S13983S4.3



(t) "Council" means the legislative authority of the City, as duly and regularly
constituted from time to time.

(u) "Designated Representative" means the officer or employee of the City appointed
in Section 5 hereof to serve as the City's designated representative in accordance with RCW
39.46.040(2) for purposes of accepting and executing, on behalf of the City, the Bond Purchase
Agreement on terms consistent with this ordinance and the parameters for Final Terms set forth
herein.

(v) "DTC" means The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, or its
nominee.

(w) "Final Terms" means the terms and conditions for the sale of the Bonds including
the amount, date or dates, denominations, interest rate or rates (or mechanism for determining
interest rate or rates), payment dates, final maturity, redemption rights, price, and other terms and
conditions deemed appropriate by the Council.

(x) "Government Obligations" means direct obligations of the United States of
America, including cash that is legal tender of the United States ofAmerica.

(y) "Issue Date" means, with respect to a Bond, the date of initial issuance and
delivery of that Bond to the Purchaser in exchange for the purchase price of that Bond.

(z) "Letter of Representations" means the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations
between the City and DTC, dated October 23,2001, as it may be amended from time to time, and
any successor or substitute letter relating to the operational procedures of the Securities
Depository.

(aa) "Mayor" means the de facto or de jure Mayor of the City (including the Mayor
pro tempore in the Mayor's absence), or any presiding officer or titular head of the City, and his
successors in functions, if any.

(bb) "MSRB" means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.

(cc) "Net Premium" means that portion of original issue premium, if any, net of
original issue discount, if any, which is in excess of the sum of the underwriter's discount and all
other costs related to the sale, issuance and delivery of the Bonds.

(dd) "Owners" means, without distinction, the Registered Owner(s) and the Beneficial
Owner(s).

(ee) "Preliminary Official Statement" means the Preliminary Official Statement
regarding the Bonds.

(ff) "Purchaser" means D.A. Davidson & Co., Seattle, Washington.

(gg) "Rating Agency" means any nationally recognized rating agency then maintaining
a rating on the Bonds at the request of the City.

513983543



(hh) "RCW" means the Revised Code of Washington.

(ii) "Record Date" means the Bond Registrar's close of business on the IS"' day of
the month preceding an interest payment date. With respect to redemption of a Bond prior to its
maturity, the Record Date shall mean the Bond Registrar's close of business on the date on
which Ae Bond Registrar sends the notice of redemption in accordance with Section 9.

(jj) "Refunded Bonds" means, depending upon context, the 2012 Bond and/or the
2012B Bond.

(kk) "Refunding" means, depending upon context, the prepayment and redemption of
(i) the 2012 Bond through the issuance of the Tax-Exempt Bonds, and/or (ii) the 2012B Bond
through the issuance of the Taxable Bonds, all as more particularly described in the Bond
Purchase Agreement and/or the Refunding Trust Agreement.

(11) "Refunding Trust Agreement" means the Refunding Trust Agreement dated the
Issue Date between the City and the Reftmding Trustee as further described in Section 15 hereof.

(mm) "Refunding Trustee" means U.S. Bank National Association of Seattle,
Washington.

(nn) "Registered Owner" means, with respect to a Bond, the person in whose name
that Bond is registered on the Bond Register. For so long as the City utilizes the book-entry only
system for the Bonds under the Letter of Representations, Registered Owner shall mean the
Securities Depository.

(oo) "Rule 15c2-12" means Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the SEC under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

(pp) "SEC" means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.

(qq) "Substitute Obligations" means other noncallable, nonprepayable direct
obligations of the United States of America that are substituted for any of the Acquired
Obligations.

(rr) "Securities Depository" means DTC, any successor thereto, any substitute
securities depository selected by the City that is qualified under applicable laws and regulations
to provide the services proposed to be provided by it, or the nominee of any ofthe foregoing.

(ss) "SIED Loans" means, collectively, the Supporting Investments in Economic
Diversification Loan, Contract Nos. YC-NP-05 and YC-SPD-08 between the City and Yakima
County, Washington.

(tt) "State" means the State ofWashington.

(uu) "Tax-Exempt Bonds" means the City's Limited Tax General Obligation
Refimding Bonds, 2014A (Tax-Exempt), issued pursuant to and for the purposes provided in this
ordinance.



(w) "Taxable Bonds" means the City's Limited Tax General Obligation Refunding
Bonds, 2014B (Taxable), issued pursuant to and for the purposes provided in this ordinance.

(ww) "Tax-Exempt Defeasance Account" means the escrow account created pursuant to
this ordinance, either by the Treasurer or the Refunding Trustee, into which proceeds of the Tax-
Exempt Bonds will be deposited in the event such proceeds are not transferred to the holder of
the 2012 Bond as full payment thereof, pursuant to the parameters for Final Terms set forth
herein.

(xx) "Taxable Defeasance Account" means the escrow account created pursuant to this
ordinance, either by the Treasurer or the Refunding Trustee, into which proceeds of the Taxable
Bonds will be deposited in the event such proceeds are not transferred to the holder of the 2012B
Bond as full payment thereof, pursuant to the parameters for Final Terms set forth herein.

(yy) "Term Bond" means each Bond designated as a Term Bond and subject to
mandatory redemption in the years and amounts set forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement.

(zz) "Treasurer" means the de facto or de jure Treasurer of the City, and his successors
in functions, if any.

(aaa) "Undertaking" means the undertaking to provide continuing disclosure entered
into pursuant to Section 17 ofthis ordinance.

Section 2. Findings and Determinations. The Council takes note of the following
facts and makes the following findings and determinations;

(a) RCW 39.46.040(2) provides that an ordinance authorizing the issuance of bonds
may authorize an officer or employee of the City to serve as the City's designated representative
and to accept, on behalf of the City, an offer to purchase those bonds so long as the acceptance of
such offer is consistent with terms established by an ordinance that establishes the following
terms for the bonds (or parameters with respect thereto): the amoimt, date, denominations,
interest rates, payment dates, final maturity, redemption rights, price, minimum savings for
refunding bonds, and any other terms and conditions deemed appropriate by the Council.

(b) Pursuant to the 2012 Ordinance, the City issued the 2012 Bond to redeem the
City's outstanding SIED Loans, originally issued to finance costs of street improvements and
ancillary infrastructure. By the 2012 Ordinance, the City reserved the right to prepay any or all of
the outstanding principal amount of the 2012 Bond on any Jime 1 or December 1 at par plus
accrued interest to the date of prepayment. The 2012 Bond is currently outstanding in the
principal amount of$370,528 and bears interest at the rate of 3.60%per annum.

(c) Pursuant to the 2012B Ordinance, the City issued the 2012B Bond to redeem the
City's outstanding Limited Tax General Obligation Bonds, 2002, originally issued to finance part
of the cost of acquiring land and other lawful purposes. By the 2012B Ordinance, the City
reserved the right to prepay any or all of the outstanding principal amount of the 2012B Bond on
any June 1 or December 1 at par plus accrued interest to the date of prepayment. The 2012B
Bond is currently outstanding in the principal amount of $2,867,029 and bears interest at the rate
of4.30% per annum.



(d) After due consideration, it appears to the Council that the Reftmded Bonds may
be refunded by the sale, issuance and delivery of the Bonds authorized and described herein, so
long as a substantial savings will be effected by the difference between the principal and interest
cost over the life of the Bonds and the principal and interest cost over the life of the Refunded
Bonds but for such refunding. The Council deems it to be in the best interests of the City to sell,
issue and deliver the Bonds, subject to the provisions of this ordinance, to accomplish the
Refunding. If the Refunded Bonds cannot be retired within a short period of time after the Bonds
are issued, it will be necessary and advisable that certain Acquired Obligations bearing interest
(if any) and maturing at the time or times as necessary to accomplish the Refunding be purchased
out of the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds.

(e) If Tax-Exempt Bonds can be sold, issued and delivered pursuant to the authority
delegated by Section 5 of this ordinance, then such sale, issuance and delivery of Tax-Exempt
Bonds will effect a savings to the City and its taxpayers, which savings will be in the best
interest of the City and in the public interest. In making such finding and determination, the
Council has given consideration to the parameters for Final Terms set forth in this ordinance for
issuing the Tax-Exempt Bonds, the anticipated maturities of the Tax-Exempt Bonds and the 2012
Bond, the estimated costs related to the sale, issuance and delivery of the Tax-Exempt Bonds and
the expected income fi-om the investment of the proceeds of the issuance and sale of the Tax-
Exempt Bonds and the City Contribution, if any, used in the Reflmding pending payment and
redemption of the 2012 Bond. Immediately upon the deposit of Tax-Exempt Bond proceeds in
the Tax-Exempt Defeasance Account in accordance with this ordinance, such deposit of Tax-
Exempt Bond proceeds \vill discharge and satisfy the obligations of the City under the 2012
Ordinance with respect to the 2012 Bond, and the pledges, charges, trusts, covenants and
agreements of the City therein made or provided for as to the 2012 Bond, and that the 2012 Bond
shall no longer be deemed to be outstanding under the 2012 Ordinance.

(f) If Taxable Bonds can be sold, issued and delivered pursuant to the authority
delegated by Section 5 of this ordinance, then such sale, issuance and delivery of Taxable Bonds
will effect a savings to the City and its taxpayers, which savings will be in the best interest of the
City and in the public interest. In making such finding and determination, the Council has given
consideration to the parameters for Final Terms set forth in this ordinance for issuing the Taxable
Bonds, the anticipated maturities of the Taxable Bonds and the 2012B Bond, the estimated costs
related to the sale, issuance and delivery of the Taxable Bonds and the expected income from the
investment of the proceeds of the issuance and sale of the Taxable Bonds and the City
Contribution, if any, used in the Refunding pending payment and redemption of the 20I2B
Bond. Immediately upon the deposit of Taxable Bond proceeds in the Taxable Defeasance
Account in accordance wdth this ordinance, such deposit of Taxable Bond proceeds will
discharge and satisfy the obligations of the City under the 2012B Ordinance with respect to the
2012B Bond, and the pledges, charges, trusts, covenants and agreements of the City therein made
or provided for as to the 2012B Bond, and that the 2012B Bond shall no longer be deemed to be
outstanding under the 2012B Ordinance.

(g) The Council, pursuant to RCW 39.46.040(2), desires to delegate authority to the
Administrator, for a limited time, to accept the Final Terms of, and execute, the Bond Purchase
Agreement, subject to the parameters for Final Terms set forth in this ordinance.



(h) Pursuant to Ordinance No. 1882, passed by the Council and approved by the
Mayor and the Council on May 22, 2012, the Council adopted Post-Issuance Compliance
Policies and Procedures for Tax-Exempt Bonds. Such procedures remain in effect and have not
been repealed, revoked or rescinded.

Section 3. Debt Capacity. The assessed valuation of the taxable property within the
City as ascertained by the last preceding assessment for City purposes for the calendar year 2014
is $563,871,437. Following the prepayment and/or defeasance of the Refunded Bonds on the
Issue Date, the City will have outstanding general indebtedness evidenced by limited tax general
obligation bonds, notes, leases and conditional sales contracts in the principal amount of
$166,192 (in addition to the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds) incurred within the
constitutional limit of up to 154% of the value of the taxable property within the City permitted
for general municipal purposes without a vote of the qualified voters therein. The City has no
unlimited tax general obligation (voter-approved) bonds outstanding. The aggregate amount of
indebtedness for the Bonds authorized herein to be issued is not to exceed $3,500,000, which,
when added to the outstanding non-voted indebtedness of the City and to the aggregate general
indebtedness of the City, is within the statutory and constitutional limits of indebtedness
prescribed for code cities such as the City.

Section 4. Authorization and Description ofBonds.

(a) Tax-Exempt Bonds. The City shall sell, issue and deliver the Tax-Exempt Bonds,
designated as the City's "Limited Tax General Obligation Refunding Bonds, 2014A (Tax-
Exempt)" (unless otherwise designated pursuant to the parameters for Final Terms set forth in
Exhibit A-1, which is attached to this ordinance and incorporated herein by this reference), to
prepay and redeem the 2012 Bond. Subject to the parameters for Final Terms, the Tax-Exempt
Bonds shall be issued in an aggregate principal amount not exceeding $400,000; shall be in
Authorized Denominations; and shall be numbered separately in the manner and with any
additional designation as the Bond Registrar deems necessary for purposes of identification. The
Tax-Exempt Bonds shall be dated their Issue Date, shall bear interest fi-om their Issue Date at the
rates and shall mature in the years and principal amounts, including the designation of Term
Bonds, if any, all as set forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement accepted by the Designated
Representative pursuant to Section 5 hereof.

(b) Taxable Bonds. The City shall sell, issue and deliver the Taxable Bonds,
designated as the City's "Limited Tax General Obligation Refunding Bonds, 2014B (Taxable)"
(unless otherwise designated pursuant to the parameters for Final Terms set forth in Exhibit A-2,
which is attached to this ordinance and incorporated herein by this reference), to prepay and
redeem the 2012B Bond. Subject to the parameters for Final Terms, the Taxable Bonds shall be
issued in an aggregate principal amount not exceeding $3,100,000; shall be in Authorized
Denominations; and shall be numbered separately in the manner and with any additional
designation as the Bond Registrar deems necessary for purposes of identification. The Taxable
Bonds shall be dated their Issue Date, shall bear interest ffom their Issue Date at the rates and
shall mature in the years and principal amounts, including the designation ofTerm Bonds, if any,
all as set forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement accepted by the Designated Representative
pursuant to Section 5 hereof.



Section 5. Appointment of Designated Representative: Setting Parameters with

Respect to the Final Terms: Approval of Bond Purchase Agreement: Expiration of Authority.
Pursuant to RCW 39.46.040(2), the Administrator is hereby appointed as the City's Designated
Representative and is authorized and directed, on the City's behalf, to accept the Final Terms of,
and execute, the Bond Purchase Agreement subject to the parameters for Final Terms set forth in
Exhibits A-1 and A-2. Final Terms shall be confirmed in the Bond Purchase Agreement and/or
separate certificate(s) approved and executed by the Designated Representative in connection
with the issuance of the Bonds. The authority granted to the Designated Representative by this
Section 5, and the authority to issue Bonds pursuant to this ordinance shall expire on
December 31,2015.

Section 6. Bond Registrar: Registration and Transfer of Bonds.

(a) Registration of Bonds. The Bonds shall be issued only in registered form as to
both principal and interest and the ownership of each Bond shall be recorded on the Bond
Register.

(b) Bond Registrar: Duties. Pursuant to RCW 39.46.030(3)(a), the Treasurer has
appointed the Bond Registrar. The Bond Registrar shall keep, or cause to be kept, sufficient
books for the registration and transfer of the Bonds, which shall be open to inspection by the City
at all times. The Bond Registrar is authorized, on behalf of the City, to authenticate and deliver
Bonds transferred or exchanged in accordance with the provisions of the Bonds and this
ordinance, to serve as the City's paying agent for the Bonds and to carry out all of the Bond
Registrar's powers and duties under this ordinance. The Bond Registrar shall be responsible for
its representations contained in the Bond Registrar's Certificate of Authentication on each Bond.
The Bond Registrar may become an Owner with the same rights it would have if it were not the
Bond Registrar and, to the extent permitted by law, may act as depository for and permit any of
its officers or directors to act as members of, or in any other capacity with respect to, any
committee formed to protect the rights of Owners.

(c) Bond Register: Transfer and Exchange. The Bond Register shall contain the
name and mailing address of each Registered Owner and the principal amount and number of
each Bond held by each Registered Owner. A Bond surrendered to the Bond Registrar may be
exchanged for a Bond or Bonds of the same series, in any Authorized Denomination of an equal
aggregate principal amount and of the same interest rate and maturity. A Bond may be
transferred only if endorsed in the manner provided thereon and surrendered to the Bond
Registrar. Any exchange or transfer shall be without cost to the Owner or transferee. The Bond
Registrar shall not be obligated to exchange any Bond or transfer registered ownership during the
period between the applicable Record Date and the next upcoming interest payment or
redemption date.

(d) Securities Depositorv: Book-Entrv Onlv Form. DTC is appointed as initial
Securities Depository. Each Bond initially shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as the
nominee of DTC. Each Bond registered in the name of the Securities Depository shall be held
fully immobilized in book-entry only form by the Securities Depository in accordance with the
provisions of the Letter of Representations. Registered ownership of any Bond registered in the
name of the Securities Depository may not be transferred except: (i) to any successor Securities



Depository; (ii) to any substitute Securities Depository appointed by the City; or (iii) to any
person if the Bond is no longer to be held in book-entry only form. Upon the resignation of the
Securities Depository, or upon a termination of the services of the Securities Depository by the
City, the City may appoint a substitute Securities Depository. If (i) the Securities Depository
resigns and the City does not appoint a substitute Securities Depository, or (ii) the City
terminates the services of the Securities Depository, the Bonds no longer shall be held in book-
entry only form and the registered ownership of each Bond may be transferred to any person as
provided in this ordinance. Neither the City nor the Bond Registrar shall have any obligation to
participants ofany Securities Depository or the persons for whom they act as nominees regarding
accuracy of any records maintained by the Securities Depository or its participants. Neither the
City nor the Bond Registrar shall be responsible for any notice that is permitted or required to be
given to a Registered Owner except such notice as is required to be given by the Bond Registrar
to the Securities Depository.

Section 7. Form and Execution of Bonds.

(a) Form of Bonds: Signatures and Seal. Each Bond shall be prepared in a form
consistent with the provisions of this ordinance and State law. Each Bond shall be signed by the
Mayor and the Clerk, either or both of whose signatures may be manual or in facsimile, and the
seal of the City or a facsimile reproduction thereof shall be impressed or printed thereon. The
Bonds shall be printed at City expense and shall be delivered to the Purchaser in accordance Avith
the Bond Purchase Agreement, together with the approving legal opinion of Bond Counsel
regarding the Bonds. If any officer whose manual or facsimile signature appears on a Bond
ceases to be an of&cer of the City authorized to sign bonds before the Bond bearing his or her
manual or facsimile signature is authenticated by the Bond Registrar, or issued or delivered by
the City, that Bond nevertheless may be authenticated, issued and delivered and, when
authenticated, issued and delivered, shall be as binding on the City as though that person had
continued to be an officer of the City authorized to sign bonds. Any Bond also may be signed on
behalf of the City by any person who, on the actual date of signing of the Bond, is an officer of
the City authorized to sign bonds, although he or she did not hold the required office on its Issue
Date.

(b) Authentication. Only a Bond bearing a Certificate of Authentication in
substantially the following form, manually signed by the Bond Registrar, shall be valid or
obligatory for any purpose or entitled to the benefits of this ordinance: "Certificate Of
Authentication. This Bond is one of the fully registered City of Selah, Washington, Limited Tax
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, [2014A (Tax-Exempt)][2014B (Taxable)]." The
authorized signing of a Certificate of Authentication shall be conclusive evidence that the Bond
so authenticated has been duly executed, authenticated and delivered and is entitled to the
benefits of this ordinance.

Section 8. Pavment of Bonds. Principal of and interest on each Bond shall be
payable in lawful money of the United States of America. Principal ofand interest on each Bond
registered in the name of the Securities Depository is payable in the manner set forth in the
Letter of Representations. Interest on each Bond not registered in the name of the Securities
Depository is payable by electronic transfer on the interest payment date, or by check or draft of
the Bond Registrar mailed on the interest payment date to the Registered Owner at the address



appearing on the Bond Register on the Record Date. However, the City is not required to make
electronic transfers except pursuant to a request by a Registered Owner in writing received on or
prior to the Record Date and at the sole expense of the Registered Ovmer. Principal ofeach Bond
not registered in the name of the Securities Depository is payable upon presentation and
surrender of the Bond by the Registered Owner to the Bond Registrar. The Bonds are not subject
to acceleration under any circumstances.

Section 9. Redemption Provisions: Purchase ofBonds.

(a) Optional Redemption. The Bonds shall be subject to redemption at the option of
the City, on terms acceptable to the Designated Representative, if and to the extent set forth in
the Bond Purchase Agreement, consistent with the parameters for Final Terms set forth in
Exhibit A.

(b) Mandatorv Redemption. Each Bond that is designated as a Term Bond in the
Bond Purchase Agreement, consistent with the parameters for Final Terms set forth herein and
except as set forth below, shall be called for redemption at a price equal to the stated principal
amount to be redeemed, plus accrued interest, on the dates and in the amounts as set forth in the
Bond Purchase Agreement. If a Term Bond is redeemed under the optional redemption
provisions, defeased or purchased by the City and surrendered for cancellation, the principal
amount of the Term Bond so redeemed, defeased or purchased (irrespective of its actual
redemption or purchase price) shall be credited against one or more scheduled mandatory
redemption installments for that Term Bond. The City shall determine the manner in which the
credit is to be allocated and shall notify the Bond Registrar in vsriting of its allocation prior to the
earliest mandatory redemption date for that Term Bond for which notice of redemption has not
already been given.

(c) Selection of Bonds for Redemption: Partial Redemption. If fewer than all of the
outstanding Bonds of a series are to be redeemed at the option of the City, the City shall select
the maturities within that series to be redeemed. If fewer than all of the outstanding Bonds of a
particular maturity within a series are to be redeemed, the Securities Depository shall select such
Bonds registered in the name of the Securities Depository to be redeemed in accordance with the
Letter of Representations, and the Bond Registrar shall select all other such Bonds to be
redeemed randomly in such manner as the Bond Registrar shall determine. All or a portion of the
principal amount of any Bond that is to be redeemed may be redeemed in any Authorized
Denomination. If less than all of the outstanding principal amount of any Bond is redeemed,
upon surrender of that Bond to the Bond Registrar, there shall be issued to the Registered Owner,
without charge, a new Bond (or Bonds, at the option of the Registered Owner) ofthe same series,
maturity and interest rate in any Authorized Denomination in the aggregate principal amount to
remain outstanding.

(d) Notice of Redemption. Notice of redemption of each Bond registered in the name
of the Securities Depository shall be given in accordance with the Letter of Representations.
Notice of redemption of each other Bond, unless waived by the Registered Owner, shall be given
by the Bond Registrar not less than 20 nor more than 60 days prior to the date fixed for
redemption by first-class mail, postage prepaid, to the Registered Ovmer at the address appearing
on the Bond Register on the Record Date. The requirements of the preceding sentence shall be

10
$13983543



satisfied when notice has been mailed as so provided, whether or not it is actually received by an
Owner. In addition, the redemption notice shall be mailed or sent electronically within the same
period to the MSRB (if required by the Undertaking), to each Rating Agency, and to such other
persons and with such additional information as the Clerk shall determine, but these additional
mailings shall not be a condition precedent to the redemption ofany Bond.

(e) Rescission of Optional Redemption Notice. In the case of an optional redemption,
the notice of redemption may state that the City retains the right to rescind the redemption notice
and the redemption by giving a notice of rescission to the affected Registered Ovmers at any time
on or prior to the date fixed for redemption. Any notice of optional redemption that is so
rescinded shall be of no effect, and each Bond for which a notice of redemption has been
rescinded shall remain outstanding.

(f) Effect of Redemption. Interest on each Bond called for redemption shall cease to
accrue on the date fixed for redemption, unless either the notice of optional redemption is
rescinded as set forth above, or money sufficient to effect such redemption is not on deposit in
the Bond Fund or in a trust account established to refund or defease the Bond.

(g) Purchase ofBonds. The City reserves the right to purchase any or all of the Bonds
offered to the City at any time at any price acceptable to the City plus accrued interest to the date
of purchase.

Section 10. Failure to Pav Bonds. If the principal of any Bond is not paid when the
Bond is properly presented at its maturity date or date fixed for redemption, the City shall be
obligated to pay interest on that Bond at the same rate provided in the Bond from and after its
maturity or date fixed for redemption until that Bond, both principal and interest, is paid in full
or until sufficient money for its payment in full is on deposit in the Bond Fund, or in a trust
account established to refund or defease the Bond, and the Bond has been called for payment by
giving notice of that call to the Registered Owner.

Section 11. Pledge of Taxes. The Bonds constitute a general indebtedness of the City
and are payable from tax revenues of the City and such other money as is lav^lly available and
pledged by the City for the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds. For as long as any
of the Bonds are outstanding, the City irrevocably pledges that it shall, in the manner provided
by law within the constitutional and statutory limitations provided by law without the assent of
the voters, include in its annual property tax levy amounts sufficient, together with other money
that is lawfully available, to pay principal of and interest on the Bonds as the same become due.
The full faith, credit and resources of the City are pledged irrevocably for the prompt payment of
the principal of and interest on the Bonds and such pledge shall be enforceable in mandamus
against the City.

Section 12. Tax Covenants.

(a) Preservation of Tax Exemption for Interest on Tax-Exemot Bonds. The City
covenants that it will take all actions necessary to prevent interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds
from being included in gross income for federal income tax purposes, and it will neither take any
action nor make or permit any use of proceeds of the Tax-Exempt Bonds or other funds of the

11



City treated as proceeds of the Tax-Exempt Bonds at any time during the term of the Tax-
Exempt Bonds which will cause interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds to be included in gross
income for federal income tax purposes. The City also covenants that it will, to the extent the
arbitrage rebate requirements of Section 148 of the Code are applicable to the Tax-Exempt
Bonds, take all actions necessary to comply (or to be treated as having complied) with those
requirements in connection with the Tax-Exempt Bonds.

(b) Designation of Tax-Exempt Bonds as "Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations." The
Tax-Exempt Bonds are designated as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for the purposes of
Section 265(b)(3) of the Code. In making such designation, the Council finds and determines
that: (l)the Tax-Exempt Bonds will not be "private activity bonds" within the meaning of
Section 141 of the Code; (2) the reasonably anticipated amount of tax-exempt obligations (other
than private activity bonds and other obligations not required to be included in such calculation)
that the City and any entity subordinate to the City (including any entity that the City controls,
that derives its authority to issue tax-exempt obligations from the City, or that issues tax-exempt
obligations on behalf of the City) will issue during the calendar year in which the Tax-Exempt
Bonds are issued {i.e. 2014) will not exceed $10,000,000; and (3) the amount of tax-exempt
obligations, including the Tax-Exempt Bonds, designated by the City as "qualified tax-exempt
obligations" for the purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code during the calendar year in which
the Tax-Exempt Bonds are issued will not exceed $10,000,000.

Section 13. Refunding or Defeasance of the Bonds. The City may issue refunding
bonds pursuant to State law or use money available from any other lawful source to carry out a
refunding or defeasance plan, which may include (a) paying when due the principal of and
interest on any or all of the Bonds (the "defeased Bonds"); (b) redeeming the defeased Bonds
prior to their maturity; and (c) paying the costs of the refunding or defeasance. If the City sets
aside in a special trust fvmd or escrow account irrevocably pledged to that redemption or
defeasance (the "trust account"), money and/or Government Obligations maturing at a time or
times and bearing interest in amounts sufficient to redeem, reflmd or defease the defeased Bonds
in accordance with their terms, then all right and interest of the Owners of the defeased Bonds in
the covenants of this ordinance and in the funds and accounts obligated to the payment of the
defeased Bonds shall cease and become void. Thereafter, the Owners of defeased Bonds shall
have the right to receive payment of the principal of and interest on the defeased Bonds solely
from the trust account and the defeased Bonds shall be deemed no longer outstanding. In that
event, the City may apply money remaining in any fund or account (other than the trust account)
established for the payment or redemption of the defeased Bonds to any lawful purpose.

Unless otherwise specified by the City in a refunding or defeasance plan, notice of
refunding or defeasance shall be given, and selection of Bonds for any partial refunding or
defeasance shall be conducted, in the manner prescribed in this ordinance for the redemption of
Bonds.

Section 14. Bond Fund: Deposit of Bond Proceeds.

(a) Bond Fund. The principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, when
due, shall be paid fh)m the Bond Fund. All taxes collected for and allocated to the payment of
the principal of and interest on the Bonds shall be deposited in the Bond Fimd. Until needed to

12



pay principal of and interest on the Bonds, the City may invest taxes collected for and allocated
to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds temporarily in any legal investment,
and the investment earnings shall be retained in the Bond Fund and be spent for the purposes of
that fund. The Treasurer shall deposit in the Bond Fund the amount, if any, ofNet Premium that
the Designated Representative determines, pursuant to Exhibits A-1 and A-2 of this ordinance, is
to be deposited in the Bond Fund (which Net Premium shall be used to pay interest on the series
of Bonds to which such Net Premium is allocable on their earliest interest payment dates).

(b) Tax-Exemot Defeasance Accoimt. From the proceeds of the Tax-Exempt Bonds,
the Treasurer shall deposit in the Tax-Exempt Defeasance Account those proceeds of the Tax-
Exempt Bonds, togedier with the City Contribution, if any, determined by the Designated
Representative to be necessary to pay, in full, the outstanding principal and all accrued interest
on the 2012 Bond. All other proceeds of the Tax-Exempt Bonds shall be used to pay the
allocable costs of issuing the Tax-Exempt Bonds and/or shall be deposited into the Bond Fund to
pay interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds. The Treasurer is directed to create the Tax-Exempt
Defeasance Account as an escrow account separate and distinct from all other City funds and
accounts, but only if the Designated Representative determines it is practical to retire the 2012
Bond within ten business days after the Issue Date of the Tax-Exempt Bonds.

(c) Taxable Defeasance Account. From the proceeds of the Taxable Bonds, the
Treasurer shall deposit in the Taxable Defeasance Account those proceeds of the Taxable Bonds,
together with the City Contribution, if any, determined by the Designated Representative to be
necessary to pay, in full, the outstanding principal and all accrued interest on the 2012B Bond.
All other proceeds of the Taxable Bonds shall be used to pay the allocable costs of issuing the
Taxable Bonds and/or shall be deposited into the Bond Fund to pay interest on the Taxable
Bonds. The Treasurer is directed to create the Taxable Defeasance Account as an escrow account

separate and distinct from all other City funds and accounts, but only if the Designated
Representative determines it is practical to retire the 2012B Bond within ten business days after
the Issue Date ofthe Taxable Bonds.

Section 15. Refunding.

(a) Appointment of the Refunding Trustee. Pursuant to RCW 39.53.070, the
Refunding Trustee is appointed to serve as trustee to oversee the safekeeping and application of
any Bond proceeds delivered to it, if the Designated Representative determines it is not practical
to retire the Refunded Bonds within ten business days after the Issue Date of the Bonds. Such
appointment will be effective if and when the Refunding Trust Agreement is executed and
delivered by the City.

(b) Use of Bond Proceeds: Acquisition of Acquired Obligations. If the Designated
Representative determines it is not practical to retire the Refunded Bonds Avithin ten business
days after the Issue Date of the Bonds, then all of the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds,
exclusive of any Net Premium deposited into the Bond Fund pursuant to Section 14 herein, shall
be deposited immediately upon the receipt thereof with the Refunding Trustee, together with the
City Contribution, if any, and used to discharge the obligations of the City relating to the
Refunded Bonds imder the 2012 Ordinance and/or the 2012B Ordinance by providing for the
payment of the amounts required to be paid by the Refunding. To the extent practicable, such

13



obligations shall be discharged fully by the Refunding Trustee's simultaneous purchase of
Acquired Obligations, bearing such interest (if any) and maturing as to principal in such amounts
and at such times so as to provide, together \vith a beginning cash balance, if necessary, for the
payment of the amounts required to be paid by the Refunding. The Acquired Obligations shall be
listed and more particularly described in the Refunding Trust Agreement, but are subject to
substitution as set forth below. The Designated Representative is authorized and directed to
approve the Acquired Obligations to be purchased. Any Bond proceeds or other money deposited
with the Refunding Trustee not needed to purchase the Acquired Obligations, pay the
administrative costs of the Refunding and the costs related to the sale, issuance and delivery of
the Bonds, and provide a beginning cash balance shall be returned to the City as soon as
reasonably practicable following the delivery of the Bonds to the Purchaser and deposited in the
Bond Fund to pay interest on the series of Bonds to which such money is allocable on their
earliest interest payment date pursuant to Section 14 herein. Any escrow account held by the
Refunding Trustee with regard to Tax-Exempt Bond proceeds pursuant to the Refunding Trust
Agreement shall be deemed to be the Tax-Exempt Defeasance Account for purposes of this
ordinance. Any escrow accoimt held by the Refunding Trustee with regard to Taxable Bond
proceeds pursuant to the Refunding Trust Agreement shall be deemed to be the Taxable
Defeasance Account for purposes of this ordinance.

(c) Substitution of Acquired Obligations. Prior to the purchase of any Acquired
Obligations, the City reserves the right to substitute money and/or Substitute Obligations for any
of the Acquired Obligations and to use any savings created thereby for any lawful City purpose if
such substitution shall not impair the timely payment of the amounts required to be paid by the
Refunding, as verified by a nationally recognized independent certified public accounting firm.

After the purchase of the Acquired Obligations by the Refunding Trustee, the City
reserves the right to substitute therefor money or Substitute Obligations subject to the conditions
that such money or Substitute Obligations held by the Refunding Trustee shall be sufficient to
carry out the Refunding, and that the City obtains, at its expense: (i) a verification by a nationally
recognized independent certified public accounting firm confirming that the payments of
principal of and interest on the Substitute Obligations, if paid when due, and any other money
held by the Refunding Trustee will be sufficient to carry out the Refunding; and (ii) that such
disposition and substitution or purchase is in compliance with the statutes and regulations
applicable to the Bonds, the 2012 Bond and the 2012B Bond. Any surplus money resulting from
the sale, transfer, other disposition or redemption of the Acquired Obligations and the
substitutions therefor shall be released from the trust estate and transferred to the City to be used
for any lawful City purpose.

(d) Administration of Refunding. The Refunding Trustee is authorized and directed
to purchase the Acquired Obligations (or Substitute Obligations) and to make the payments
required to be made by the Refunding from the Acquired Obligations (or Substitute Obligations)
and money deposited with the Refunding Trustee pursuant to this ordinance. All Acquired
Obligations (or Substitute Obligations) and money deposited with the Refunding Trustee and any
income therefrom shall be held irrevocably, invested and applied in accordance with the
provisions of the 2012 Ordinance, the 2012B Ordinance, this ordinance, chapter 39.53 RCW and
other applicable laws of the State, and the Refunding Trust Agreement. All necessary and proper
fees, compensation and expenses of the Refunding Trustee and all other costs incidental to the

14



setting up of the escrow(s) to accomplish the Refunding and costs related to the sale, issuance
and delivery of the Bonds, including bond printing, rating service fees, verification fees. Bond
Counsel's fees and other related expenses, shall be paid out of the proceeds of the Bonds.

(e) Authorization for Refunding Trust Agreement. If the Refunding Trustee is
required to be retained to carry out the Refunding provided for by this ordinance, the Mayor is
authorized to execute and deliver to the Refunding Trustee a Refunding Trust Agreement setting
forth the duties, obligations and responsibilities of the Refunding Trustee in cormection with the
prepayment and redemption of the Refunded Bonds as provided herein and stating that the
provisions for payment of the fees, compensation and expenses of such Refunding Trustee set
forth therein are satisfactory to it.

Section 16. Call for Redemption of the Refunded Bonds. Effective upon the Issue
Date, if the Tax-Exempt Bonds are issued, the City calls the 2012 Bond for prepayment and
redemption on the next occurring June 1 or December 1 following the Issue Date, at the price of
par plus accrued interest. Effective upon the Issue Date, if the Taxable Bonds are issued, the City
calls the 2012B Bond for prepayment and redemption on the next occurring June I or December
1 following the Issue Date, at the price of par plus accrued interest. Any such call for redemption
shall be irrevocable once it becomes effective. The Treasurer (if the Tax-Exempt Defeasance
Account and/or the Taxable Defeasance Account is to be held by the Treasurer) or the Refunding
Trustee (if the Tax-Exempt Defeasance Account and/or the Taxable Defeasance Account is to be
held by the Refunding Trustee) is authorized and directed to give or cause to be given such
notices as required, at the times and in the manner required, pursuant to the 2012 Ordinance, the
2012B Ordinance and the Reminding Trust Agreement, if any, in order to effect the prepayment
and redemption of the Refunded Bonds prior to their stated maturity dates.

Section 17. Official Statement: Continuing Disclosure.

(a) Preliminarv Official Statement Deemed Final. For the sole purpose of the
Purchaser's compliance with paragraph (b)(1) of Rule 15c2-12 with respect to the Preliminary
Official Statement, the Administrator and/or the Mayor, on the City's behalf, are hereby
authorized to: (i) review and "deem final" the Preliminary Official Statement as of its date,
except for the omission of information permitted to be omitted by Rule I5c2-12; (ii) authorize
the distribution by the Purchaser of the "deemed final" Preliminary Official Statement to
potential purchasers of the Bonds; and (iii) acknowledge in writing any action taken pursuant to
clauses (i) and (ii) ofthis paragraph.

(b) Approval of Final Official Statement. The Administrator and/or the Mayor are
hereby authorized to review and approve on behalf of the City a final official statement (the
"Official Statement") with respect to the Bonds, substantially in the form of the "deemed final"
Preliminary Official Statement and supplemented or amended as the Administrator and/or the
Mayor, with the approval of Bond Counsel, deems necessary, desirable, or appropriate. The
Mayor is authorized to execute the Official Statement and the City is authorized to deliver or
cause to be delivered the Official Statement to the Purchaser in the manner required by Rule
15c2-12, the MSRB and the Bond Purchase Agreement.

(c) Undertaking to Provide Continuing Disclosure. To meet the requirements of
paragraph (b)(5) of Rule 15c2-12, as applicable to a participating underwriter for the Bonds, the

15
51398354.3



Mayor is authorized to execute a written undertaking to provide continuing disclosure for the
benefit ofholders of the Bonds in substantially the form attached as Exhibit B.

Section 18. Supplemental and Amendatory Ordinances. The City may supplement or
amend this ordinance for any one or more of the following purposes without the consent of any
Owners ofthe Bonds:

(a) To add covenants and agreements that do not materially adversely affect the
interests of Owners, or to surrender any right or power reserved to or conferred upon the City.

(b) To cure any ambiguities, or to cure, correct or supplement any defective provision
contained in this ordinance in a manner that does not materially adversely affect the interest of
the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.

Section 19. General Authorization and Ratification. The Mayor, the Designated
Representative, the Treasurer, the Clerk, other appropriate officers of the City and Bond Counsel
are severally authorized to take such actions and to execute such documents as in their judgment
may be necessary or desirable to carry out the transactions contemplated in connection with this
ordinance, and to do everything necessary for the prompt delivery of the Bonds to the Purchaser
and for the proper application, use and investment of the proceeds of the Bonds. All actions
taken prior to the effective date of this ordinance in furtherance of the purposes described in this
ordinance and not inconsistent with the terms of this ordinance are ratified and confirmed in all

respects.

Section 20. Severabilitv. The provisions of this ordinance are declared to be separate
and severable. If a court of competent jurisdiction, all appeals having been exhausted or all
appeal periods having run, finds any provision of this ordinance to be invalid or unenforceableas
to any person or circumstance, such offending provision shall, if feasible, be deemed to be
modified to be within the limits of enforceability or validity. However, if the offending provision
cannot be so modified, it shall be null and void with respect to the particular person or
circumstance, and all other provisions of this ordinance in all other respects, and the offending
provision with respect to all other persons and all other circumstances, shall remain valid and
enforceable.

[ Remainder ofpage intentionally left blank ]

16
Sn9S3543



Section 21. Effective Date of Ordinance. This ordinance shall take effect and be in

force from and after its passage and five days following its publication as required by law.

PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Selah,
Washington, atan open public meeting thereof, this 28"* day ofOctober, 2014.

CITY OF SELAH, WASHINGTON

Mayor

ATTEST;

City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

City Attomey

(SEAL)

17
$U983$43



Exhibit A

PARAMETERS FOR FINAL TERMS

5l}9g3S4J



Exhibit A-1

PARAMETERS FOR FINAL TERMS OF THE TAX-EXEMPT BONDS

(a) Principal Amount.

(b) Date or Dates.

(c) Denominations, Name, etc.

(d) Interest Rate(s).

(e) Payment Dates.

(f) Final Maturity.

(g) Minimum Savings.

51398354.3

The Tax-Exempt Bonds may be issued in an aggregate principal
amount that does not exceed $400,000. The principal amount of
the Tax-Exempt Bonds (i) may exceed the principal amount of
the 2012 Bond by an amount deemed reasonably required to
effect the prepayment and redemption of the 2012 Bond, or
(ii) may be equal to or less than the principal amount of the 2012
Bond, so long as the proceeds of the Tax-Exempt Bonds
(together with the City Contribution, if any) are sufficient to
effect the prepayment and redemption of the 2012 Bond.

Each Tax-Exempt Bond shall be dated the Issue Date, which
date may not be later than December 31,2015.

The Tax-Exempt Bonds shall be issued in Authorized
Denominations and shall be numbered separately in the manner
and shall bear any name and additional designation as deemed
necessary or appropriate by the Designated Representative.
Specifically, if the Taxable Bonds are not issued, the designation
of the Tax-Exempt Bonds may be conformed accordingly (e.g.,
"Limited Tax General Obligation Refunding Bonds, 2014").
Conforming changes, if any, shall be made in the certificate of
authentication authorized by Section 7 ofthis ordinance.

Each Tax-Exempt Bond shall bear interest at a fixed rate per
annum (computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-
day months) from the Issue Date of such Bonds or from the most
recent date for which interest has been paid or duly provided for,
whichever is later. One or more rates of interest may be fixed for
the Tax-Exempt Bonds. No rate of interest for any Tax-Exempt
Bond may exceed 6.00% per annum.

Interest shall be payable on June 1 and December 1,
commencing on the earliest of such dates that occurs at least four
months after the Issue Date for the Tax-Exempt Bonds. Principal
paymentsshall commence on a date acceptable to the Designated
Representative and shall be payable periodically, at maturity
and/or in mandatory redemption installments on dates acceptable
to the Designated Representative.

The Tax-Exempt Bonds shall mature no later than the date that is
twenty-five years after their Issue Date.

The Tax-Exempt Bonds shall produce a minimum net present
value savings to the City of 4.00%. Net present value savings
means the aggregate difference between (i) annual debt service
on the 2012 Bond, less (ii) annual debt service on the Tax-
Exempt Bonds (including expenses related to costs of issuance
of the Tax-Exempt Bonds) discounted to the Issue Date using the
yield on the Tax-Exempt Bonds as the discount rate, plus (iii)
any Net Premium deposited into the Bond Fund pursuant to



(h) Price.

(i) Redemption Rights.

0) Other Terms and Conditions.

5I3983M.3

Section 14 of this ordinance on the Issue Date, if any, and less
(iv) the amount of the City Contribution, if any, made on such
Issue Date.

The Aggregate Purchase Price for the Tax-Exempt Bonds may
not be less than 95% or more than 120% of the stated principal
amount of the Tax-Exempt Bonds. The Designated
Representative, in consultation with Bond Counsel, shall
determine the amount of Net Premium received from the

Purchaser from the Tax-Exempt Bonds, if any, to be deposited
into the Bond Fund.

The Designated Representative may approve in the Bond
Purchase Agreement provisions for the optional and mandatory
redemption ofTax-Exempt Bonds, subject to the following:

(1) Optional Redemption. Any Tax-Exempt Bond may be
designated as being (A) subject to redemption at the option
of the City prior to its maturity date on the dates and at the
prices set forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement; or (B) not
subject to redemption prior to its maturity date. If a Tax-
Exempt Bond is subject to optional redemption prior to its
maturity, it must be subject to such redemption on one or
more dates occurring not more than 10%years after the Issue
Date of the Tax-Exempt Bonds.

(2) Mandatorv Redemption. Any Tax-Exempt Bond may be
designated as a Term Bond, subject to mandatory
redemption prior to its maturity on the dates and in the
amounts set forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement.

(1) The Tax-Exempt Bonds may not be issued if it would
cause the indebtedness of the City to exceed the City's
legal debt capacity on the Issue Date.

(2) The Designated Representative is authorized to determine
the amount of the City Contribution and cause the
Treasurer to transfer the City Contribution to the Tax-
Exempt Defeasance Account or to the Refunding Trustee,
as applicable.

(3) The Designated Representative may determine whether it
is in the City's best interest to provide for bond insurance
or other credit enhancement; and may accept such
additional terms, conditions and covenants as he may
determine are in the best interests of the City, consistent
with this ordinance.

(4) The Designated Representative is authorized to take such
additional action as may be necessaiy or convenient for the
issuance of Tax-Exempt Bonds pursuant to the terms of
this ordinance.



Exhibit A-2

PARAMETERS FOR FINAL TERMS OF THE TAXABLE BONDS

(a) Principal Amount.

(b) Date or Dates.

(c) Denominations, Name, etc.

(d) Interest Rate(s).

(e) Payment Dates.

(f) Final Maturity.

(g) Minimum Savings.

The Taxable Bonds may be issued in an aggregate principal
amount that does not exceed $3,100,000. The principal amount
of the Taxable Bonds (i) may exceed the principal amount of the
2012B Bond by an amount deemed reasonably required to effect
the prepayment and redemption of the 2012B Bond, or (ii) may
be equal to or less than the principal amount of the 2012B Bond,
so long as the proceeds of the Taxable Bonds (together with the
City Contribution, if any) are sufficient to effect the prepayment
and redemption ofthe 2012B Bond.

Each Taxable Bond shall be dated the Issue Date, which date
may not be later than December 31,2015.

The Taxable Bonds shall be issued in Authorized Denominations

and shall be numbered separately in the manner and shall bear
any name and additional designation as deemed necessary or
appropriate by the Designated Representative. Specifically, if the
Tax-Exempt Bonds are not issued, the alphanumeric designation
of the Taxable Bonds may be removed (e.g., "Limited Tax
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, 2014 (Taxable)").
Conforming changes, if any, shall be made in the certificate of
authentication authorized by Section 7 ofthis ordinance.

Each Taxable Bond shall bear interest at a fixed rate per annum
(computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day
months) from the Issue Date of such Bonds or from the most
recent date for which interest has been paid or duly provided for,
whichever is later. One or more rates of interest may be fixed for
the Taxable Bonds. No rate of interest for any Taxable Bond
may exceed 7.00% per annum.

Interest shall be payable on June 1 and December 1,
commencing on the earliest of such dates that occurs at least four
months after the Issue Date for the Taxable Bonds. Principal
payments shall commence on a date acceptable to the Designated
Representative and shall be payable periodically, at maturity
an^or in mandatory redemption installments on dates acceptable
to the Designated Representative.

The Taxable Bonds shall mature no later than the date that is

twenty-five years after their Issue Date.

The Taxable Bonds shall produce a minimum net present value
savings to tlie City of 4.00%. Net present value savings means
the aggregate difference between (i) annual debt service on the
2012B Bond, less (ii) annual debt service on the Taxable Bonds
(including expenses related to costs of issuance of the Taxable
Bonds) discounted to the Issue Date using the yield on the
Taxable Bonds as the discount rate, plus (iii) any Net Premium



(h) Price.

(i) Redemption Rights.

(j) Other Terms and Conditions.

deposited into the Bond Fund pursuant to Section 14 of this
ordinance on the Issue Date, if any, and less (iv) the amount of
the City Contribution, if any, made on such Issue Date.

The Aggregate Purchase Price for the Taxable Bonds may not be
less than 93% or more than 120% of the stated principal amount
of the Taxable Bonds. The Designated Representative, in
consultation with Bond Counsel, shall determine the amount of
Net Premium received from the Purchaser from the Taxable

Bonds, if any, to be deposited into the Bond Fund.

The Designated Representative may approve in the Bond
Purchase Agreement provisions for the optional and mandatory
redemption of Taxable Bonds, subject to the following:

(1) Optional Redemption. Any Taxable Bond may be designated
as being (A) subject to redemption at the option of the City
prior to its maturity date on ^e dates and at the prices set
forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement; or (B) not subject to
redemption prior to its maturity date. If a Taxable Bond is
subject to optional redemption prior to its maturity, it must
be subject to such redemption on one or more dates
occurring not more than lO'A years after the Issue Date of
the Taxable Bonds.

(2) Mandatorv Redemption. Any Taxable Bond may be
designated as a Term Bond, subject to mandatory
redemption prior to its maturity on the dates and in the
amounts set forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement.

(1) The Taxable Bonds may not be issued if it would cause the
indebtedness of the City to exceed the City's legal debt
capacity on the Issue Date.

(2) The Designated Representative is authorized to determine
the amount of the City Contribution and cause the
Treasurer to transfer the City Contribution to the Taxable
Defeasance Account or to the Refunding Trustee, as
applicable.

(3) The Designated Representative may determine whether it
is in the City's best interest to provide for bond insurance
or other credit enhancement; and may accept such
additional terms, conditions and covenants as he may
determine are in the best interests of the City, consistent
with this ordinance.

(4) The Designated Representative is authorized to take such
additional action as may be necessary or convenient for the
issuance of Taxable Bonds pursuant to the terms of this
ordinance.



Exhibit B

Form of

UNDERTAKING TO PROVIDE CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

City of Selah, Washington
Limited Tax General Obligation Refunding Bonds, 2014A (Tax-Exempt)

Limited Tax General Obligation Refunding Bonds, 2014B (Taxable)

The City of Selah, Washington (the "City"), makes the following written Undertaking for
the benefit of holders of the above-referenced bonds (the "Bonds"), for the sole purpose of
assisting the Purchaser in meeting the requirements of paragraph (b)(5) of Rule 15c2-12, as
applicable to a participating underwriter for the Bonds. Capitalized terms used but not defined
below shall have the meanings given in Ordinance No. of the City (the "Bond Ordinance").

(a) Undertaking to Provide Annual Financial Information and Notice of Listed
Events. The City undertakes to provide or cause to be provided, either directly or through a
designated agent, to the MSRB, in an electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB,
accompanied by identifying information as prescribed by the MSRB:

(i) Annual financial information and operating data of the type included in the final
official statement for the Bonds and described in paragraph (b) ("annual financial
information");

(ii) Timely notice (not in excess of 10 business days after the occurrence of the event)
of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds:
(1) principal and interest payment delinquencies; (2) non-payment related
defaults, if material; (3) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting
financial difficulties; (4) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting
financial difficulties; (5) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their
failure to perform; (6) adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue
Service of proposed or final determinations of taxability. Notice ofProposed Issue
(IRS Form 5701 - TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect
to the tax status of the Bonds, or other material events affecting the tax status of
the Bonds; (7) modifications to rights of holders of the Bonds, if material;
(8) bond calls (other than scheduled mandatory redemptions of Term Bonds), if
material, and tender offers; (9) defeasances; (10) release, substitution, or sale of
property securing repayment of the Bonds, if material; (11) rating changes;
(12) bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the City, as such
"Bankruptcy Events" are defined in Rule 15c2-12; (13) the consummation of a
merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the City or the sale of all or
substantially all of the assets of the City other than in the ordinary course of
business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the
termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than
pursuant to its terms, if material; and (14) appointment of a successor or
additional trustee or the change of name ofa trustee, ifmaterial.

SI398394.3



(iii) Timely notice of a failure by the City to provide required annual financial
informationon or before the date specified in paragraph (b).

(b) Type of Annual Financial Information Undertaken to be Provided. The annual
financial information that the City undertakes to provide in paragraph (a):

(i) Shall consist of (1) annual financial statements prepared (except as noted in the
financial statements) in accordance with applicable generally accepted accounting
principles applicable to local governmental units of the State such as the City, as
such principles may be changed from time to time, which statements may be
unaudited, provided, that if and when audited financial statements are prepared
and available they will be provided; (2) principal amount of general obligation
bonds outstanding at the end of the applicable fiscal year; (3) assessed valuation
for that fiscal year; (4) property tax levy amounts and rates for that fiscal year;
and (5) a statement of revenues for that fiscal year from any other revenue sources
pledged to the Bonds;

(ii) Shall be provided not later than the last day of the ninth month after the end of
each fiscal year of the City (currently, a fiscal year ending December 31), as such
fiscal year may be changed as required or permitted by State law, commencing
with the City's fiscal year ending December 31,2014; and

(iii) May be provided in a single or multiple documents, and may be incorporated by
specific reference to documents available to the public on the Internet website of
the MSRB or filed with the SEC.

(c) Amendment of Undertaking. This Undertaking is subject to amendment after the
primary offering of the Bonds without the consent of any holder of any Bond, or of any broker,
dealer, municipal securities dealer, participating underwriter. Rating Agency or the MSRB,
under the circumstances and in the manner permitted by Rule 15c2-12. The City will give notice
to the MSRB of the substance (or provide a copy) of any amendment to the Undertaking and a
brief statement of the reasons for the amendment. If the amendment changes the type of annual
financial information to be provided, the annual financial information containing the amended
financial information will include a narrative explanation of the effect of that change on the type
of information to be provided.

(d) Beneficiaries. This Undertaking shall inure to the benefit of the City and the
holder ofeach Bond, and shall not inure to the benefit of or create any rights in any other person.

(e) Termination of Undertaking. The City's obligations under this Undertaking shall
terminate upon the legal defeasance of all of the Bonds. In addition, the City's obligations under
this Undertaking shall terminate if the provisions of Rule 15c2-12 that require the City to comply
with this Undertaking become legally inapplicable in respect of the Bonds for any reason, as
confirmed by an opinion of Bond Counsel delivered to the City, and the City provides timely
notice ofsuch termination to the MSRB.



(f) Remedy for Failure to Comply with Undertaking. As soon as practicable after the
City leams of any failure to comply with this Undertaking, the City will proceed with due
diligence to cause such noncompliance to be corrected. No failure by the City or other obligated
person to comply with this Undertaking shall constitute a default in respect of the Bonds. The
sole remedy of any holder of a Bond shall be to take action to compel the City or other obligated
person to comply with this Undertaking, including seeking an order of specific performance from
an appropriate court.

(g) Designation of Official Responsible to Administer Undertaking. The City Clerk-
Treasurer or his or her designee is the person designated, in accordance with the Bond
Ordinance, to carry out the Undertaking in accordance with Rule 15c2-12, including, without
limitation, the following actions:

(i) Preparing and filing the annual financial information undertaken to be proyided;

(ii) Determining whether any eyent specified in paragraph (a) has occurred, assessing
its materiality, where necessary, with respect to the Bonds, and preparing and
disseminating any required notice of its occurrence;

(iii) Determining whether any person other than the City is an "obligated person"
within the meaning of Rule 15c2-12 with respect to the Bonds, and obtaining
fi'om such person an undertaking to proyide any annual financial information and
notice of listed eyents for that person required under Rule 15c2-12;

(iy) Selecting, engaging and compensating designated agents and consultants,
including financial adyisors and legal counsel, to assist and adyise the City in
carrying out this Undertaking; and

(y) Effectingany necessary amendment of this Undertaking.

Dated: r to he dated the Issue Date 1 .

CITY OF SELAH, WASHINGTON

5U983M.3

f to be siened at closing 1

Mayor



CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned, City Clerk of the City of Selah, Washington (the "City"), hereby
certify as follows:

1. The attached copy of Ordinance No. (the "Ordinance") is a full, true and
correct copy of an ordinance duly passed at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City
held at the regular meeting place thereof on October 28, 2014, as that ordinance appears on the
minute book of the City.

2. The Ordinance will be in full force and effect five days after publication in the City's
official newspaper.

3. A quorum of the members of the City Council was present throughout the meeting
and a majority of the members voted in the proper manner for the passage of the Ordinance.

Dated: October 28,2014.

CITY OF SELAH, WASHINGTON

City Clerk


